
 
May 7, 2013                                   CITY COUNCIL AGENDA                                         6:00 p.m. 
 

To assure disabled persons the opportunity to participate in or benefit from City services, please provide 24-hour advance  
notice to the City Clerk at (360) 279-4539 for additional arrangements to reasonably accommodate special needs. 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Roll Call/Pledge of Allegiance/Invocation 

 
PRESENTATION OF OTHER NON-ACTION COUNCIL ITEMS 

 Recognition of the Youth Commission “Caught in the Act” Program 
 Recognition of Cathy Rosen’s 15 Years of Service  
 Proclamation for National Nurses Week 
 Proclamation for Elks Youth Week 
 American Red Cross Heroes Award Recipients  
 Police Department Annual Report  
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
3. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD 
 
4.    CONSENT AGENDA 

a.   Minutes of the Regular City Council meeting held April 16, 2013 
b.  Approval of Accounts Payable Voucher Nos. 153901 through 154082 in the amount of 

$733,000.58 
c. Motion to appoint Nora Daniel to the Community Police Advisory Board to fill an unexpired 

term ending March 2016 
d. Motion to excuse Councilmember Beth Munns from the Council meetings of May 21, 2013, 

and June 18, 2013 
e. Motion to re-appoint KC Pohtilla to the Park Board for a three-year term to expire May 2016 
f. Motion to appoint Emily Maughan to the Youth Commission for a three-year term to expire 

May 2016 
 
 

5. HEARINGS AND ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS 
a. Resolution 13-06:  Adopting a Policy for Invocations at City Council Meetings 
b. Resolution 13-10: Authorizing a Boat Sale for Delinquent Marina Charges 
c.  Resolution 13-11: Authorizing the Commission and Acquisition of Public Art known as “Island 

Spirit,” created by Artist Wayne Lewis  
 
 
6. OTHER BUSINESS 

a. Motion to authorize the Mayor to sign a Professional Services Agreement with Equinox Re-
search Consulting International for Archaeological Services for the Wastewater Treatment 
Plant (WWTP) Project, in the amount of $14,332.98 and a management reserve of 
$2,000.00 

b.  Motion to authorize the Mayor to sign a Professional Services Agreement with Fullerton & 
Associates for Real Estate & Property Services related to the WWTP Project in the amount 
of $16,500 and a management reserve of $3,500 

  



 
May 7, 2013                                   CITY COUNCIL AGENDA                                         6:00 p.m. 
 

To assure disabled persons the opportunity to participate in or benefit from City services, please provide 24-hour advance  
notice to the City Clerk at (360) 279-4539 for additional arrangements to reasonably accommodate special needs. 

 

 
c. Motion to award the North Reservoir Project to Veterans Northwest Construction, LLC,  in 

the amount of $4,486,324.12, plus all applicable taxes; and to authorize the City Engineer to 
administratively approve changes to the construction contract totaling not more than 
$400,000.00 

d. Motion to authorize the Mayor to sign a Consultant Agreement with KBA, Inc. for construction 
management services related to the North Reservoir Project 

e. Motion to authorize the Mayor to sign a Consultant Agreement with Materials Testing and 
Consulting for construction materials inspection services for the North Reservoir Project with 
a not-to-exceed limit of $73,465.50 and a management reserve of $5,000.00 

f.   Motion to authorize the Mayor to sign a Professional Services Agreement with Frazier Survey-
ing, LLC, for construction staking services for the North Reservoir Project with a not-to-
exceed limit of $10,658 and a management reserve of $1,000 

g.   Motion to authorize the Mayor to sign a Consultant Agreement with Gray & Osborne, Inc. for 
construction support services for the North Reservoir Project in an amount not to exceed 
$24,950 and a management reserve of $1,300 

h. Motion to appoint up to three (3) attendees as the 2013 voting delegates for the City of Oak 
Harbor at the AWC Annual Business Meeting 

i. Motion to authorize the Mayor to sign the Lease Agreement with Option to Purchase with 
Freedom Properties, LLC 

 
7. EXECUTIVE SESSION - Potential Litigation, Property Acquisition, and Labor Negotiations  
 
8. CITY ADMINISTRATOR COMMENTS 
 
9. COUNCILMEMBER’S COMMENTS 
 
10. MAYOR’S COMMENTS 
 
11. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
As a courtesy to Council and the audience, PLEASE TURN YOUR CELL PHONES OFF before the meeting begins. 
During the meeting’s Public Comments section, Council will listen to your input regarding subjects of concern or 
interest that are not on the agenda. 
 
For scheduled public hearings, if you wish to speak, please sign your name to the sign-up sheet, located in the 
Council Chambers. The Council will take all information under advisement. To ensure your comments are recorded 
properly, state your name and address clearly into the microphone.  Please limit your comments to three minutes in 
order that other citizens have sufficient time to speak. 
 

Thank you for participating in your City Government! 



 City of Oak Harbor 
City Council Agenda Bill 

 

5.7.2013 Employee Recognition - Rosen 

  Bill No. ________________________ 
  Date:    May 7, 2013    

Subject:  Employee Recognition –  
Cathy Rosen    

 
FROM:     Scott Dudley 
  Mayor 
 
INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY: 
  _____ Larry Cort, City Administrator 
  _____  Doug Merriman, Finance Director 
 _____ Grant Weed, Interim City Attorney, as to form 
       
 
PURPOSE  
  
To recognize City employees for 10 years, or more, of service. 
  
AUTHORITY  
 
It is the practice of the City to recognize dedicated employees who have completed 10 years, and then every 
five years thereafter, of service. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT DESCRIPTION 
 
Funds Required: $0.00 
Appropriation Source: n/a 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT 
 
The Mayor and City Council will recognize Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director, for 15 years of service 
with the City. 
 
STANDING COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
None. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Congratulate Cathy Rosen for her 15 years of service. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
None. 



PROCLAMATION IN RECOGNITION OF 
 

NATIONAL NURSES WEEK 
With the Theme: “A Belief in Caring, Faith in Healing” 

 
WHEREAS, The nearly 2.9 million registered nurses in the United States comprise our nation's 

largest health care profession; and 
 

WHEREAS, the depth and breadth of the registered nursing profession meets the different and 
emerging health care needs of the American population in a wide range of settings; and 
 

WHEREAS, the American Nurses Association, as the voice for the registered nurses of this 
country, is working to chart a new course for a healthy nation that relies on increasing delivery 

of primary and preventive health care; and 
 
WHEREAS, a renewed emphasis on primary and preventive health care will require the better 

utilization of all of our nation's registered nursing resources; and 
 

WHEREAS, professional nursing has been demonstrated to be an indispensable component in the 
safety and quality of care of hospitalized patients; and 
 

WHEREAS, that more qualified registered nurses will be needed in the future to meet the 
increasingly complex needs of health care consumers in this community. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, WE, Scott Dudley, Mayor, and Councilmembers of the City of Oak Harbor do 
hereby declare the week of May 6 through 12, 2013 as National Nurses Week along with 

the American Nurses Association, Naval Hospital Oak Harbor and the NHOH Nurses Association 
in celebration of the ways in which registered nurses strive to provide safe and high quality 

patient care and map out the way to improve our health care system.  We ask that all residents 
of this community join in honoring the registered nurses who care for all of us.  That the 
residents of Oak Harbor celebrate the accomplishments and efforts of our registered nurses to 

improve our health care system and show our appreciation for the nation's registered nurses not 
just during this week, but at every opportunity throughout the year. 

         
        Signed this 7th day of May, 2013 

 
 
 

               
        Scott Dudley, Mayor 



 
PROCLAMATION IN RECOGNITION OF 

 

ELKS YOUTH WEEK 
MAY 1 - 7, 2013 

 
 

 
WHEREAS, The Benevolent and Protective Order of Elks has designated May 1-7 as Youth 

Week to honor America’s Junior Citizens for their accomplishments, and to give fitting 
recognition of their services to our community, state and nation; and 
 

WHEREAS, no event could be more deserving of our support and participation than one 
dedicated to these young people who represent the nation’s greatest resource, and who in 

the years ahead will assume the responsibility for the advancement of our free society; and 
 
WHEREAS, our youth need the guidance, inspiration and encouragement which we alone 

can give in order to help develop those qualities of character essential for future leadership 
and go forth to serve America; and 

 
WHEREAS, to achieve this worthy objective we should demonstrate our partnership with 
youth, our understanding of their hopes and aspirations and a sincere willingness to help 

prepare them in every way for the responsibilities and opportunities of citizenship. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, WE, Scott Dudley, Mayor, and Councilmembers of the City of Oak Harbor 
do hereby recognize, May 1 – 7, 2013 as Elks Youth Week and urge all citizens to join 

us in this special observation. 
 
 

       Signed this 7th day of May, 2013 
 

 
 
 

              
       Scott Dudley, Mayor 



Presented by: 
Edgar J. Green, Chief  of  Police 

1 



2 

Number of Cases Generated from Calls - 3,477 (3,641 in 2011) 

10,000 

11,000 

12,000 

13,000 

14,000 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

Calls For Service 2008-2012 



3 

Part One Offenses:  
Part I offenses are considered to be Major Crimes.  National crime 

statistics are based upon Part I offenses 

Year   2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

Homicide 0 0 0 0 0 

Rape 23 9 13 13 8 

Robbery 3 6 3 3 3 

Assault 294 328 275 246 230 

Burglary 122 118 114 144 155 

Auto Theft 41 16 16 13 32 

Arson 7 8 4 10 5 



Other Crimes 

4 

Year   2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

Forgery 16 11 19 9 6 

Fraud 74 61 65 64 44 

Bad Checks 10 6 15 6 5 

Weapons Violations 26 23 34 36 17 

Malicious Mischief 257 282 234 314 222 

Sex Offenses 26 37 23 28 27 

Narcotics 134 158 206 217 210 

Car Prowl 143 225 129 106 36 

Theft 327 377 333 301 368 

Shoplifting 85 83 77 95 117 

Liquor Violations 59 43 57 29 26 

Traffic (including DUI) 750 795 710 817 756 

Resisting / Obstructing 59 44 42 28 13 

Disorderly Conduct 68 67 86 64 51 

Runaways 49 82 55 44 52 



5 

0 50 100 150 200 250 300 350 400 450 

2003 

2004 

2005 

2006 

2007 

2008 

2009 

2010 

2011 

2012 

Reportable Traffic Collisions 



6 

TIMES OF COLLISIONS 

4 – 5 pm 27 

5 – 6 pm 25 

11 am – 12 pm 20 

3 – 4 pm 18 

1 – 2 pm 17 

2 – 3 pm 17 

10 – 11 am 16 

12 – 1 pm 13 

6 – 7 pm 9 

7 – 8 am 8 

DAYS OF THE WEEK 

OF COLLISIONS 

Monday 38 

Friday 36 

Thursday 35 

Tuesday 35 

Saturday 25 

Sunday 22 

Wednesday 20 

TOP 10 HIGH COLLISION LOCATIONS 

SR 20 & SW Barrington Drive 17 

SR 20 & SW 8th Avenue 12 

SR 20 & E Whidbey Avenue 10 

N. Oak Harbor St & E Whidbey Avenue 9 

SR 20 & NE 7th Avenue 9 

NE Goldie Street & SR 20 8 

SR 20 & SW Swantown Avenue 8 

SE Ely Street & SE 8th Avenue 5 

E Whidbey Avenue & NE Midway Blvd. 4 

NE Midway Blvd & NE 7th Avenue 4 



7 

  Budgeted Spent Balance % 

2008 $4,837,438 $4,587,140.05 $250,297.95 94.83% 

2009 $4,802,138 $4,724,719.42 $77,418.58 98.39% 

2010 $4,992,031 $4,898,679.33 $93,351.67 98.13% 

2011 $4,981,623 $4,698,155.31 $283,467.69 94.31% 

2012 $5,033.682 $4,878,557.62 $155,079.12 96.92% 



8 

ADMINISTRATION 
12.50% 

INVESTIGATIONS 
9.02% 

TRAINING 
0.37% 

FACILITIES 
2.31% 

PATROL 
45.31% 

EQUIPMENT RENTAL 
(vehicle fund) 

3.67% 

ELEC. MONITORING 
0.00% 

JAIL 
13.22% 

SUPPORT SERVICES 
(includes ICOM) 

13.60% 

CAPITAL OUTLAYS 
0.00% 

Total Spent   =   $4,878,557.62 



9 

0 

20,000 

40,000 

60,000 

80,000 

100,000 

120,000 

140,000 

160,000 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

Budgeted Spent 



10 

YEAR 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

Municipal Court Citation 

Fees 176,625.34 171,119.34 161,743.44 140,303.24 94,434.81 

Fees (i.e., fingerprints, 

records checks, copies) 17,715.69 19,371.73 21,208.59 23,296.28 25,164.18 

False Alarm Fines 550.00 150.00 0.00 200.00 600.00 

Jail Electronic Home 

Detention (EHD) Revenue 665.00 0.00 1,740.00 445.00 365.00 

Jail Commitment Fees 800.00 1,150.00 1,205.00 0.00 0.00 

Jail Booking Fees 15.53 18.50 21.79 (4) 0.00 0.00 

Jail Commissary Revenue (1)  368.75 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Drug Seizure Fund 2571.22 10,519.00 17,584.50 9,770.19 4,019.98 

Concealed Pistol Licenses/ 

City portion 5,392.00 6,493.00 5,205.00 5,591.00 9,218.00 

Vending Machine 

Commissions 144.26 192.66 174.98 136.35 72.08 

Jail Bed Space Rental 

Revenues 0.00 0.00 

(2) 

47,320.00 37,745.46 58,653.67 

Jail Phone System 

Commissions 0.00 0.00 (3)  1,570.53 1,127.81 864.10 

TOTAL  $204,847.79 $209,014.23 $257,773.83 $228,385.51 $196,391.82 

 

(1)    Jail Commissary  
program ended in 2008 

(2)    Jail Bed Space Rental 
Program started in May 
2010 

(3)    Jail Phone System 
Commissions, program 
started March 2010 

(4)    Program discontinued 
2011 



 Neighborhood Watch 

 Volunteer Program 

 Training  

 Community Nuisance Issues 

 Animal Shelter 

11 



12 

 As is evident in this report, the men and women of the 
Oak Harbor Police Department are: 

“Dedicated to Community Safety and Service” 

 Council has been provided the full printed Annual 
Report, which has also been posted at the City’s 
website 

 Questions? 



Regular Meeting Minutes – April 16, 2013 – Page 1 

Oak Harbor City Council 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

April 16, 2013 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Scott Dudley called the meeting to order at 6:03 p.m. 
 

ROLL CALL 
 
Present:      Staff Present: 
Mayor Scott Dudley      City Administrator Larry Cort 
Mayor Pro Tempore Danny Paggao   Finance Director Doug Merriman 
Councilmember Rick Almberg   Development Service Director Steve Powers 
Councilmember Jim Campbell   City Clerk Valerie J. Loffler 
Councilmember Beth Munns     Public Works Director Cathy Rosen  
Councilmember Joel Servatius   Chief of Police Ed Green 
Councilmember Tara Hizon     Fire Chief Ray Merrill 
Councilmember Bob Severns    Interim City Attorney Grant Weed  
       

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INVOCATION 
 
Mayor Dudley led the Pledge of Allegiance, and Mia Walgren from the Christian Science Church 
gave the invocation. 

 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
Councilmember Hizon moved to remove Consent Agenda Item 3.e. to 7.d. The motion was se-
conded by Councilmember Campbell and carried unanimously. 
 
Councilmember Campbell moved to approve the agenda as amended. The motion was second-
ed by Councilmember Almberg and carried unanimously. 
 

PRESENTATIONS OF OTHER NON-ACTION COUNCIL ITEMS 
 
Proclamations 
Councilmember Severns read the Proclamation for Pay It Forward Day, and Councilmember 
Campbell read the Proclamation for National Day of Prayer. 
 
Mayor Dudley related Council was wearing their Oak Harbor Marathon shirts in support of the 
Boston Marathon bombing victims and their families. He thanked Councilmember Hizon for the 
idea. 
 
Parks Supervisor Hank Nydam joined Councilmember Servatius at the podium as he read the 
Arbor Day Proclamation. 
 
Councilmember Hizon was also joined by Hank Nydam as she read the proclamation for Earth 
Day. 
 



Regular Meeting Minutes – April 16, 2013 – Page 2 

Mr. Nydam reported on community events planned for Arbor Day and Earth Day. 
 
Planning Commission Annual Report 
Development Services Director Steve Powers provided the Planning Commission Annual Re-
port including accomplishments for 2012 and work plan for 2013. 
 
Planning Commission Chair Fakkema addressed the Council stating the new commission 
members came with good credentials. 
 
Fire Department Annual Report 
Fire Chief Ray Merrill presented the Fire Department Annual Report. He also recognized Admin-
istrative Assistant Angela Braunstein for her expertise in preparing the Powerpoint presentation. 
 
Mayor Dudley announced a recess at 6:51 p.m.  
 
The meeting reconvened at 6:55 p.m. 
  

CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD 
 
Ann Liszak, 2870 SW Scenic Heights, asked Mayor Dudley and Council to address the damage 
to her property from city storm drain water.  
 
Mayor Dudley informed Mrs. Liszak she would be contacted to schedule an appointment to dis-
cuss her problem. 
 
Helen Chatfield-Weeks, 1415 SE 9th Avenue, encouraged everyone to celebrate Arbor Day by 
sitting under the magnificent 400-year old oak tree in front of the Post Office.  
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
City Clerk Valerie J. Loffler read the Consent Agenda.  
 
a.  Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting of April 2, 2013 
b. Motion to approve Accounts Payable Voucher Nos.153693 through 153698 in the amount 

of $441.03; and Nos. 153699 through 153900 in the amount of $355,154.27 
c. Motion to authorize the Mayor to sign the 2013 Interlocal Cooperative Agreement between 

Whatcom County and City of Oak Harbor for Mini-Chain Services 
d. Motion to authorize the Mayor to sign the Hearing Examiner Services Agreement with Mi-

chael Bobbink 
e.   Motion to set a date (TBD) for a retreat to discuss long-term financial and organizational 

goals with respect to employee health care plans (moved to 7.d.) 
 
Motion: Councilmember Hizon moved to approve the consent agenda as amended. The motion 

was seconded by Councilmember Campbell and carried unanimously. 
  

HEARINGS AND ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS 
 
Ordinance 1655: Relating to the Marina Advisory Committee 
Development Services Director Steve Powers provided the staff report. Two proposed ordi-
nances were presented as Option A and Option B. Option A proposes five committee members 



Regular Meeting Minutes – April 16, 2013 – Page 3 

and a residency requirement for the fifth member. Option B proposes seven members and a 
residency requirement for the seventh member. 
 
Councilmembers Servatius, Almberg and Paggao spoke in support of Option A. 
 
Councilmember Hizon spoke in support of Option B.  
 
Mayor Dudley stated it isn’t just adding members; it’s about what can be done to improve the 
marina. 
 
Councilmember Munns asked the Mayor for teamwork and communication. 
 
Motion: Councilmember Servatius moved, seconded by Councilmember Severns, to adopt Or-

dinance 1655 (Option A). The motion carried 5 to 2; Hizon and Campbell opposed. 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
Automated Pay Stations  
Public Works Director Cathy Rosen provided the staff report. 
 
Councilmembers discussed costs, return on investment, and labor savings. They also ex-
pressed their appreciation to staff for acquiring the automated system.  
 
Motion:     Councilmember Severns moved to authorize the Mayor to sign an agreement with 

Campground Automation Systems for the installation of an automated pay station at 
the Windjammer/Staysail RV Park and for associated online reservations system, 
and to authorize staff to solicit bids to construct a shelter around the automated pay 
station. The motion was seconded by Councilmember Munns and carried unani-
mously. 

 
Interim City Attorney Contract Extension 
City Administrator Larry Cort provided the staff report. 
 
Councilmembers Severns, Paggao and Campbell spoke in support of the contract extension. 
 
Councilmember Almberg and Dr. Cort discussed the cost. Mr. Almberg also expressed his sup-
port for utilizing the assistant city attorney and prosecutor for civil issues. 
 
Councilmember Munns thanked Mr. Weed for his excellent work. She also stated she was en-
couraged that in-house legal talent would be utilized again. 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to authorize the Mayor to sign an extension to the 

contract with Weed, Graafstra and Benson, Inc. P.S.  The motion was seconded by 
Councilmember Munns and carried unanimously. 

 
Council Travel Policy Discussion 
City Administrator Dr. Cort provided the staff report. 
 
Councilmember Hizon stated she wanted to adjust the budget to reflect the educational needs 
and wanted to hear from other Councilmembers. 
 



Regular Meeting Minutes – April 16, 2013 – Page 4 

Councilmembers Severns and Almberg also affirmed the educational benefits and suggested 
sending fewer people. Both expressed the crucial need to send the right people to the Penta-
gon.  
 
Councilmember Paggao stated the most important thing is lobbying on the state and federal 
level. He recommended that Council travel funds be combined. 
 
Councilmember Campbell pointed out that now is not the time to ask for more money; they just 
need to be smarter about who and where. 
 
Councilmember Munns also discussed the educational value. She stated the continuity does 
make a difference in Washington D.C. and at the Pentagon. 
 
Councilmember Servatius addressed the valuable connections made and he was looking for-
ward to more resources toward leadership and education. 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Almberg moved to schedule a workshop meeting, time to be deter-

mined by staff, to review the travel policy and budget. The motion was seconded by 
Councilmember Hizon and carried unanimously. 

 
Retreat Relating to Healthcare Benefits 
City Administrator Dr. Larry Cort reported Stephanie Smith would facilitate the Retreat on long-
term financial goals related to healthcare benefits.  
 
Motion:  Councilmember Munns moved to hold the Retreat on April 30th, 2:00 p.m. – 6:00 p.m.  

The motion was seconded by Councilmember Servatius and carried unanimously. 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
At 8:31 p.m. Mayor Dudley announced an executive session of approximately 20 minutes to 
discuss potential litigation and property acquisition. No action would be taken. 
 
At 8:50 p.m. Mayor Dudley stated the executive session would continue another 10 minutes.  
 
The meeting reconvened at 9:01 p.m. 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to extend the meeting time to 9:10 p.m. The motion   

was seconded by Councilmember Almberg and carried 6 to 1; Hizon opposed. 
 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR COMMENTS 
 
City Administrator Dr. Larry Cort reported on the Whidbey Island Marathon and thanked Kathy 
Gifford, Deanna Emery, and Tamra Sipes for their hard work. 
 
Dr. Cort also advised Council that Mayor Dudley and Steve Powers would be attending the 
GMA appeal on April 19th; and that the agenda for the April 24th workshop was being finalized. 
 

COUNCILMEMBER COMMENTS 
 

All Councilmembers expressed appreciation to staff and the many volunteers for the success of 
the marathon.  



Regular Meeting Minutes – April 16, 2013 – Page 5 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion:   Councilmember Campbell moved, seconded by Councilmember Almberg, to adjourn 

the meeting. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:09 p.m. 
       Valerie J. Loffler, City Clerk 
 





05/01/2013

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

1

 3:29:41PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 153901 5/1/2013 0000490  LABOR & INDUSTRIES, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF043013 LABOR & INDUSTRIES  217.26

Total :  217.26

 153902 5/1/2013 0000950  LICENSING, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 042313 CONCEALED WEAPONS PERMITS  953.00

Total :  953.00

 153903 5/1/2013 0000028  ALL ISLAND LOCK & KEY 21875 KEYS  108.70

 131.42LOCK KIT45676

Total :  240.12

 153904 5/1/2013 0000029  ALL PHASE ELECTRIC SUPPLY 0952-650261 RELAY  42.64

 203.87POLE DOOR0952-653683

Total :  246.51

 153905 5/1/2013 0001609  ALL QUALITY STITCHES 192 SHIRTS  109.79

 391.32JACKETS200

Total :  501.11

 153906 5/1/2013 0005024  ALMBERG, RICHARD TRAVEL REIMB2 TRAVEL REIMB  120.91

Total :  120.91

 153907 5/1/2013 0000037  AMERICAN WATER WORKS 7000626723 MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL  1,785.00

Total :  1,785.00

 153908 5/1/2013 0000712  AMERIGAS 3016663212 PROPANE/MARINA  116.69

 283.24PROPANE/MARINA3016959656

Total :  399.93

 153909 5/1/2013 0000712  AMERIGAS 3016664858 PROPANE/DOG POUND  136.51

 265.00PROPANE/DOG POUND3016960275

Total :  401.51

 153910 5/1/2013 0000042  ANACORTES, CITY OF 900-9080-00 MAR 2013/WATER PURCHASED  93,630.00

 1,000.13MAR 2013/WATER PURCHASED901-9080-01

 7,851.65MAR 2013/WATER PURCHASED901-9080-02

Total :  102,481.78

1Page:



05/01/2013

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

2

 3:29:41PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 153911 5/1/2013 0007077  ANDREWS, SARA 043013 PUBLIC DEFENSE  300.00

Total :  300.00

 153912 5/1/2013 0005001  ARAMARK 938116000 LAUNDRY SERVICES  1,436.82

Total :  1,436.82

 153913 5/1/2013 0006865  ARMADA 041213 COLLECTION FEE/2545547-BLANK  136.48

Total :  136.48

 153914 5/1/2013 0000053  ARROW PEST CONTROL, INC 146440 PEST CONTROL  108.70

Total :  108.70

 153915 5/1/2013 0004019  ASSOCIATED PETROLEUM PRODUCTS 0423996-IN FUEL  4,744.67

 315.67FUEL0424295-IN

 157.44FUEL0424297-IN

 154.04FUEL0424302-IN

 9,747.07FUEL0426495-IN

Total :  15,118.89

 153916 5/1/2013 0000159  AT&T MOBILITY 287249477751X0424201 AIRCARDS  422.63

Total :  422.63

 153917 5/1/2013 0000065  AVOCET ENVIRONMENTAL TESTING 1301111-IN TESTING SERVICES  112.00

Total :  112.00

 153918 5/1/2013 0004733  BARRON HEATING & AIR COND, INC 134399 HEATER REPAIR  1,720.72

 708.51EXHAUST UNIT REPAIR134604

 136.96DUCTWORK REPAIR134605

 439.47PRE SEASON COOLING134612

 103.27HVAC CLEANING134644

 424.92PRE SEASON COOLING134655

 262.39PRE SEASON COOLING134656

 1,086.27PRE SEASON HEATING134863

Total :  4,882.51

 153919 5/1/2013 0000081  BAY PRINTING 21818 FLIERS  76.09

Total :  76.09

2Page:



05/01/2013

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

3

 3:29:41PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 153920 5/1/2013 0000091  BENS CLEANER SALES, INC 234967 THERMOSTAT  65.49

Total :  65.49

 153921 5/1/2013 0000094  BERG VAULT COMPANY 55572 COVERS  261.41

Total :  261.41

 153922 5/1/2013 0007093  BEST FRIEND'S VETERINARY CENT 179954 SEDATION DART  67.74

Total :  67.74

 153923 5/1/2013 0000097  BEST WESTERN HARBOR PLAZA 041113 HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS  1,461.12

Total :  1,461.12

 153924 5/1/2013 0004168  BLUETARP FINANCIAL, INC 28186172 BOLTS/LOCKS/TRACTOR LIFT  322.46

Total :  322.46

 153925 5/1/2013 0000109  BLUMENTHAL UNIFORMS 986086 PANTS/DICKINSON  162.43

 190.19SHIRTS/PEABODY990069

 173.89PANTS/YZAGUIRRE990865

-54.34PANTS/YZAGUIRRE990865-80

 54.34PANTS/ZYAGUIRRE990865-81

 412.98UNIFORM ITEMS/ESPARZA991311

 260.81BOOTS/GARDNER992710

Total :  1,200.30

 153926 5/1/2013 0000112  BOB BARKER COMPANY, INC WEB000261236 RESTRAINT CHAIR  1,958.96

 66.67JAIL SUPPLIESWEB000265042

Total :  2,025.63

 153927 5/1/2013 0003208  BOSS DETAIL 8236-19 DETAIL  244.57

Total :  244.57

 153928 5/1/2013 0006769  BRAUN CONSULTING GROUP 1628 MAR 2013/RETAINER  2,650.00

Total :  2,650.00

 153929 5/1/2013 0002644  C JOHNSON CONSTRUCTION, INC 2 PROF SVC/FORT NUGENT PARK PICNIC SHELTER 20,247.42

 851.01HAULING SERVICES3657

Total :  21,098.43

3Page:



05/01/2013

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

4

 3:29:41PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 153930 5/1/2013 0006939  CANDLEWOOD SUITES 21686 HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS  153.87

Total :  153.87

 153931 5/1/2013 0000627  CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL 101684855211 SUPPLIES  276.21

 365.35SUPPLIES121182855211

 290.54SUPPLIES157295755211

Total :  932.10

 153932 5/1/2013 0000147  CAREER TRACK 14520299 REGISTRATION/BRAUNSTEIN  199.00

Total :  199.00

 153933 5/1/2013 0006215  CAROLLO 0127934 PROF SVC/PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING AND FAC 43,618.44

Total :  43,618.44

 153934 5/1/2013 0004952  CENTRAL COLLISION, INC 18484 BODY REPAIR  630.46

Total :  630.46

 153935 5/1/2013 0000160  CENTRAL WELDING SUPPLY PW24847 TYPERTHERM TESTING  131.95

 12.71CENTRASHIELDRN03130991

Total :  144.66

 153936 5/1/2013 0000167  CHEVRON AND TEXACO BUSINESS 37792672 FUEL  79.60

Total :  79.60

 153937 5/1/2013 0000172  CHRISTIANS TOWING STORAGE 25966 TOWING  196.75

Total :  196.75

 153938 5/1/2013 0007092  CLARION HOTEL SEATTLE AIRPORT 15293556 HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS/WALTON  346.24

Total :  346.24

 153939 5/1/2013 0000179  CLERKS PETTY CASH 042513 PETTY CASH  73.50

Total :  73.50

 153940 5/1/2013 0000186  COASTWIDE LABORATORIES W2536543 SOAP  1,053.23

Total :  1,053.23

 153941 5/1/2013 0000188  CODE PUBLISHING COMPANY 43166 WEB HOSTING RENEWAL  486.88

4Page:



05/01/2013

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

5

 3:29:41PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  486.88 153941 5/1/2013 0000188 0000188  CODE PUBLISHING COMPANY

 153942 5/1/2013 0005773  COMCAST 8498300270032002 CABLE  111.50

 8.04XFINITY8498300270032028

 406.56INTERNET8498300290363841

Total :  526.10

 153943 5/1/2013 0004427  COMFORT INN & SUITES SEATAC 15407458 HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS/BAILEY  74.19

Total :  74.19

 153944 5/1/2013 0002954  COMMERCIAL PLUMBING, INC 42950 TOILET REPAIR  490.85

Total :  490.85

 153945 5/1/2013 0000197  CONCRETE NORWEST 868724 CRUSHED ROCK  84.24

 311.15CY868782

 1,500.00APR-JUN 2013/RENTAL944947

Total :  1,895.39

 153946 5/1/2013 0000202  COREY OIL COMPANY 73555 FUEL  40.71

Total :  40.71

 153947 5/1/2013 0002377  CORP IMAGE GROUP 502172 EVENT PRINTING  380.00

Total :  380.00

 153948 5/1/2013 0006352  COUPEVILLE SCHOOL DISTRICT 12-32 VOLUNTEER COMPENSATION  1,000.00

Total :  1,000.00

 153949 5/1/2013 0000211  CREDIT BUREAU OF ISLAND COUNTY 041213 COLLECTION FEE/09-029000-01-BLANK  185.98

Total :  185.98

 153950 5/1/2013 0000217  CUES, INC 385198 TITLER  139.10

 125.54CARDS385305

Total :  264.64

 153951 5/1/2013 0000222  CUSTOM ENGRAVING 13-300 ACRYLICS  1,187.00

Total :  1,187.00

 153952 5/1/2013 0005937  DEKOKER, STEVEN 041413 MARATHON WINNER  500.00

5Page:



05/01/2013

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

6

 3:29:41PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  500.00 153952 5/1/2013 0005937 0005937  DEKOKER, STEVEN

 153953 5/1/2013 0001815  DEPARTMENT OF RETIREMENT 981275 2012 TAX YEAR/OLD AGE AND SURVIVORS INSU  64.38

Total :  64.38

 153954 5/1/2013 0000253  DIVERSINT 98688 MONITOR  336.52

Total :  336.52

 153955 5/1/2013 0007086  DONOHUE, ROBERT 041413 MARATHON WINNER  100.00

Total :  100.00

 153956 5/1/2013 0000175  DUNN-TERRY, ROXANN EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  270.50

Total :  270.50

 153957 5/1/2013 0000257  DUTCH MAID CLEANERS 043013 APR 2013/LAUNDRY SERVICES  538.94

Total :  538.94

 153958 5/1/2013 0000273  EDGE ANALYTICAL, INC 13-05654 TESTING SERVICES  202.00

 260.00TESTING SERVICES13-05967

 18.00TESTING SERVICES13-06232

Total :  480.00

 153959 5/1/2013 0005842  EMERY, DEANNA TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  490.60

Total :  490.60

 153960 5/1/2013 0001666  ENVIRO-CLEAN EQUIPMENT 4016170 EYEBOLTS  68.63

 699.64WATER PUMPS13020602

Total :  768.27

 153961 5/1/2013 0006747  EQUINOX RESEARCH & CONSULTING 11-413-10 PROF SVC/PIT ROAD ARCHAEOLOGICAL RECOVER 216,369.56

Total :  216,369.56

 153962 5/1/2013 0003355  EZ-LINER 24776 REPAIR KITS  556.62

Total :  556.62

 153963 5/1/2013 0007105  FALK, STEVE 6144 MOORAGE REFUND  82.85

Total :  82.85

6Page:



05/01/2013

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

7

 3:29:41PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 153964 5/1/2013 0002900  FASTENAL WAOAK13830 M8 DIN  5.34

 16.82CABLETIESWAOAK13858

Total :  22.16

 153965 5/1/2013 0000308  FEDERAL EXPRESS 2-215-41434 SHIPPING  30.78

Total :  30.78

 153966 5/1/2013 0000355  FRONTIER 279-0841 CURRENT PHONE CHARGES  70.73

 58.95CURRENT PHONE CHARGES279-1060

 58.80CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-1669

 40.75CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-5190

 58.80CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-2530

 50.56CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-3541

 90.54CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-4091

 54.65CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-4150

 183.85CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-5551

Total :  667.63

 153967 5/1/2013 0000325  FRONTIER FORD 102866 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE  479.70

Total :  479.70

 153968 5/1/2013 0001706  GARDNER, PAT EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  500.00

 340.00EXP REIMBEXP REIMB

Total :  840.00

 153969 5/1/2013 0002767  GATEWAY CONTROLS, INC 2013659 TROUBLESHOOTING  427.19

Total :  427.19

 153970 5/1/2013 0000349  GRAINGER 9105990742 O RINGS  20.90

 123.51HEX NUTS/RATCHET9118290189

Total :  144.41

 153971 5/1/2013 0002940  GRAY & OSBORNE, INC 13404.00-4 PROF SVC/WATER SYSTEM PLAN UPDATE  3,278.63

Total :  3,278.63

 153972 5/1/2013 0004974  GREEN LIGHT SOLUTIONS 8221 MAINTENANCE & INSPECTIONS  940.00

Total :  940.00

7Page:



05/01/2013

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

8

 3:29:41PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 153973 5/1/2013 0002747  GUARDIAN SECURITY 419528 ALARM MONITORING  57.00

Total :  57.00

 153974 5/1/2013 0007090  HALL, MEGAN 041413 MARATHON WINNER  250.00

Total :  250.00

 153975 5/1/2013 0005008  HAMMER, RENEE TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  75.50

Total :  75.50

 153976 5/1/2013 0005311  HB JAEGER COMPANY, LLC 34544/2 SAMPLE STATION/ROD/KIT  2,684.17

 144.77LIDS34545/2

Total :  2,828.94

 153977 5/1/2013 0000323  HD FOWLER COMPANY I3346400 SETTER  2,402.27

 10.97FREIGHT CHARGESI3346937

Total :  2,413.24

 153978 5/1/2013 0005515  HDR ENGINEERING, INC 00393814-H PROF SVC/UTILITY RATE AND FEE UPDATE  1,171.28

Total :  1,171.28

 153979 5/1/2013 0007088  HEFFERNAN, CARYN 041413 MARATHON WINNER  100.00

Total :  100.00

 153980 5/1/2013 0001251  HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY 52634938 COMPUTER/MEMORY  909.82

Total :  909.82

 153981 5/1/2013 0007089  HILL, RYAN 041413 MARATHON WINNER  125.00

Total :  125.00

 153982 5/1/2013 0006452  HOAGLAND, JAMES EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  109.47

Total :  109.47

 153983 5/1/2013 0007106  HOLIDAY INN 173173 HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS  145.34

 145.34HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS173174

Total :  290.68

 153984 5/1/2013 0003095  HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 1028008 GRIDRE/INDUSTRL  97.76

-138.25SDX105107

8Page:



05/01/2013

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

9

 3:29:41PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 153984 5/1/2013 (Continued)0003095  HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES

 13.76TUB1590587

 82.76MORTAR2022191

 55.73BOARDS2027888

 13.41WALL MOLDS2062910

 83.33SAKRETE2560662

 34.44GRID/HOOKS/WIRE27007

 41.96BOARDS/XENBAR3020122

 31.59PRIMER/SCREWS3024928

 27.60HINGES/SWEEP/MIC3583945

 29.25PANEL BOARDS3592690

 16.61CRNRBEAD4024523

 7.048IN NTLT4024529

 9.20INSDECRNTOOL4024545

 20.59DRYWALL/KNIFE/CRNRBEAD4024657

-21.36BULLNOSE4093892

 7.58GMKEVLARL4571669

 138.25SCX4970916

 120.33TAPE/ANCHOR/STUDS/BULLNOSE5024210

 30.79NUTS/BULLNOSE5024355

 86.50MASTERTLBX/BOX5025485

 75.05STUDS/BUNGEE/MORTAR5560488

 49.81NUTS5590920

 9.22PTN5590964

 10.46EYE/RATCHET560226

 134.64WORKHRSTE/PUSHBROOMS6010785

 25.92SAKRETE6023884

 12.40TIES/CAULK/FOAM TAPE6029379

 30.97TUBE6052807

 72.11POTTING/HAMMERSET/DROP IN6163419

 41.23WEDGE/SHIMS/STUDS7023715

 31.68PRIME/PROGRDWB7026412

 257.35POLY/NUTS7029305

 22.75BRACKET/BRACES/TESTER/BITS7053043

-12.36WEDGES7093640

 2.83STUDS7571376

 6.01SLEEVES7571406

9Page:



05/01/2013

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

10

 3:29:41PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 153984 5/1/2013 (Continued)0003095  HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES

 6.40TILE8026302

-24.97SWIVEL LIGHT8094532

 21.70BALLAST8572169

 11.86BRUSHES8591450

 48.82LIGHT/LEDS8591478

 79.52STUDS9023294

 13.21GDF9023298

 157.48MINI/LIGHTS9591382

 47.75STRETCH WRAP9592154

Total :  1,920.71

 153985 5/1/2013 0005250  HONEYMOON BAY COFFEE ROASTERS 696784 COFFEE SUPPLIES  149.02

Total :  149.02

 153986 5/1/2013 0006047  HORIZON 3M086184 PULLEY/IDLER ASSY  185.22

 11.97BELT DRIVE3M086304

 39.12PULLEY/SPACER3M087483

Total :  236.31

 153987 5/1/2013 0005939  HOUK, ELVA 041413 MARATHON WINNER  200.00

Total :  200.00

 153988 5/1/2013 0005935  HOUK, JONATHAN 041413 MARATHON WINNER  300.00

Total :  300.00

 153989 5/1/2013 0005872  IMPAIRED DRIVING IMPACT PANEL 041113 APR 2013/DUI/UNDERAGE DRINKING PREVENTIO 166.67

Total :  166.67

 153990 5/1/2013 0000417  INDUSTRIAL BOLT & SUPPLY 532360-2 PARTS  11.71

 372.37BOLT/SWASHERS/GRIP/PIPE/SLIDE/RINGS533482-1

Total :  384.08

 153991 5/1/2013 0002540  INSTITUTE OF TRANSPORTATION 36862 MANUAL  560.00

Total :  560.00

 153992 5/1/2013 0000411  ISLAND COUNTY TREASURER 050113 CRIME VICTIM COMPENSATION  206.35

10Page:



05/01/2013

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

11

 3:29:41PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  206.35 153992 5/1/2013 0000411 0000411  ISLAND COUNTY TREASURER

 153993 5/1/2013 0000415  ISLAND DISPOSAL 040213 MAR 2013/COLLECTION CHARGES  7,942.45

Total :  7,942.45

 153994 5/1/2013 0000454  JET CITY EQUIPMENT RENTAL 18771 DUMPNIG  63.94

 17.83DUMPNIG18789

Total :  81.77

 153995 5/1/2013 0007104  JOHNS, GUS 4816 MOORAGE REFUND  401.51

Total :  401.51

 153996 5/1/2013 0007085  KENT, STEVEN 041413 MARATHON WINNER  200.00

Total :  200.00

 153997 5/1/2013 0000476  KERR, JACK 04-13 APR 2013/PUBLIC DEFENSE SCREENING  1,400.00

Total :  1,400.00

 153998 5/1/2013 0000477  KESSELRING'S 38734 RINGS  76.04

Total :  76.04

 153999 5/1/2013 0000485  KRIEG CONSTRUCTION 7846 ASPHALT  299.36

 291.97ASPHALT7855

 301.58ASPHALT7859

Total :  892.91

 154000 5/1/2013 0000494  LAKESIDE INDUSTRIES 5031798MB ASPHALT  448.41

Total :  448.41

 154001 5/1/2013 0006844  LAWLER, CHERYL TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  183.50

Total :  183.50

 154002 5/1/2013 0005367  LIFESTYLES RECREATIONAL 9589517 REAR/FRT  685.07

Total :  685.07

 154003 5/1/2013 0000515  LOGGERS & CONTRACTORS, INC 00058318 PARTS  106.44

 310.10HOSES/O RINGS00058434

11Page:



05/01/2013

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

12

 3:29:41PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  416.54 154003 5/1/2013 0000515 0000515  LOGGERS & CONTRACTORS, INC

 154004 5/1/2013 0001909  LONG, JAY 1 DRIVING SERVICES  132.00

Total :  132.00

 154005 5/1/2013 0007087  MACKAY, SARAH 041413 MARATHON WINNER  300.00

Total :  300.00

 154006 5/1/2013 0000660  MARKET PLACE FOOD & DRUG 411639 GROCERIES  406.02

 509.07GROCERIES411640

 398.01GROCERIES695951

Total :  1,313.10

 154007 5/1/2013 0006072  MASTER'S TOUCH, LLC M131214 TMT STORAGE/MAR 2013 LATE NOTICES  326.10

Total :  326.10

 154008 5/1/2013 0004818  MICHAEL BOBBINK LAND USE SRVCS 041813 APR 2013/HEARING EXAMINER SERVICES  1,500.00

Total :  1,500.00

 154009 5/1/2013 0000538  MID AMERICAN RESEARCH CHEMICAL 0494113-IN BAGS/SOAP DISPENSER/DEGREASER  443.50

Total :  443.50

 154010 5/1/2013 0005445  MONTOYA, MATTHEW J 91 APR 2013/PUBLIC DEFENSE  5,500.00

Total :  5,500.00

 154011 5/1/2013 0004423  MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY SERVICES 00400897_SNV STRAPS/BANDS  187.43

 598.85CORD/CARABINERS/PULLEYS00401745_SNV

 97.21CORDS00402574_SNV

 48.48SEAL/BACK UP RING/O-RING00403413_SNV

Total :  931.97

 154012 5/1/2013 0000589  MUNICIPAL RESEARCH SERVICES AG11223 MRSC ROSTERS  120.00

Total :  120.00

 154013 5/1/2013 0005005  MUNNS, BETH TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  707.15

Total :  707.15

 154014 5/1/2013 0006244  MY BINDING.COM 41288848 BINDING COILS  25.64

12Page:



05/01/2013

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

13

 3:29:41PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  25.64 154014 5/1/2013 0006244 0006244  MY BINDING.COM

 154015 5/1/2013 0002671  NATIONAL BARRICADE CO, LLC 510156 BARRICADES  8,760.97

Total :  8,760.97

 154016 5/1/2013 0006323  NAUTICAL SOFTWARE SOLUTION 12722 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE  975.00

Total :  975.00

 154017 5/1/2013 0000616  NEW PIG CORPORATION 4586389-00 SKIMMER/OIL  1,062.28

Total :  1,062.28

 154018 5/1/2013 0000618  NEXTEL COMMUNICATIONS 343702312-136 CURRENT COMM CHARGES  3,620.40

Total :  3,620.40

 154019 5/1/2013 0000610  NORTH CENTRAL LABORATORIES 319671 AMMONIA  248.56

Total :  248.56

 154020 5/1/2013 0006855  NORTHWEST YACHTING MAGAZINE 43772 ADVERTISING  432.00

Total :  432.00

 154021 5/1/2013 0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE 219723 FREIGHT  26.69

 21.72V BELT219939

 65.20AUTOCUT219984

-14.12CASH BOX219986

 39.09LINE/KNEELER/OIL219996

 5.97CEMENT220066

 24.71CAR WASH/CAULK/MAGNIFYING GLASS/ROPE220135

 6.29CLIP/FASTENERS220258

 26.42ACETONE/PAINTBRUSHES220298

 40.74WIRE/BUSHING220338

 3.79FLAPPER220340

 14.12CASH BOX220375

 38.03CABLE220433

 6.16KEY220495

 38.01TOOL/DOOR HOLDER220590

 3.04FASTENERS220601

 8.14BALLCOCK220669

 44.55SCREWDRIVER/GATE VALVE220677

13Page:



05/01/2013

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

14

 3:29:41PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 154021 5/1/2013 (Continued)0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE

 28.23RSTP SPRAY/WRENCH220715

-4.89RSTP SPRAY/WRENCH220716

 4.84LIGHT/SCREWDRIVER/BRUSH/ADAPTER/LOOP220733

Total :  426.73

 154022 5/1/2013 0000668  OAK HARBOR AUTO CENTER 001-162832 FILTERS  54.27

 22.34HOSE001-162839

 584.94ENGINE001-162920

 4.40FILTERS001-162936

 17.08BONDO001-162964

 4.46FILTERS001-162993

 18.97SOCKET FOG LAMP001-163019

 6.33WIRE001-163040

 13.12BLADERUNNER LAWN001-163177

 26.26FILTERS001-163187

 173.26INSTALLATION001-163201

 24.19FILTERS001-163216

 41.71FILTERS001-163248

 3.49HEATER001-163275

 7.31BRAKE FLUID001-163300

 5.42BARRICADE001-163327

-14.89FILTERS001-163333

 55.57BONDO001-163503

 17.72FILTERS001-163505

 3.95TELESCOPING MAGN001-163756

 13.01RELAY001-163761

 57.60FILTERS001-163767

-68.48RETURN001-163775

 146.02SEAL001-163821

 232.40TAPER CUP001-163841

 4.74RAD CAP001-163902

 18.49LED001-164057

 28.96FLASHER001-164058

 4.08PARTS001-164240

 5.04FUSE001-164312

 232.40TAPER CUPS001-164355

14Page:



05/01/2013

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

15

 3:29:41PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 154022 5/1/2013 (Continued)0000668  OAK HARBOR AUTO CENTER

 161.02SEALS001-164402

 9.98BATTER/STYLE001-164499

Total :  1,915.16

 154023 5/1/2013 0000681  OAK HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 0000120588 APR 2013/COMPUTER NETWORK SUPPORT  6,708.33

Total :  6,708.33

 154024 5/1/2013 0007027  ORSWELL EVENTS, LLC 2013037 MARATHON SUPPORT  9,258.00

Total :  9,258.00

 154025 5/1/2013 0000698  P & L GENERAL CONTRACTORS 2841 RENTAL  217.40

Total :  217.40

 154026 5/1/2013 0001596  PACIFIC TORQUE, LLC 086640 THERMOSTAT/GASKET/MANUAL  99.37

 99.05MANUALS086662

Total :  198.42

 154027 5/1/2013 0005783  PARTSMASTER 20668804 RATCHETS  142.47

Total :  142.47

 154028 5/1/2013 0007084  PENDLETON, JOHN 04-7=1 COVERAGE  150.00

Total :  150.00

 154029 5/1/2013 0006386  PENSKE TRUCK LEASING CO, LP C041388145 RENTAL  122.19

 215.79RENTALC041388211

 329.26RENTALC041388293

 222.12RENTALC041388427

Total :  889.36

 154030 5/1/2013 0000709  PERS 00981030 MAR 2013/UNFUNDED LIABILITY  26.98

Total :  26.98

 154031 5/1/2013 0000299  PLACE, SANDRA TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  112.23

Total :  112.23

 154032 5/1/2013 0000724  PONY MAILING & BUSINESS CENTER 207259 SHIPPING  8.73

15Page:



05/01/2013

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

16

 3:29:41PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  8.73 154032 5/1/2013 0000724 0000724  PONY MAILING & BUSINESS CENTER

 154033 5/1/2013 0007064  PORATH, NICHOLE 041413 MARATHON WINNER  500.00

Total :  500.00

 154034 5/1/2013 0000725  PORTCO CORPORATION 164333 COLOR PRINTS  2,986.32

Total :  2,986.32

 154035 5/1/2013 0007083  PR DIAMOND PRODUCTS, INC 0027522-IN CONCRETE  192.00

Total :  192.00

 154036 5/1/2013 0006866  PROTHMAN 2013-3840 ATTORNEY SEARCH REIMBURSEABLE EXPENSES 1,545.38

 6,166.66CITY ATTORNEY SEARCH2013-3862

Total :  7,712.04

 154037 5/1/2013 0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY 200000136776 ELECTRICITY/1301 SE CATALINA DRIVE  34.78

 3,234.74ELECTRICITY/DISPOSAL PLANT200000881421

 9.66ELECTRICITY/CITY BEACH PARK200000919684

 2,513.70ELECTRICITY/CITY SHOP200000947859

 13.54ELECTRICITY/BATHROOMS200001097589

 16.86ELECTRICITY/1888 NE 5TH AVENUE200001884218

 38.27ELECTRICITY/180 PIT ROAD200002035950

 225.15ELECTRICITY/30515 STATE ROUTE 20200002036164

 82.82ELECTRICITY/34777 STATE ROUTE 20200002036719

 135.93ELECTRICITY/BAYSHORE DR & BEEKSMA DR200002036917

 20.54ELECTRICITY/2000 SW SCENIC HEIGHTS200002037097

 10.24ELECTRICITY/1780 SW SPRINGFIELD COURT200002037261

 105.08ELECTRICITY/3285 SW SCENIC HEIGHTS200002037501

 9.66ELECTRICITY/552 NW CLIPPER DRIVE200002170617

 9.66ELECTRICITY/2075 SW FT200002511539

 153.36ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DRIVE200002723381

 20.71ELECTRICITY/1000 SE IRELAND STREET200003267636

 120.61ELECTRICITY/1957 FORT NUGENT ROAD200003459654

 128.36ELECTRICITY/800 SE MIDWAY BOULEVARD200004562878

 9.66ELECTRICITY/1577 NW 8TH AVENUE200004856627

 9.66ELECTRICITY/SMITH PARK200005263310

 11.41ELECTRICITY/KITCHEN200005461666

16Page:



05/01/2013

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

17

 3:29:41PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 154037 5/1/2013 (Continued)0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY

 5,454.87ELECTRICITY/700 SE PIONEER WAY200005933094

 12.69ELECTRICITY/5941 STATE ROUTE 20200006103952

 157.04ELECTRICITY/SW ERIE ST SW BARRINGTON DR200007268135

 167.64ELECTRICITY/700 AV W & MIDWAY200007702943

 9.66ELECTRICITY/75 SE JEROME STREET200007824192

 10.24ELECTRICITY/FABER ST & HARVEST DRIVE200008386993

 17.94ELECTRICITY/ANNEX200008816189

 35.81ELECTRICITY/2330 SW ROSARIO PLACE200010322895

 108.03ELECTRICITY/1948 NW CROSBY AVENUE200010499248

 25.70ELECTRICITY/1661 NE 16TH AVENUE200010499446

 83.46ELECTRICITY/651 SE BAYSHORE DRIVE200010530240

 10.24ELECTRICITY/CITY BEACH PARK200010530802

 212.12ELECTRICITY/940 SE PIONEER WAY200010531024

 10.24ELECTRICITY/1300 NE BIG BERRY LOOP200010531172

 150.83ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DRIVE200010531354

 104.94ELECTRICITY/800 SE DOCK STREET200010531941

 126.04ELECTRICITY/CITY BEACH PARK BALLPK200010699706

 1,033.99ELECTRICITY/SR 20 & 650 AV W200011316839

 21.07ELECTRICITY/ADULT CARE CENTER200011551930

 22.93ELECTRICITY/285 SE JEROME STREET200011579964

 9.66ELECTRICITY/128 E WHIDBEY AVENUE200012220337

 1,174.16ELECTRICITY/FIRE STATION200012278087

 3,313.00ELECTRICITY/TREATMENT PLANT200012425357

 17.22ELECTRICITY/PIONEER PARK200012838765

 3,151.29ELECTRICITY/MARINA200013370750

 405.58ELECTRICITY/672 CHRISTIAN ROAD200013734963

 148.90ELECTRICITY/1540 SE PIONEER WAY200013968405

 69.16ELECTRICITY/1370 SE DOCK STREET200014151886

 930.97ELECTRICITY/CITY HALL200014596478

 9.66ELECTRICITY/1678 SW 8TH AVENUE200015399153

 123.11ELECTRICITY/600 NE 7TH AVENUE200015618321

 74.30ELECTRICITY/287 SE CABOT DRIVE200015685833

 479.14ELECTRICITY/690 SW HELLER ROAD200017255619

 521.82ELECTRICITY/CITY BEACH PARK200017441482

 94.21ELECTRICITY/1367 NW CROSBY AVENUE200017575347

 77.87ELECTRICITY/3300 OLD GOLDIE ROAD200017653656

17Page:



05/01/2013

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

18

 3:29:41PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 154037 5/1/2013 (Continued)0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY

 184.30ELECTRICITY/1000 SW THORNBERRY DRIVE200017654415

 10.77ELECTRICITY/2081 NE 9TH AVENUE200017853025

 1,527.88ELECTRICITY/POLICE STATION200017968427

 49.55ELECTRICITY/90 SE PIONEER WAY200019043344

 37.73ELECTRICITY/1137 NW KATHLEEN DRIVE200019500517

 24.85ELECTRICITY/626 CHRISTIAN ROAD200020179194

 895.47ELECTRICITY/SENIOR CENTER200020235012

 10.59ELECTRICITY/KITCHEN200020308330

 47.21ELECTRICITY/980 SW MCCROHAN STREET200022441113

 33.63ELECTRICITY/945 E WHIDBEY AVENUE200023231067

 55.71ELECTRICITY/700 W HELLER ROAD200023360569

 32.39ELECTRICITY/1285 NE TAFTSON STREET200024715845

 249.81ELECTRICITY/3350 STATE ROUTE 20200025075157

 9.84ELECTRICITY/650 NE 7TH AVENUE20004342099

 357.69ELECTRICITY/SW BEEKSMA300000005003

 49.12ELECTRICITY/PARKS300000010409

Total :  28,866.47

 154038 5/1/2013 0002806  RADIA 761051-RADA INMATE SERVICES  200.00

 117.60INMATE SERVICES761051-RADA2

Total :  317.60

 154039 5/1/2013 0000960  REVENUE, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 040813 MAR 2013/SALES USE TAX  46,934.40

Total :  46,934.40

 154040 5/1/2013 0006733  RH WELCH, INC 042913 REGISTRATION  450.00

Total :  450.00

 154041 5/1/2013 0003784  SAFETYLINE 22673 JACKETS  208.37

Total :  208.37

 154042 5/1/2013 0005967  SEATTLE AUTOMOTIVE DIST 06-799406 MOTOR  94.50

 116.97RELAY06-799709

Total :  211.47

 154043 5/1/2013 0007082  SELCH, MARCIA 1 TRAVEL REFUND  370.00

18Page:



05/01/2013

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

19

 3:29:41PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  370.00 154043 5/1/2013 0007082 0007082  SELCH, MARCIA

 154044 5/1/2013 0000809  SENIOR SERVICES OF ISLAND OH03-2013 MAR 2013/SENIOR SERVICES  1,500.00

Total :  1,500.00

 154045 5/1/2013 0000816  SHELL FLEET PLUS 065163545304 FUEL  190.15

Total :  190.15

 154046 5/1/2013 0000822  SHRED-IT USA, INC 101310896 SHREDDING  99.00

Total :  99.00

 154047 5/1/2013 0005444  SIERRA, GEORGINA D 042213 APR 2013/PUBLIC DEFENSE  2,500.00

Total :  2,500.00

 154048 5/1/2013 0007091  SIGNORELLA, ANN 041413 MARATHON WINNER  125.00

Total :  125.00

 154049 5/1/2013 0000831  SIX ROBBLEES', INC 14-265626 VALVE  65.57

-862.64COMPRESSOR14-265765

 530.21BARKE DRUM/KIT/STOP BOX14-265860

 54.07BRAKE VALVE14-266374

 14.96POLE14-266473

 68.37JACK14-266474

 122.59LEDS14-266821

 287.10SPRING BRAKE1-781583

Total :  280.23

 154050 5/1/2013 0000814  SKAGIT FARMERS SUPPLY 2972913 LP-1 GALLON  259.48

 29.28PROPANE345055

 13.02GLOVES345778

Total :  301.78

 154051 5/1/2013 0006605  SKAGIT POWDER COATING, INC 10880 POWDER COAT  325.00

Total :  325.00

 154052 5/1/2013 0000853  SKAGIT RIVER STEEL & RECYCLING 30374 FLAT BAR/PIPE  173.03

Total :  173.03

19Page:



05/01/2013

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

20

 3:29:41PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 154053 5/1/2013 0000876  SKAGIT VALLEY COLLEGE 22838 1ST QTR 2013/BUILDING OPERATIONS  15,950.91

Total :  15,950.91

 154054 5/1/2013 0004821  SME SOLUTIONS, LLC 135125 SENSOR  460.05

Total :  460.05

 154055 5/1/2013 0000843  SOLID WASTE SYSTEMS, INC 0062209-in VALVE ARM  927.33

Total :  927.33

 154056 5/1/2013 0000846  SOUND PUBLISHING 536033 MAR 2013/PUBLICATIONS-ACCT#80125600  2,543.54

 62.30ORD 1654 & 1656764891

 161.98BECKETT LANDING764892

 105.91PUBLIC HEARING764908

Total :  2,873.73

 154057 5/1/2013 0000851  SPRINT 414568819-065 CURRENT CELL CHARGES  508.09

Total :  508.09

 154058 5/1/2013 0000860  STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY 042213 LIFE/POCFFS  283.13

Total :  283.13

 154059 5/1/2013 0003883  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 3195686739 STAPLER  8.14

 42.59PAPER3195686740

 126.19PENS/INK/PAPER3195686741

 258.04THERMAL ROLLS/TONER3195686742

 33.87NOTES/BOXES/FOLDERS3195686743

 681.52POST ITS/INK3195686744

 256.29TONER3196121088

 256.17BINDER CLIPS/ENVELOPES/PAPER3196121089

 4.88PAPER CLIPS3196121090

 101.53NOTEBOOK/CLASP/MOUSE REST/LABELS3196121091

 51.72ENVELOPES3196121092

 282.51LAUNDRY SOAP3196121093

 47.03CYBERPOWER STANDBY3196121096

 93.13FOOD SERVICE GLOVES3196121097

 24.37PENS/ALCOHOL WIPES3196121098

 160.88PAPER CUPS3196121099

20Page:



05/01/2013

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

21

 3:29:41PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 154059 5/1/2013 (Continued)0003883  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE

 116.96TROPHY CUPS3196121100

 236.92TONER3196121105

 2.76BLUE SCALLOPED3196788199

 45.83SPLS COPY3197543554

 153.96INK3197543555

 56.97LABELS3197543556

 19.01ADD ROLLS/PENS/RUBBERBANDS3197543557

 57.81RUBBERBANDS/STAPLER/PENS3197543558

 274.12BATTERY BACKUP3197543559

 27.13DAY PLANNER3198000745

 8.50FOLDERS3198000746

 86.95UPS3198000747

Total :  3,515.78

 154060 5/1/2013 0003749  STUMP, PATRICK L 1 DRIVING SERVICES  102.00

 132.00DRIVING SERVICES1

Total :  234.00

 154061 5/1/2013 0000874  SURETY PEST CONTROL 357659 PEST EXTERMINATION  59.79

Total :  59.79

 154062 5/1/2013 0006730  SWINOMISH INDIAN TRIBAL 042313 MAR 2013/OAK HARBOR SITE SERVICES  64,705.60

Total :  64,705.60

 154063 5/1/2013 0000897  TMG SERVICES, INC 0034601-IN KITS/BELTS  864.25

Total :  864.25

 154064 5/1/2013 0006766  TTT ENVIRONMENTAL is130124 PUMP REPAIR  225.01

Total :  225.01

 154065 5/1/2013 0000918  UNITED FIRE SERVICE 29270 SHIFT REPAIR KIT  92.59

Total :  92.59

 154066 5/1/2013 0000923  UNITED PARCEL SERVICE 0000A0182W133 SHIPPING  20.00

 10.03SHIPPING0000A0182W143

 10.03SHIPPING0000A0182W153

 20.61SHIPPING0000A0182W163

21Page:



05/01/2013

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

22

 3:29:41PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  60.67 154066 5/1/2013 0000923 0000923  UNITED PARCEL SERVICE

 154067 5/1/2013 0000922  UNUM LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY 041813 LONG TERM CARE  142.20

Total :  142.20

 154068 5/1/2013 0004903  US BANK 4485591000304067 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  3,229.78

Total :  3,229.78

 154069 5/1/2013 0000926  USABLUEBOOK 926727 ELECTRODE  290.15

 479.17PUMP927356

Total :  769.32

 154070 5/1/2013 0005680  WAMSLEY, DAVE 13414 FINISH LINE MUSIC  1,300.00

Total :  1,300.00

 154071 5/1/2013 0005651  WASHINGTON CRANE & HOIST, INC 0018294-IN HOIST MAINTENANCE  516.33

 2,381.15WIRE ROPE INSTALLATION0018385-IN

Total :  2,897.48

 154072 5/1/2013 0006853  WEED, GRAAFSTRA & BENSON, INC, LAW OFFICES OF10 PROF SVC/GENERAL 2013  18,453.00

Total :  18,453.00

 154073 5/1/2013 0007094  WESTERN EQUIPMENT DIST, INC 722150.2 VALVES/DIPSTICK/KEYS/RADIATOR HOSE  398.70

Total :  398.70

 154074 5/1/2013 0001039  WESTERN PETERBILT, INC S778411 FLEET-WEB  383.90

Total :  383.90

 154075 5/1/2013 0001000  WHIDBEY AUTO PARTS, INC. 172963 BRAKE FLUID  25.96

Total :  25.96

 154076 5/1/2013 0001007  WHIDBEY CLEANERS 237384 EMBROIDERY  28.26

 43.48EMBROIDERY238273

Total :  71.74

 154077 5/1/2013 0000675  WHIDBEY COMMUNITY PHYSICIANS 674637 PHYSICAL/RILEY  225.00

Total :  225.00

22Page:



05/01/2013

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

23

 3:29:41PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 154078 5/1/2013 0006151  WHIDBEY MARKETPLACE & NEWS,LLC 6918 ADVERTISING  775.00

Total :  775.00

 154079 5/1/2013 0001017  WHIDBEY PRINTERS 46119 BUSINESS CARDS/KETCHUM  54.08

 263.28PAYROLL CHECKS46134

 278.27WINDOW ENVELOPES46146

 405.45FIRE & LIFE SAFETY INSPECTION FORMS46160

 584.91CASH RECEIPTS46172

 12.98PLATE HOLDER46177

Total :  1,598.97

 154080 5/1/2013 0004185  WHIDBEY SEATAC SHUTTLE 041613 TRANSPORTATION SERVICES  2,745.00

Total :  2,745.00

 154081 5/1/2013 0001014  WHITNEY EQUIPMENT COMPANY, INC 73454 SALT  2,409.26

Total :  2,409.26

 154082 5/1/2013 0006348  WYMAN, ANDREW 041413 MARATHON WINNER  250.00

Total :  250.00

Bank total :  733,000.58 182 Vouchers for bank code : bank

 733,000.58Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 182

23Page:



















 City of Oak Harbor 

City Council Agenda Bill 

 

  

Whidbey News Times (attached) and a recent comment at a City Council meeting raised this same issue.  
 
After consulting with the Interim City Attorney, the administration supports City Council action to 
establish a clear policy for the presentation of invocations at Council meetings. This policy, which would 
continue to allow invocations of a non-denominational nature, would extend invitations to all members of 
the clergy to deliver invocations and would establish that the invocations should embrace the collective 
prayerful thoughts of all present in an ecumenical manner rather than “in the name of . . .” a particular 
deity. Anyone delivering an invocation at a City Council meeting would be provided a copy of this policy. 
 
The proposed Resolution No. 13-06 has been modified from a similar resolution approved for the City of 
Marysville. 
 
STANDING COMMITTEE REPORT 
This item has not been presented at any standing committee meetings. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 
Discuss and take action on Resolution No. 13-06 as appropriate. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Draft Resolution No. 13-06 
Letter from Freedom from Religion Foundation, 16 February 2012 
Letter to the Editor, 26 February 2013 



Resolution 13-06 - Page 1 of 1 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  13-06 
 

A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR ESTABLISHING  POLICY 
FOR THE PRESENTATION OF INVOCATIONS AT CITY COUNCIL MEET-
INGS 

  
WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Oak Harbor City Council to set the tone for the City of Oak Harbor 
for the conduct of its City Council meetings during 2013 and for years to come; and 

 
WHEREAS, for the betterment of the City of Oak Harbor, it shall be the policy of the City to request 
non-denominational invocations to be presented at the commencement of City Council meetings; and  

 
WHEREAS, it is the wish of the Oak Harbor City Council to provide general guidelines for participation 
by the religious representatives of the greater Oak Harbor area in the presentation of invocations at City 
Council meetings; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor, Washington 
as follows: 

 
1. The Oak Harbor City Council will begin the City Council meetings with a non-

denominational invocation presented by members of the greater Oak Harbor area religious 
representatives. 

 
2. The City will advertise at least once per year that it is seeking interested members of the 

clergy from any and all religious denominations to present invocations at City Council meet-
ings.  A sign up procedure will be established by the City for scheduling of interested reli-
gious representatives. 

 
3. The invocation should not be longer than 90 seconds and the conclusion of the prayer should 

embrace the collective prayerful thoughts of all present in an ecumenical manner rather than 
“in the name of…” a particular deity. 

 
4. The City shall endeavor to provide a copy of this resolution to each religious representative 

in advance of his or her presentation of the invocation.   
 
PASSED by the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor and approved by its Mayor this 7th day of May, 
2013. 

 
      CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
 
      _______________________________ 
      SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST:     Approved as to Form: 
 
________________________  ________________________________ 
Valerie J. Loffler, City Clerk   Grant Weed, Interim City Attorney 















 
RESOLUTION 13-10 – Page 1 of 1 
 
 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR  
RESOLUTION NO. 13-10  

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SALE OF A BOAT FOR “MARINA 
CHARGES” 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council duly held a public meeting on May 7, 2013, wherein 
the City Council considered whether or not a vessel located in the Oak Harbor 
Marina with vessel ID WN 498 EG is abandoned; and 
 
WHEREAS, having found that the vessel was moored or stored at the Oak Har-
bor Marina; and  

 
WHEREAS, storage charges owing on the vessel were not paid in full within 90 
days from the time the owner of the vessel was notified by registered mail of the 
delinquent charges; and 
 
WHEREAS, the owner was notified of their right to commence legal proceeding 
to contest that such charges are owing; and 
 
WHEREAS, the owner has not commenced legal proceedings; and 
 
WHEREAS, the vessel is presumed to have been abandoned by the owner; and  
 
WHEREAS, the procedures required by RCW 53.08 have been complied with; 
Now, Therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor that the vessel 
above-described which has been abandoned by its owner shall be sold at public 
auction at a time and place to be fixed by the Harbormaster after giving due no-
tice to the listed owner at the last known address and listing the same in a news-
paper of general circulation in Island County at least ten (10) days and not more 
than twenty (20) days before the sale. 
 
PASSED by the City Council and approved by its Mayor this 7th day of May 2013. 
        

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
 
__________________________ 

      SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 
 
Attest:      Approved as to form: 
 
___________________________ _______________________________ 
Valerie J. Loffler, City Clerk  Grant K. Weed, Interim City Attorney 
 















City of Oak Harbor 

City Council Agenda Bill 

 

 

 
This proposal is not new to the City.  The artist Wayne Lewis presented his proposal during the Pioneer 
Way construction project when archaeological resources were discovered in the roadway.  His original 
proposal was to locate the sculpture adjacent to the archaeological find.  However, due to the sensitive 
nature of the discovery for the City and the Tribes, Mr. Lewis withdrew his proposal. 
 
Since then Mr. Lewis has been working with the Swinomish Tribe to refine his sculpture and its 
location.  The new proposal at the location of Pioneer Way and Dock Street has a letter of support 
(attached) from the Swinomish Indian Tribal Community. 
 
The artist is proposing to volunteer his time for the sculpture but is requesting the City to contribute 
$6,074 towards the molding and the casting of the bronze sculpture.  The expenses associated with the 
concrete pedestal for the sculpture is being donated by Concrete Nor’west. 
 
The Arts Commission reviewed the artist’s request at it November 15, 2012 meeting and voted 
unanimously to recommend that the City Council approve the proposal to acquire the sculpture. 
 
STANDING COMMITTEE REPORT 
The Government Services Committee reviewed the proposal on December 11, 2012.   
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
Approve the resolution authorizing the expenditure of funds from the Arts Acquisition Funds and 
authorizing the Mayor to enter into a contract with Wayne Lewis for the acquisition of the art piece 
“Island Spirit” as proposed. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Proposal by Wayne Lewis for “Island Spirit” 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION 13-11 – Page 1 of 1 
 
 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
RESOLUTION NO. 13-11 

 
A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF OAK HARBOR AUTHORIZ-
ING THE COMMISSION AND ACQUISITION OF THE PUBLIC ART KNOWN 
AS THE “ISLAND SPIRIT,” CREATED BY ARTIST WAYNE LEWIS   

 
WHEREAS, the city finds that public artistic expression of all kinds enhance the cultural, eco-
nomic, educational and social life of the community and benefits the health and welfare of the 
City’s residence: and  
 
WHEREAS, the City finds it appropriate, necessary, and desirable to promote and support public 
experiences of the visual arts and artistic disciplines for the good of the citizens of Oak Harbor: 
and  
 
WHEREAS, the Arts Commission was created on October 18, 2005, as an advisory body to the 
Mayor and the City Council to foster arts and cultural programs, foster the development of a lo-
cal arts community, encourage an environment for the success of working artists and further the 
vision of Oak Harbor as a vibrant and progressive community: and 
 
WHEREAS, the Arts Acquisition and Maintenance Fund was created on April 7, 2009 by impos-
ing the .25% utility tax on water, sewer and solid waste utilities, since an on-going steady source 
of funding for the arts was desirable; and   
 
WHEREAS,  the Arts Commission reviewed an art piece known as “Island Spirit” by artist 
Wayne Lewis proposed for Pioneer Way and has recommended approval; and 
 
WHEREAS, the artist Wayne Lewis wishes to donate his time and effort for the “Island Spirit” 
and has requested $6074 towards other expenses related to the art; and 
 
WHEREAS, as of the end of March 2013, the balance in the Art Acquisition and Maintenance 
Fund is approximately $28,435; and  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor, Wash-
ington, the Mayor is authorized to commission the acquisition of the “Island Spirit”, created by 
artist Wayne Lewis, for the Pioneer Way Improvement Project. 
 
PASSED by the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor and approved by its Mayor this 7th day 
of May, 2013. 
      CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
  
      _____________________________ 
      SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 
 
Attest:      Approved as to Form: 
 
__________________________  _____________________________ 
Valerie J. Loffler, City Clerk   Grant Weed, Interim City Attorney 

















May 7, 2013 – WWTP – Professional Services Agreement with ERCI 
Page 2 of 3 

March 19, 2013 also signified the start of the preliminary design process when city council 
authorized an amendment to the professional services agreement with Carollo Engineers.  One of 
the first steps in the amended scope of work is to finalize the location of the wastewater 
treatment plant. 
 
The proposed scope of services include providing the city with additional information regarding 
cultural resources in the Windjammer Vicinity that will be used to help select the preferred 
location for the new WWTP.  Once a preferred site is selected by the charrette team and 
approved by City Council, ERCI will perform an archaeological survey before a final 
determination is made on the property. 
 
ERCI was selected based on qualifications and interviews conducted by the city in March of 
2012. 
 
Scope of Services 
The attached scope of services (Exhibit A) represents the tasks necessary to assist the city in 
finalizing the location of the new wastewater treatment plant.   
 
The scope of work is as follows: 

 Develop a sensitivity map for the Windjammer Vicinity based on existing studies, 
archival and geoarchaeological research and a pedestrian survey.  

 Attend up to 4 meetings to assist in planning.  
 Monitoring and screening sediments from machine excavating of 4 test areas. Two for 

each of the two proposed facilities alternatives.  
 Provide report to state, federal and tribal standards. 

 
The scope of work assumes the city will provide assistance with any excavation work that may 
be necessary. 
 
Schedule 
The proposed scope of work is intended to provide archaeological services through the 
acquisition of property for the new wastewater treatment plant.  Under the current schedule, this 
process is expected to be completed by the end of September, 2013.  The contract has been 
written to expire December 31, 2013.  Should additional effort be required once the site has been 
selected, a separate scope of services would be negotiated. 
 
CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP 
This item was discussed at the April 24, 2013 City Council Workshop. 
 
CITY COUNCIL PREVIOUS ACTIONS 
March 19, 2013 – Council motion authorizing the Mayor to sign Consultant Agreement 
Amendment Number 6 with Carollo Engineers for additional site investigation related to a new 
wastewater treatment plant.  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
Authorize the Mayor to sign a Professional Services Agreement with Equinox Research 
Consulting International for Archaeological Services related to the new wastewater treatment 
plant in the amount of $14,332.98 and a management reserve of $2,000.00.  



May 7, 2013 – WWTP – Professional Services Agreement with ERCI 
Page 3 of 3 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

 Professional Services Agreement 
 Exhibit A – Scope of Services 



Professional Services Agreement - 1 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 
 

THIS AGREEMENT, is made and entered into in duplicate this 7th day of May, 2013, by and 
between the CITY OF OAK HARBOR, a Washington municipal corporation, hereinafter 
referred to as the "CITY" and Equinox Research and Consulting International, hereinafter 
referred to as the "SERVICE PROVIDER". 
 
WHEREAS, the CITY desires to have certain services and/or tasks performed as set forth below 
requiring specialized skills and other supportive capabilities; and 
 
WHEREAS, sufficient CITY resources are not available to provide such services; and 
 
WHEREAS, the SERVICE PROVIDER represents the SERVICE PROVIDER is qualified and 
possesses sufficient skills and the necessary capabilities, including technical and professional 
expertise, where required, to perform the services and/or tasks set forth in this Agreement. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions, covenants and performance 
contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
1. Scope of Services. 
 

The SERVICE PROVIDER shall perform such services and accomplish such tasks, 
including the furnishing of all materials and equipment necessary for full performance 
thereof, as are identified and designated as SERVICE PROVIDER responsibilities 
throughout this Agreement and as detailed in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and 
incorporated herein (the "Project"). 
 

2. Term. 
 

The Project shall begin on May 7, 2013, and shall be completed no later than December 
31, 2013, unless sooner terminated according to the provisions herein. 
 

3. Compensation and Method of Payment. 
 

3.1 Payments for services provided hereunder shall be made following the 
performance of such services, unless otherwise permitted by law and approved in 
writing by the CITY. 

 
3.2 No payment shall be made for any service rendered by the SERVICE PROVIDER 

except for services identified and set forth in this Agreement. 
 
3.3 The CITY shall pay the SERVICE PROVIDER for work performed under this 

Agreement as follows:$14,332.98 
 

4. Reports and Inspections. 
 

4.1 The SERVICE PROVIDER at such times and in such forms as the CITY may 
require, shall furnish to the CITY such statements, records, reports, data, and 



Professional Services Agreement - 2 

information as the CITY may request pertaining to matters covered by this 
Agreement. 

 
4.2 The SERVICE PROVIDER shall at any time during normal business hours and as 

often as the CITY or State Auditor may deem necessary, make available for 
examination all of its records and data with respect to all matters covered, directly 
or indirectly, by this Agreement and shall permit the CITY or its designated 
authorized representative to audit and inspect other data relating to all matters 
covered by this Agreement.  The CITY shall receive a copy of all audit reports 
made by the agency or firm as to the SERVICE PROVIDER'S activities.  The 
CITY may, at its discretion, conduct an audit at its expense, using its own or 
outside auditors, of the SERVICE PROVIDER'S activities that relate, directly or 
indirectly, to this Agreement. 

 
5. Independent Contractor Relationship. 
 

5.1 The parties intend that an independent SERVICE PROVIDER/CITY relationship 
will be created by this Agreement.  The CITY is interested primarily in the results 
to be achieved; subject to paragraphs herein, the implementation of services will 
lie solely with the discretion of the SERVICE PROVIDER.  No agent, employee, 
servant or representative of the SERVICE PROVIDER shall be deemed to be an 
employee, agent, servant or representative of the CITY for any purpose, and the 
employees of the SERVICE PROVIDER are not entitled to any of the benefits the 
CITY provides for its employees.  The SERVICE PROVIDER will be solely and 
entirely responsible for its acts and for the acts of its agents, employees, servants, 
subcontractors or representatives during the performance of this Agreement. 

 
5.2 In the performance of the services herein contemplated, the SERVICE 

PROVIDER is an independent contractor with the authority to control and direct 
the performance of the details of the work, however, the results of the work 
contemplated herein must meet the approval of the CITY and shall be subject to 
the CITY'S general rights of inspection and review to secure the satisfactory 
completion thereof. 

 
6. Service Provider Employees/agents. 
 

The CITY may at its sole discretion require the SERVICE PROVIDER to remove an 
employee(s), agent(s) or servant(s) from employment on this Project.  The SERVICE 
PROVIDER may, however, employ that (those) individual(s) on other non-CITY related 
projects. 
 

7. Hold Harmless/Indemnification. 
 

7.1 SERVICE PROVIDER shall defend, indemnify and hold the CITY, its officers, 
officials, employees and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, 
damages, losses or suits including attorney fees, arising out of or resulting from 
the acts, errors or omissions of the Consultant in performance of this Agreement, 
except for injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of the City. 

 



Professional Services Agreement - 3 

7.2 For purposes of this indemnification and hold harmless agreement, the Contractor 
waives any immunity that may be granted to it under the Washington State 
Industrial Insurance Act, Title 51 RCW.  The parties expressly agree that this 
waiver of workers' compensation immunity has been negotiated.   

 
7.3 No liability shall attach to the CITY by reason of entering into this Agreement 

except as expressly provided herein. 
 

8. Insurance. 
 

The SERVICE PROVIDER shall procure and maintain for the duration of the 
Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to property which 
may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the 
SERVICE PROVIDER, its agents, representatives, or employees. 
 
8.1 Minimum Scope of Insurance.  SERVICE PROVIDER shall obtain insurance of 

the types described below: 
 

a. Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired and 
leased vehicles.  Coverage shall be written on Insurance Services Office 
(ISO) form CA 00 01 or a substitute form providing equivalent liability 
coverage.  If necessary, the policy shall be endorsed to provide contractual 
liability coverage. 

 
b. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written on ISO 

occurrence form CG 00 01 and shall cover liability arising from premises, 
operations, independent contractors and personal injury and advertising 
injury.  The City shall be named as an insured under the SERVICE 
PROVIDER'S Commercial General Liability insurance policy with respect 
to the work performed for the City. 

 
c. Workers' Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance 

laws of the State of Washington. 
 
d. Professional Liability Insurance appropriate to the SERVICE 

PROVIDER'S profession. 
 

8.2 Minimum Amounts of Insurance.  SERVICE PROVIDER shall maintain the 
following insurance limits: 

 
a. Automobile Liability insurance with a minimum combined single limit for 

bodily injury and property damage of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) 
per accident. 

 
b. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written with limits no 

less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) each occurrence, Two Million 
Dollars ($2,000,000) general aggregate. 

 



Professional Services Agreement - 4 

c. Professional Liability insurance shall be written with limits no less than 
One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per claim and One Million Dollars 
($1,000,000) policy aggregate limit. 

 
8.3 Other Insurance Provisions.  The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed 

to contain, the following provisions for Automobile Liability, Professional 
Liability and Commercial General Liability insurance: 

 
a. The SERVICE PROVIDER'S insurance coverage shall be primary 

insurance with respect to the City.  Any insurance, self-insurance, or 
insurance pool coverage maintained by the City shall be excess of the 
SERVICE PROVIDER'S insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

 
b. The SERVICE PROVIDER'S insurance shall be endorsed to state that 

coverage shall not be cancelled by either party, except after thirty (30) 
days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has 
been given to the City. 

 
8.4 Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current 

A.M. Best rating of not less than A:VII. 
 
8.5 Verification of Coverage.  SERVICE PROVIDER shall furnish the City with 

original certificates and a copy of the amendatory endorsements including, but not 
necessarily limited to, the additional insured endorsement, evidencing the 
insurance requirements of the SERVICE PROVIDER before commencement of 
the work. 

 
9. Treatment of Assets. 
 

Title to all property furnished by the CITY shall remain in the name of the CITY and the 
CITY shall become the owner of the work product and other documents, if any, prepared 
by the SERVICE PROVIDER pursuant to this Agreement. 
 

10. Compliance with Laws. 
 

10.1 The SERVICE PROVIDER, in the performance of this Agreement, shall comply 
with all applicable federal, state or local laws and ordinances, including 
regulations for licensing, certification and operation of facilities, programs and 
accreditation, and licensing of individuals, and any other standards or criteria as 
described in this Agreement to assure quality of services. 

 
10.2 The SERVICE PROVIDER specifically agrees to pay any applicable business and 

occupation (B&O) taxes that may be due on account of this Agreement. 
 

11. Nondiscrimination. 
 

11.1 The CITY is an equal opportunity employer. 
 



Professional Services Agreement - 5 

11.2 Nondiscrimination in Employment.  In the performance of this Agreement, the 
SERVICE PROVIDER will not discriminate against any employee or applicant 
for employment on the grounds of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, marital 
status, sexual orientation, age, honorably discharged veteran or military status, or 
the presence of any sensory, mental or physical disability, or the use of a trained 
dog guide or service animal by a person with a disability; provided that the 
prohibition against discrimination in employment because of disability, or the use 
of a trained dog guide or service animal by a person with a disability, shall not 
apply if the particular disability prevents the proper performance of the particular 
worker involved.  The SERVICE PROVIDER shall ensure that applicants are 
employed, and that employees are treated during employment without 
discrimination because of their race, creed, color, national origin, sex, marital 
status, sexual orientation, age, honorably discharged veteran or military status, or 
the presence of any sensory, mental or physical disability or the use of a trained 
guide dog or service animal by a person with a disability.  Such action shall 
include, but not be limited to: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfers, 
recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other 
forms of compensation, and programs for training including apprenticeships.  The 
SERVICE PROVIDER shall take such action with respect to this Agreement as 
may be required to ensure full compliance with local, state and federal laws 
prohibiting discrimination in employment. 

 
11.3 Nondiscrimination in Services.  The SERVICE PROVIDER will not discriminate 

against any recipient of any services or benefits provided for in this Agreement on 
the grounds of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, marital status, sexual 
orientation, age, honorably discharged veteran or military status, or the presence 
of any sensory, mental or physical disability or the use of a trained guide dog or 
service animal by a person with a disability. 

 
11.4 If any assignment and/or subcontracting has been authorized by the CITY, said 

assignment or subcontract shall include appropriate safeguards against 
discrimination.  The SERVICE PROVIDER shall take such action as may be 
required to ensure full compliance with the provisions in the immediately 
preceding paragraphs herein. 

 
12. Assignment/subcontracting. 
 

12.1 The SERVICE PROVIDER shall not assign its performance under this 
Agreement or any portion of this Agreement without the written consent of the 
CITY, and it is further agreed that said consent must be sought in writing by the 
SERVICE PROVIDER not less than thirty (30) days prior to the date of any 
proposed assignment.  The CITY reserves the right to reject without cause any 
such assignment. 

 
12.2 Any work or services assigned hereunder shall be subject to each provision of this 

Agreement and proper bidding procedures where applicable as set forth in local, 
state and/or federal statutes, ordinances and guidelines. 

 



Professional Services Agreement - 6 

12.3 Any technical/professional service subcontract not listed in this Agreement, must 
have express advance approval by the CITY. 

 
13. Changes. 
 

Either party may request changes to the scope of services and performance to be provided 
hereunder, however, no change or addition to this Agreement shall be valid or binding 
upon either party unless such change or addition be in writing and signed by both parties.  
Such amendments shall be attached to and made part of this Agreement. 
 

14. Maintenance and Inspection of Records. 
 

14.1 The SERVICE PROVIDER shall maintain books, records and documents, which 
sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs related to the 
performance of this Agreement and shall maintain such accounting procedures 
and practices as may be necessary to assure proper accounting of all funds paid 
pursuant to this Agreement.  These records shall be subject at all reasonable times 
to inspection, review, or audit, by the CITY, its authorized representative, the 
State Auditor, or other governmental officials authorized by law to monitor this 
Agreement. 

 
14.2 The SERVICE PROVIDER shall retain all books, records, documents and other 

material relevant to this Agreement, for six (6) years after its expiration.  The 
SERVICE PROVIDER agrees that the CITY or its designee shall have full access 
and right to examine any of said materials at all reasonable times during said 
period. 

 
15. Other Provisions. 
 

The following additional terms shall apply:  It is agreed between the parties that pursuant 
to changes in state law necessitating that services hereunder be expanded, the parties shall 
negotiate an appropriate amendment.  If after thirty (30) days of negotiation, agreement 
cannot be reached, the CITY may terminate this Agreement no sooner than sixty (60) 
days thereafter. 

16. Termination. 
 

16.1 Termination for Convenience.  The CITY may terminate this Agreement, in 
whole or in part, at any time, by giving at least thirty (30) days' written notice to 
the SERVICE PROVIDER.  Upon such termination for convenience, the City 
shall pay the SERVICE PROVIDER for all services provided under this 
Agreement through the date of termination. 

 
16.2 Termination for Cause.  If the SERVICE PROVIDER fails to perform in the 

manner called for in this Agreement, or if the SERVICE PROVIDER fails to 
comply with any other provisions of the Agreement and fails to correct such 
noncompliance within five (5) days' written notice thereof, the CITY may 
terminate this Agreement for cause.  Termination shall be effected by serving a 
notice of termination on the SERVICE PROVIDER setting forth the manner in 
which the SERVICE PROVIDER is in default.  The SERVICE PROVIDER will 



Professional Services Agreement - 7 

only be paid for services performed in accordance with the manner of 
performance set forth in this Agreement through the date of termination. 

 
17. Notice. 
 

Notice provided for in this Agreement shall be sent by certified mail to the addresses 
designated for the parties on the last page of this Agreement. 
 

18. Attorneys Fees and Costs. 
 

If any legal proceeding is brought for the enforcement of this Agreement, or because of a 
dispute, breach, default, or misrepresentation in connection with any of the provisions of 
this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other party, in 
addition to any other relief to which such party may be entitled, reasonable attorney's fees 
and other costs incurred in that action or proceeding. 
 

19. Jurisdiction and Venue. 
 

19.1 This Agreement has been and shall be construed as having been made and 
delivered within the State of Washington and it is agreed by each party hereto that 
this Agreement shall be governed by laws of the State of Washington, both as to 
interpretation and performance. 

 
19.2 Any action of law, suit in equity, or judicial proceeding for the enforcement of 

this Agreement or any provisions thereof shall be instituted and maintained only 
in any of the courts of competent jurisdiction in Island County, Washington. 

 
20. Severability. 
 

20.1 If, for any reason, any part, term or provision of this Agreement is held by a court 
of the United States to be illegal, void or unenforceable, the validity of the 
remaining provisions shall not be affected, and the rights and obligations of the 
parties shall be construed and enforced as if the Agreement did not contain the 
particular provision held to be invalid. 

 
20.2 If it should appear that any provision hereof is in conflict with any statutory 

provision of the State of Washington, said provision that may conflict therewith 
shall be deemed inoperative and null and void insofar as it may be in conflict 
therewith, and shall be deemed modified to conform to such statutory provisions. 

 
21. Entire Agreement. 
 

The parties agree that this Agreement is the complete expression of the terms hereto and 
any oral representations or understandings not incorporated herein are excluded.  Further, 
any modification of this Agreement shall be in writing and signed by both parties.  
Failure to comply with any of the provisions stated herein shall constitute a material 
breach of contract and be cause for termination.  Both parties recognize time is of the 
essence in the performance of the provisions of this Agreement.  It is also agreed by the 



Professional Services Agreement - 8 

parties that the forgiveness of the nonperformance of any provision of this Agreement 
does not constitute a waiver of the provisions of this Agreement. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed the day 
and year first hereinabove written. 
 
 
CITY:       SERVICE PROVIDER: 
 
 
CITY OF OAK HARBOR    Equinox Research & Consulting International 
865 SE Barrington Drive    41507 South Skagit Highway 
Oak Harbor, WA  98277    Concrete, WA  98237 
 
 
              
Scott Dudley, Mayor     Kelly Bush, President 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
        
Valerie J. Loffler, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
        
Grant Weed, Interim City Attorney 
 



 
41507 South Skagit Hwy Concrete, WA 98237 Tel.360-826-4930 Fax. 360-826-4830 www.equinoxerci.com  

 
April 24, 2013 
 
 
Joe Stowell 
City of Oak Harbor Public Works 
1400 NE 16th Avenue 
Oak Harbor, WA 98277 
 
Re: Planning and alternatives analysis for the Wastewater Treatment Plant Facilities, Oak Harbor, 
Washington 
 
Dear Mr. Stowell: 
 
Thank you for the considering Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc. (ERCI) for 
your cultural resource management needs. ERCI provides a full service cultural resource 
management program and we look forward to providing you timely and professional fieldwork 
and reporting.  
 
Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act (NHPA), SEPA and Executive Order 05-05 
requires agencies to consider the effects of their actions on historic properties and to consult with 
others in carrying out historic preservation activities. The State of Washington also has a series of 
RCWs and associated WACs concerning cultural resources that we are guided by.  In providing 
cultural resource management services for clients, Equinox Research and Consulting 
International Inc. (ERCI) works in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations. 
 
We are providing this scope and budget for planning for two approximately 4 acre parcels in and 
around Windjammer Park in Oak Harbor, Washington.  We understand that you are in the 
planning phase of developing a design for a new wastewater treatment facility for the City of Oak 
Harbor and that this work will support your alternatives analysis. The Scope activities include: 
 

 Develop a sensitivity map for the Windjammer Vicinity based on existing studies, 
archival and geoarchaeological research and a pedestrian survey. 

 Attend up to 4 meetings to assist in planning. 
 Monitoring and screening sediments from machine excavating of 4 test areas. Two for 

each of the  two proposed facilities alternatives. 
 Provide report to state, federal and tribal standards 

 
Our estimate is based on the City providing the equipment and crew to remove asphalt and to 
provide a machine and operator should that be required for the field testing.  The locations would 
be determined prior to field testing.  These testing locations would then have a combination of 
deep testing and shovel testing carried out in them.  The City would then cover and resurface the 
tests. 
 
The archaeology would be carried out with a Senior Archaeologist and a field technician to dig, 
screen and record matrix information. 

Exhibit "A"



City of Oak Harbor – Wastewater Treatment Plant Planning  & Preliminary Survey 2 parcels April 2013 2 
Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc. (ERCI) 

 
This scope presumes that no permit from DAHP will be required to carry out this testing as we 
are outside of any recorded archaeological sites. 
 
Qualifications: 
 

 Experience working in Puget Sound and on projects associated with public works 
systems and infrastructure.  

 Principal investigator meets the Secretary of Interior’s professional qualification 
standards for archaeology 

 Expertise on prehistoric and historic archaeology of Western Washington 
 Experience in Executive Order 05-05 and NHPA Section 106 work and in working with 

additional state laws related to historic preservation and human remains. 
 Positive working relationship with federally recognized Tribes in and adjacent to the 

project area and experience in tribal consultation. 
 Experience in processes that balance competing resource needs 
 Strong record of completing work on time within budget 

 
The following estimate covers the identification and evaluation for historic properties in this 
project area. The following costs are not included in this estimate: 

 Costs associated with encountering human remains during this fieldwork. 
 Costs associated with completing Historic Property Inventory Forms (HPIFs) for any 

buildings older than 50 years 
 Costs associated with developing any additional agreements, plans, protocols, or permits 

should they be required. 
 
The team at ERCI is comprised of individuals with strong personal research specialties who pride 
themselves on efficiency, performance and integrity. We provide the highest quality product in a 
timely fashion. Please check out our web site for additional details www.equinoxerci.com 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to provide excellent heritage planning services for the City of Oak 
Harbor. 
 
Regards, 

 
Kelly R. Bush 
Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc. (ERCI) 
 
 
Description Units Rate/HR  Sub Total  
Project Orientation, meetings and project management 16.00 143.25                  2,292.00  
Historic and archival background research 6.00 97.75 586.50 
Geoarchaeological research 4.00 97.75 391.00 
Coordinate with governments of affected Tribes 
regarding cultural resource issues including the cultural 
heritage value of sites within the vicinity of the Area of 
Potential Effect (APE). 

1.00 143.25 143.25 

http://www.equinoxerci.com/


City of Oak Harbor – Wastewater Treatment Plant Planning  & Preliminary Survey 2 parcels April 2013 3 
Equinox Research and Consulting International Inc. (ERCI) 

Determine eligibility of identified historic properties for 
listing in the National Register of Historic Places.  2.00 143.75 287.50 

Consider the effects of Project alternatives on all 
cultural resources and provide recommendations about 
how to avoid, minimize, or mitigate the adverse effect. 

12.00 143.75 1,725.00 

Develop sensitivity model for Project Area 8.00 97.75 782.00 
Consultation with SHPO and agencies 1.00 143.25 143.25 
Document control, transcriptions, site forms 12.00 63.75 765.00 
Report editing 2.00 143.25 286.50 
Report writing 16.00 97.75 1,564.00 
Graphics, layout 14.00 97.75 1,368.50 
Report Production 2.00 63.75 127.50 
Report printing 6.00 23.00 138.00 
SUB TOTAL     10,600.00 
        
Field Work: Preliminary field Survey and/or monitoring of specific testing locations in 2 roughly 4 
acre parcels 

DESCRIPTION Units 
Rates 
Daily  Sub Total  

Principal Investigator 2.00 143.75 287.50 
Senior Archaeologist Field Supervisor 16.00 97.75 1564.00 
Archaeological Field Technician 16.00 74.75 1196.00 
Travel time 10.00 34.50 345.00 
Mileage  608.00 0.56 340.48 
SUB TOTAL     3,732.98 

GRAND TOTAL              
14,332.98  

 
 
 
 
 





May 7, 2013 – WWTP – Professional Services Agreement with Fullerton & Associates 
Page 2 of 3 

 
March 19, 2013 also signified the start of the preliminary design process when city council 
authorized an amendment to the professional services agreement with Carollo Engineers.  One of 
the first steps in the amended scope of work is to finalize the location of the wastewater 
treatment plant. 
 
Fullerton and Associates was selected from the Municipal Research Services Center (MRSC) 
roster under the category of Real Estate & Property Services with a specialty in Right-of-way 
Acquisitions / Relocations Services.  The city enlists MRSC’s, along with other cities, to 
maintain a list of qualified professionals and contractors for public works projects.  For smaller 
contracts, this is a useful tool to reduce the cost of reviewing individual consultants on our own. 
 
Scope of Services 
 
The attached scope of services (Exhibit A) represents the real estate tasks necessary to assist the 
city in finalizing the location of the new wastewater treatment plant.   
 
The scope of work is as follows: 

 Assist the city in identifying potential issues that may arise during the acquisition process 
 Review  all pertinent maps and drawings 
 Review all preliminary commitments to title 
 Review all parcel drawings 
 Coordinate efforts with appraiser to provide a fair market value  
 Appraisal review 
 Review property data on each parcel 
 Coordinate efforts with the City Attorney’s office for the preparation and recording of all 

conveyance documents 
 Prepare a “Fair Offer Letter” to be presented and countersigned by the property owner(s) 

at the commencement of negotiations 
 Conduct all negotiations and correspondence with the property owner(s) and/or the 

property owner(s) agent(s) and/or representative(s) 
 Create and maintain a negotiators log to detail the content of all conversations with the 

property owner(s) and/or the property owner(s) agent(s) and/or representative(s) 
 If needed, coordinate efforts with experts in the fields of land use, environmental 

assessment, contaminants and hazardous wastes, property surveys, wetland delineations 
etc. 

 Meet with city staff and/or other consultants as required  
 The City may request Fullerton & Associates to perform additional undefined services 

not included in the above Tasks. No work is to be performed under this Task unless 
specifically authorized in writing by the City. 

 
Schedule 
The proposed scope of services is intended to support the city through the acquisition of property 
for the new wastewater treatment plant.  Under the current schedule, this process is expected to 
be completed by the end of September, 2013.  The contract is written to expire December 31, 
2013 to allow for schedule complications. 
 
  



May 7, 2013 – WWTP – Professional Services Agreement with Fullerton & Associates 
Page 3 of 3 

Budget 
The proposed scope of services has three alternatives.  Since it is difficult to know the number of 
properties that will be impacted by the wastewater treatment plant at this time, Fullerton and 
Associates has provided a level of effort for three alternatives.  The alternatives assume we will 
need to negotiate with one, two or three property owners for the new wastewater treatment plant.   
 
The level of effort for each alternative is as follows: 

1 property - $7,000 
2 properties - $12,000 
3 properties - $16,500 

 
The city will be charged time and materials, not to exceed the amount above, depending on the 
required level of effort.  The scope of services also includes supporting the city in its effort to 
develop site selection policy. 

 
A management reserve of $3,500 is included in the requested authorization. 
 
CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP 
This item was discussed at the April 24, 2013 City Council Workshop. 
 
CITY COUNCIL PREVIOUS ACTIONS 
March 19, 2013 – Council motion authorizing the Mayor to sign Consultant Agreement 
Amendment Number 6 with Carollo Engineers for additional site investigation related to a new 
wastewater treatment plant.  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
Authorize the Mayor to sign a Professional Services Agreement with Fullerton & Associates for 
Real Estate & Property Services related to the new wastewater treatment plant in the amount of 
$16,500 and a management reserve of $3,500.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 

 Professional Services Agreement 
 Exhibit A – Scope of Work/Proposal 



















whobert
Sticky Note
EXHIBIT A







May 7, 2013 – North Reservoir – Construction Contract Award with Veterans Northwest LLC 
Page 2 of 3  
 

Island County is processing a permit to open a segment of the Gun Club Road ROW for the 
access road to the North Reservoir Site.  SEPA procedures have been completed.  An 
archaeology investigation has been completed and the results suggest there is a low probability 
of encountering cultural resources.  An inadvertent discovery plan has been developed and is 
included in the construction contract provisions.   
 
The North Reservoir project will add four million gallons of standby storage to the City’s water 
system.  The site for the new reservoir was selected based on the overall short and long term 
benefits to the City.  The North Reservoir site is a City owned property, located between N Oak 
Harbor and NW Heller Streets, and north of the Gun Club Road ROW.  In addition to the 
reservoir site property, the City has a 30 foot easement for access and utility installation across 
private property between the Gun Club Road ROW and the reservoir site.  The City acquired the 
property through a court settlement in the 1990’s.  As part of the settlement, the City acquired 10 
acres but was required to give back 5 acres.  A boundary line adjustment has been completed 
which reduced the property size to 5 acres and established an easement for access and utilities. 

 
The project was advertised for bidding in the Daily Journal of Commerce and Whidbey News 
Times.  In addition, the project was posted to the Builders Exchange of Washington Online Plan 
Center.   

 
Amount of the Contract:      
Staff received and opened eight sealed bids on April 3, 2013.  The bid totals are tabulated below. 

 
Contractor Location Bid Total 
Veterans Northwest 
Construction, LLC 

Seattle, WA  $4,486,324.12 

T Bailey 
 

Anacortes, WA $4,646,658.69 

I & E Construction, Inc. 
 

Clackamas, OR $4,912,823.14 

Strider Construction Co. Inc. 
 

Bellingham, WA  $4,933,224.50 

Tiger Construction, Ltd. 
 

Everson, WA $5,184,033.55 

Pacific Crest Construction, Inc. Lynnwood, WA $5,251,540.49 

Cherokee Construction 
Services 

Vancouver, WA  $5,317,715.53 

SRV Construction, Inc. 
 

Oak Harbor, WA $5,632,706.82 

Engineer’s Estimate 
 

 $4,984,541.77 



May 7, 2013 – North Reservoir – Construction Contract Award with Veterans Northwest LLC 
Page 3 of 3  
 

Construction Contingency:   
Most construction projects involve change orders and modifications to the contract plans.  
Delays in processing change order requests can result in costly delay claims against the City.  To 
minimize the possibility of delays and the resulting claims, staff requests that the City Engineer 
be authorized to administratively approve up to $400,000, approximately 9% of the contract 
amount, for change orders. 

 
STANDING COMMITTEE REPORT 
The North Reservoir Project has been most recently discussed at the Public Works Standing 
Committee meeting on March 7, 2013. 

 
PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS 
January 15, 2013 – City Council authorized staff to proceed with advertisement of the North 
Reservoir Construction Project for competitive bidding. 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 

1) Authorize the Mayor to sign a contract with Veterans Northwest Construction, LLC in 
the amount of $4,486,324.12, plus all applicable taxes; and  

2) Authorize the City Engineer to administratively approve changes to the construction 
contract totaling not more than $400,000. 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

 Bid Tabulation 
 Veterans Northwest Bid Proposal 

 



City of Oak Harbor, Island County, Washington
North Reservoir Bid Tabulation

4-Apr-13

NO. ENGINEER'S EST.
Schedule A: North 

Reservoir ITEM QUANTITY UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE EXTENSION UNIT PRICE EXTENSION UNIT PRICE EXTENSION UNIT PRICE EXTENSION UNIT PRICE EXTENSION UNIT PRICE EXTENSION UNIT PRICE EXTENSION UNIT PRICE EXTENSION
1. Minor Changes 1 CALC $25,000.00 $25,000.00 25,000.00 25,000.00                25,000.00         25,000.00                25,000.00         25,000.00                25,000.00         25,000.00                25,000.00         25,000.00                25,000.00         25,000.00                25,000.00         25,000.00                25,000.00         25,000.00                
2. Mobilization 1 LS $361,855.00 $361,855.00 42,792.00 42,792.00                40,000.00         40,000.00                100,000.00       100,000.00              150,000.00       150,000.00              153,700.00       153,700.00              75,000.00         75,000.00                64,021.00         64,021.00                188,500.00       188,500.00              
3. Temporary Erosion Control 1 LS $20,000.00 $20,000.00 9,795.00 9,795.00                  40,000.00         40,000.00                21,000.00         21,000.00                15,000.00         15,000.00                22,390.00         22,390.00                30,000.00         30,000.00                11,500.00         11,500.00                7,200.00           7,200.00                  
4. Excavation Safety System 1 LS $3,000.00 $3,000.00 1,017.00 1,017.00                  500.00              500.00                     2,000.00           2,000.00                  10,000.00         10,000.00                4,230.00           4,230.00                  10,000.00         10,000.00                31,400.00         31,400.00                1,100.00           1,100.00                  
5. Site Earthwork 1 LS $80,000.00 $80,000.00 195,888.99 195,888.99              380,000.00       380,000.00              173,000.00       173,000.00              45,000.00         45,000.00                214,000.00       214,000.00              250,000.00       250,000.00              70,600.00         70,600.00                131,750.00       131,750.00              
6. Unsuitable Excavation 70 CY $50.00 $3,500.00 25.49 1,784.30                  21.00                1,470.00                  84.00                5,880.00                  15.00                1,050.00                  24.20                1,694.00                  15.00                1,050.00                  40.00                2,800.00                  30.00                2,100.00                  
7. Quarry Spalls 60 TN $45.00 $2,700.00 47.78 2,866.80                  70.00                4,200.00                  34.00                2,040.00                  38.00                2,280.00                  28.60                1,716.00                  50.00                3,000.00                  49.00                2,940.00                  52.00                3,120.00                  
8. Bank Run Gravel for Trench Backfill 3,920 TN $20.00 $78,400.00 6.11 23,951.20                14.00                54,880.00                7.15                  28,028.00                8.50                  33,320.00                6.50                  25,480.00                10.00                39,200.00                10.50                41,160.00                9.50                  37,240.00                
9. Storage Bed Aggregate 2,850 TN $30.00 $85,500.00 30.00 85,500.00                30.00                85,500.00                37.25                106,162.50              30.00                85,500.00                23.35                66,547.50                36.50                104,025.00              23.00                65,550.00                39.00                111,150.00              
10. Choker Course Aggregate 720 TN $30.00 $21,600.00 38.23 27,525.60                26.00                18,720.00                50.50                36,360.00                25.00                18,000.00                31.13                22,413.60                30.00                21,600.00                31.00                22,320.00                45.50                32,760.00                
11. Crushed Surfacing Base Course 1,400 TN $25.00 $35,000.00 23.36 32,704.00                64.00                89,600.00                27.50                38,500.00                14.00                19,600.00                22.60                31,640.00                20.00                28,000.00                21.00                29,400.00                30.50                42,700.00                
12. Gravel Backfill for Dry Wells 490 TN $25.00 $12,250.00 21.02 10,299.80                32.00                15,680.00                37.50                18,375.00                15.00                7,350.00                  25.60                12,544.00                24.50                12,005.00                20.00                9,800.00                  27.70                13,573.00                
13. Fencing 1,530 LF $30.00 $45,900.00 25.12 38,433.60                20.00                30,600.00                26.15                40,009.50                24.00                36,720.00                29.90                45,747.00                30.00                45,900.00                23.00                35,190.00                33.30                50,949.00                
14. 4.0 MG Reservoir and Foundation 1 LS $2,000,000.00 $2,000,000.00 1,928,639.24 1,928,639.24           1,915,000.00    1,915,000.00           2,230,000.00    2,230,000.00           2,490,000.00    2,490,000.00           2,370,000.00    2,370,000.00           2,350,000.00    2,350,000.00           2,318,000.00    2,318,000.00           2,714,000.00    2,714,000.00           

Pacific Crest Const. Inc.
1 2 3 4 5 6

I & E Construction, Inc.Veterans Northwest Construction, T Bailey, Inc. Strider Construction Co. Inc. Tiger Construction, Ltd. Cherokee Construction Services, SRV Construction, Inc.
7 8

15. Reservoir Painting 1 LS $600,000.00 $600,000.00 453,573.84 453,573.84              300,725.00       300,725.00              450,000.00       450,000.00              439,000.00       439,000.00              434,400.00       434,400.00              470,000.00       470,000.00              695,800.00       695,800.00              511,770.00       511,770.00              
16. Site Piping 1 LS $320,000.00 $320,000.00 380,458.08 380,458.08              452,000.00       452,000.00              283,509.00       283,509.00              275,000.00       275,000.00              383,500.00       383,500.00              400,000.00       400,000.00              467,200.00       467,200.00              387,820.00       387,820.00              
17. Surface Restoration 1 LS $15,000.00 $15,000.00 42,025.06 42,025.06                31,000.00         31,000.00                19,000.00         19,000.00                35,000.00         35,000.00                80,390.00         80,390.00                52,000.00         52,000.00                109,300.00       109,300.00              43,400.00         43,400.00                
18. Pervious Asphalt 1,240 TN $190.00 $235,600.00 108.51 134,552.40              100.00              124,000.00              114.00              141,360.00              106.00              131,440.00              106.00              131,440.00              110.00              136,400.00              102.00              126,480.00              104.00              128,960.00              
19. HMA Cl. 1/2" PG 58-22 390 TN $90.00 $35,100.00 90.79 35,408.10                98.00                38,220.00                98.75                38,512.50                92.00                35,880.00                91.50                35,685.00                97.00                37,830.00                98.00                38,220.00                90.00                35,100.00                
20. Primary Power Service 1 LS $120,000.00 $120,000.00 120,000.00 120,000.00              120,000.00       120,000.00              120,000.00       120,000.00              120,000.00       120,000.00              120,000.00       120,000.00              120,000.00       120,000.00              120,000.00       120,000.00              120,000.00       120,000.00              
21. Electrical 1 LS $115,000.00 $115,000.00 202,194.00 202,194.00              190,000.00       190,000.00              181,000.00       181,000.00              186,000.00       186,000.00              209,100.00       209,100.00              185,000.00       185,000.00              202,200.00       202,200.00              203,563.00       203,563.00              
22. 2-In. PVC PVC 1,560 LF $8.00 $12,480.00 4.78 7,456.80                  5.00                  7,800.00                  8.75                  13,650.00                2.50                  3,900.00                  4.80                  7,488.00                  8.00                  12,480.00                4.81                  7,503.60                  5.20                  8,112.00                  
23. Handhole 4 EA $1,000.00 $4,000.00 812.25 3,249.00                  800.00              3,200.00                  900.00              3,600.00                  500.00              2,000.00                  817.00              3,268.00                  1,700.00           6,800.00                  825.00              3,300.00                  880.00              3,520.00                  
24. Utility Trench 1,560 LF $50.00 $78,000.00 12.74 19,874.40                17.00                26,520.00                6.25                  9,750.00                  8.00                  12,480.00                10.90                17,004.00                7.40                  11,544.00                11.00                17,160.00                6.70                  10,452.00                
25. Utility Vault Excavation 170 CY $100.00 $17,000.00 10.62 1,805.40                  4.00                  680.00                     14.00                2,380.00                  16.50                2,805.00                  19.10                3,247.00                  21.00                3,570.00                  20.00                3,400.00                  50.40                8,568.00                  
26. Project Temporary Traffic Control 1 LS $5,000.00 $5,000.00 3,876.00 3,876.00                  1,000.00           1,000.00                  8,000.00           8,000.00                  1,000.00           1,000.00                  8,960.00           8,960.00                  5,000.00           5,000.00                  21,200.00         21,200.00                1,850.00           1,850.00                  
27. Temporary Access Roadway 1 LS $20,000.00 $20,000.00 9,663.00 9,663.00                  17,000.00         17,000.00                24,000.00         24,000.00                20,000.00         20,000.00                40,530.00         40,530.00                53,000.00         53,000.00                12,400.00         12,400.00                1,150.00           1,150.00                  
28. Reservoir Painting Environmental Controls 1 LS $25,000.00 $25,000.00 14,584.00 14,584.00                6,000.00           6,000.00                  77,000.00         77,000.00                72,000.00         72,000.00                71,580.00         71,580.00                71,000.00         71,000.00                71,700.00         71,700.00                86,625.00         86,625.00                

Subtotal Schedule A: North Reservoir $4,376,885.00 $3,854,917.61 $4,019,295.00 $4,198,116.50 $4,275,325.00 $4,543,694.10 $4,559,404.00 $4,625,544.60 $4,912,032.00
Sales Tax at 8.7% per Washington State Revenue Rule No. 171 $380,789.00 $335,377.83 $349,678.67 $365,236.14 $371,953.28 $395,301.39 $396,668.15 $402,422.38 $427,346.78
Schedule A: North Reservoir Total Construction Cost: $4,757,674.00 $4,190,295.44 $4,368,973.67 $4,563,352.64 $4,647,278.28 $4,938,995.49 $4,956,072.15 $5,027,966.98 $5,339,378.78

Schedule B: Goldie 
Road PRV Station ITEM QUANTITY UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE EXTENSION UNIT PRICE EXTENSION UNIT PRICE EXTENSION UNIT PRICE EXTENSION UNIT PRICE EXTENSION UNIT PRICE EXTENSION UNIT PRICE EXTENSION UNIT PRICE EXTENSION

6 7 81 2 3 4 5

Q
1. Minor Changes 1 CALC $5,000.00 $5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00                  5,000.00           5,000.00                  5,000.00           5,000.00                  5,000.00           5,000.00                  5,000.00           5,000.00                  5,000.00           5,000.00                  5,000.00           5,000.00                  5,000.00           5,000.00                  
2. Mobilization 1 LS $18,610.00 $18,610.00 12,402.00 12,402.00                10,000.00         10,000.00                22,000.00         22,000.00                10,000.00         10,000.00                4,250.00           4,250.00                  6,500.00           6,500.00                  1,078.00           1,078.00                  11,000.00         11,000.00                
3. Temporary Erosion Control 1 LS $2,000.00 $2,000.00 510.00 510.00                     3,000.00           3,000.00                  2,200.00           2,200.00                  500.00              500.00                     1,190.00           1,190.00                  4,500.00           4,500.00                  1,500.00           1,500.00                  575.00              575.00                     
4. Excavation Safety System 1 LS $1,000.00 $1,000.00 1,019.00 1,019.00                  1,500.00           1,500.00                  1,000.00           1,000.00                  1,000.00           1,000.00                  741.00              741.00                     4,000.00           4,000.00                  2,700.00           2,700.00                  1,150.00           1,150.00                  
5. Site Earthwork 1 LS $10,000.00 $10,000.00 2,973.48 2,973.48                  10,000.00         10,000.00                3,000.00           3,000.00                  1,800.00           1,800.00                  2,685.00           2,685.00                  3,800.00           3,800.00                  4,500.00           4,500.00                  14,200.00         14,200.00                
6. Unsuitable Excavation 10 CY $50.00 $500.00 51.00 510.00                     40.00                400.00                     90.00                900.00                     15.00                150.00                     18.40                184.00                     30.00                300.00                     190.00              1,900.00                  56.00                560.00                     
7. Bank Run Gravel for Trench Backfill 180 TN $20.00 $3,600.00 6.11 1,099.80                  14.00                2,520.00                  8.00                  1,440.00                  8.50                  1,530.00                  6.50                  1,170.00                  10.00                1,800.00                  31.00                5,580.00                  11.00                1,980.00                  
8. Crushed Surfacing Base Course 20 TN $25.00 $500.00 50.95 1,019.00                  26.00                520.00                     160.00              3,200.00                  14.00                280.00                     22.60                452.00                     20.00                400.00                     90.00                1,800.00                  42.50                850.00                     
9. Fencing 30 LF $30.00 $900.00 147.23 4,416.90                  24.00                720.00                     160.00              4,800.00                  150.00              4,500.00                  26.80                804.00                     30.00                900.00                     150.00              4,500.00                  29.00                870.00                     
10. Site Piping 1 LS $15,000.00 $15,000.00 29,960.98 29,960.98                38,000.00         38,000.00                49,000.00         49,000.00                24,000.00         24,000.00                28,000.00         28,000.00                32,000.00         32,000.00                34,100.00         34,100.00                36,000.00         36,000.00                
11. Surface Restoration 1 LS $4,000.00 $4,000.00 2,744.09 2,744.09                  2,800.00           2,800.00                  7,000.00           7,000.00                  3,500.00           3,500.00                  2,505.00           2,505.00                  6,000.00           6,000.00                  13,100.00         13,100.00                2,450.00           2,450.00                  
12. Pressure Reducing Valve Station B 1 LS $70,000.00 $70,000.00 80,848.32 80,848.32                75,000.00         75,000.00                90,800.00         90,800.00                78,000.00         78,000.00                63,880.00         63,880.00                72,000.00         72,000.00                72,400.00         72,400.00                75,400.00         75,400.00                
13. Primary Power Service 1 LS $20,000.00 $20,000.00 20,000.00 20,000.00                20,000.00         20,000.00                20,000.00         20,000.00                20,000.00         20,000.00                20,000.00         20,000.00                20,000.00         20,000.00                20,000.00         20,000.00                20,000.00         20,000.00                
14. Electrical 1 LS $50,000.00 $50,000.00 96,823.92 96,823.92                80,000.00         80,000.00                97,000.00         97,000.00                100,000.00       100,000.00              82,620.00         82,620.00                96,000.00         96,000.00                86,700.00         86,700.00                85,050.00         85,050.00                
15. HMA Cl. 1/2" PG 64-22 40 TN $90.00 $3,600.00 228.30 9,132.00                  100.00              4,000.00                  179.00              7,160.00                  170.00              6,800.00                  208.00              8,320.00                  215.50              8,620.00                  175.00              7,000.00                  178.25              7,130.00                  
16. Project Temporary Traffic Control 1 LS $4,000.00 $4,000.00 3,876.00 3,876.00                  2,000.00           2,000.00                  7,000.00           7,000.00                  6,000.00           6,000.00                  3,625.00           3,625.00                  10,000.00         10,000.00                4,700.00           4,700.00                  7,636.00           7,636.00                  

Subtotal Schedule B: Goldie Road PRV Station $208,710.00 $272,335.49 $255,460.00 $321,500.00 $263,060.00 $225,426.00 $271,820.00 $266,558.00 $269,851.00
Sales Tax at 8.7% per Washington State Revenue Rule No. 171 $18,157.77 $23,693.19 $22,225.02 $27,970.50 $22,886.22 $19,612.06 $23,648.34 $23,190.55 $23,477.04
Schedule B: Goldie Road PRV Station Total Construction Cost: $226,867.77 $296,028.68 $277,685.02 $349,470.50 $285,946.22 $245,038.06 $295,468.34 $289,748.55 $293,328.04

Schedule A: North Reservoir Total Construction Cost: $4,757,674.00 $4,190,295.44 $4,368,973.67 $4,563,352.64 $4,647,278.28 $4,938,995.49 $4,956,072.15 $5,027,966.98 $5,339,378.78
Schedule B: Goldie Road PRV Station Total Construction Cost: $226 867 77 $296 028 68 $277 685 02 $349 470 50 $285 946 22 $245 038 06 $295 468 34 $289 748 55 $293 328 04Schedule B: Goldie Road PRV Station Total Construction Cost: $226,867.77 $296,028.68 $277,685.02 $349,470.50 $285,946.22 $245,038.06 $295,468.34 $289,748.55 $293,328.04

Engineers Total Construction Cost: $4,984,541.77 $4,486,324.12 $4,646,658.69 $4,912,823.14 $4,933,224.50 $5,184,033.55 $5,251,540.49 $5,317,715.53 $5,632,706.82

* Blue color numbers indicate a math error on the original Proposal, the blue number is correct.

H:\Engineering Work\ENG 06-43 North Reservoir\North Reservoir Bid Tab Apr3-2013.xlsx Page 1 of 1























May 7, 2013 – North Reservoir – Consultant Agreement with KBA Construction Management 
Page 2 of 2  
 

Interested firms submit a statement of qualifications to MRSC and are added to the roster of 
similarly qualified firms.  Staff selected KBA from the MRSC roster based on their 
qualifications and history of successfully performing similar work for the City of Oak Harbor.   

 
Amount of contract:   
The contract has a maximum not to exceed limit of $322,123.  Included in the total hourly not to 
exceed fee structure is a management reserve of $10,000.  As stipulated in the contract the 
management reserve is for work not included in the defined scope of work and is intended as a 
convenience to the City.   

 
STANDING COMMITTEE REPORT 
This item has not been discussed at the Standing Committee meetings. 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
Authorize the Mayor to sign a Consultant Agreement with KBA Construction Management for 
construction administration services for the North Reservoir in the amount of $322,123 and a 
management reserve of $10,000. 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

 Consultant Agreement 

 
 
 



















































































May 7, 2013 – North Reservoir – Consultant Agreement with Materials Testing and Consulting 
Page 2 of 2 

STANDING COMMITTEE REPORT 
This item has not been discussed at the Standing Committee meetings. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
Authorize the Mayor to sign the contract with Materials Testing and Consulting for providing 
construction materials inspection services for the North Reservoir with a not to exceed limit of 
$73,465.50 and a management reserve of $5,000. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

 Consultant Agreement 



CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
CONSULTANT AGREEMENT 

WITH       

PROJECT TITLE:       

PROJECT COMPLETION DATE:        

MAXIMUM AMOUNT PAYABLE:        

Materials Testing & Consulting, Inc

North Reservoir - ENG#06-43



Table of Contents - 1 

TABLE OF CONTENTS

CONSULTANT CONTRACT 

I. INSTRUCTIONS ...................................................................................................................................... 1 

II. CONSULTANT INFORMATION ...................................................................................................... 1 

III. PROJECT INFORMATION .................................................................................................................. 1 

IV. ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTS ADDED TO THIS CONTRACT ............................................ 1 

V. INTRODUCTION ..................................................................................................................................... 2 

VI. GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF WORK ........................................................................................... 2 

VII. SCOPE OF WORK ................................................................................................................................... 2 

VIII. PAYMENT .................................................................................................................................................. 2 

IX. CERTIFICATION OF THE CONSULTANT AND THE CITY ................................................ 3 

X. COMPLETE AGREEMENT ................................................................................................................. 3 

XI. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS ............................................................................................................ 3 

XII. EXECUTION AND ACCEPTANCE ................................................................................................. 3

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

1. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS .................................................................................................... 1 

2. TIME FOR BEGINNING AND COMPLETION ............................................................................ 1 

3. SUBCONTRACTING ............................................................................................................................. 1

4. EMPLOYMENT ........................................................................................................................................ 2 

5. NONDISCRIMINATION ....................................................................................................................... 2 

6. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT .................................................................................................. 4 

7. CHANGES OF WORK ........................................................................................................................... 5 

8. DISPUTES .................................................................................................................................................. 5 

9. VENUE, APPLICABLE LAW AND PERSONAL JURISDICTION....................................... 5 

10. LEGAL RELATIONS AND INSURANCE ..................................................................................... 5 

11. INDEMNIFICATION REQUIREMENTS ........................................................................................ 6 

12. INSURANCE. ............................................................................................................................................ 6 

13. EXTRA WORK ......................................................................................................................................... 8 

14. ENDORSEMENT OF PLANS .............................................................................................................. 8 

15. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY ...................................................................................................................... 9



Table of Contents - 2 

EXHIBITS 

EXHIBIT A-1 ........................................................................................................................................................... 1 

CERTIFICATION OF CONSULTANT ........................................................................................................... 1 

CERTIFICATION OF CITY OFFICIAL ......................................................................................................... 1

EXHIBIT A-2 ........................................................................................................................................................... 3 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, ...................................................... 3 

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS- PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS ....... 3

EXHIBIT B ................................................................................................................................................................ 4 

SCOPE OF WORK (ADD ON) .......................................................................................................................... 4

EXHIBIT C ................................................................................................................................................................ 5 

PAYMENT (NEGOTIATED HOURLY RATE PLUS COSTS) .............................................................. 5

EXHIBIT D-1 ........................................................................................................................................................... 8 

CONSULTANT FEE DETERMINATION - SUMMARY SHEET ........................................................ 8

EXHIBIT D-2 ........................................................................................................................................................... 9 

CONSULTANT FEE DETERMINATION - SUMMARY SHEET ........................................................ 9 

(SPECIFIC RATES OF PAY) ............................................................................................................................. 9

EXHIBIT F .............................................................................................................................................................. 10 

PAYMENT UPON TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT BY CITY .................................................... 10 

OTHER THAN FOR FAULT OF THE CONSULTANT ......................................................................... 10

EXHIBIT G-1 ......................................................................................................................................................... 11 

SUBCONSULTANT FEE DETERMINATION -- SUMMARY SHEET ........................................... 11

EXHIBIT G-2 ......................................................................................................................................................... 12 

BREAKDOWN OF SUBCONSULTANT'S OVERHEAD COST ........................................................ 12 



Consultant Contract - 1 
(Hourly Rate(s) Plus Costs) 
6/17/2008 11:42 AM 

CONSULTANT CONTRACT 
HEADING

I. INSTRUCTIONS

This contract must be completed in full, including all applicable exhibits.  If an exhibit is not 
applicable, it should be marked "VOID". 

Any changes or additions to this contract must be made in writing and set forth below.  (The 
parties may attach appendices and exhibits to this contract but they must be listed in Section IV 
below.)  Any exceptions or changes to the General Requirements must be listed in Section XI of 
the contract. 

II.   CONSULTANT INFORMATION

Name:        

Address:        

Telephone/Fax No.:        

Federal ID No.:        

Do you require a 1099 for the IRS?        

III. PROJECT INFORMATION

Protect Title:        

Project Description:        

 Project Completion Date:        
 Maximum Amount Payable:        
 Progress Payments:        

IV. ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTS ADDED TO THIS CONTRACT

Materials Testing & Consulting, Inc.

777 Chrysler Drive, Burlington, WA 98233

P. 360-755-1990 / F. 360-755-1980

91-1694934

Not for this project

North Reservoir, ENG06-43, Washington

Special Inspection & Materials Testing

MTC proposal for services



Consultant Contract - 2 
(Hourly Rate(s) Plus Costs) 
6/17/2008 11:42 AM 

AGREEMENT

V. INTRODUCTION 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this       day of       ,  
     , between the City of Oak Harbor, Washington, hereinafter called the "CITY", and the 
below identified organization hereinafter called the "CONSULTANT" consists of this 
agreement, the exhibits and the General Requirements attached hereto. 

WITNESSETH THAT: 

WHEREAS, the CITY desires to accomplish the above-referenced project, and 

WHEREAS, the CITY does not have sufficient staff to meet the required commitment and, 
therefore, deems it advisable and desirable to engage the assistance of a CONSULTANT to 
provide the necessary services for the PROJECT; and 

WHEREAS, the CONSULTANT represents that he/she is in compliance with the Washington 
State statutes relating to professional registration, if applicable, and has signified a willingness to 
furnish consulting services to the CITY; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions, covenants and performance 
contained herein, or attached and incorporated and made a part hereof, the parties hereto agree as 
follows: 

VI. GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF WORK

The work under this AGREEMENT shall consist of the work and services described in Section 
III of this AGREEMENT and as herein defined and necessary to accomplish the completed work 
for this PROJECT.  The CONSULTANT shall furnish all services, labor and related equipment 
necessary to conduct and complete the work as designated elsewhere in this AGREEMENT. 

VII. SCOPE OF WORK

The Scope of Work and project level of effort for this project is detailed in Exhibit "B" attached 
hereto, and by this reference made a part of this AGREEMENT. 

VIII. PAYMENT

The CONSULTANT shall be paid by the CITY for completed work and services rendered under 
this AGREEMENT on the basis of a negotiated hourly rate plus costs as provided in Exhibit "C" 
attached hereto, and by this reference made part of this AGREEMENT.  Such payment shall be 
full compensation for work performed or services rendered and for all labor, materials, supplies, 
equipment, and incidentals necessary to complete the work specified in Exhibit "B" attached 

3 April 2013



Consultant Contract - 3 
(Hourly Rate(s) Plus Costs) 
6/17/2008 11:42 AM 

hereto and by this reference made part of this AGREEMENT; except for out of pocket costs as 
identified in Exhibit "C". 

IX. CERTIFICATION OF THE CONSULTANT AND THE CITY

Attached hereto as Exhibit "A-1" is the Certification of the Consultant and Certification of City 
Official.  Exhibit "A-2" is the Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other 
Responsibility Matters - Primary Covered Transactions. 

X. COMPLETE AGREEMENT

This document and referenced attachments contain all covenants, stipulations and provisions 
agreed upon by the parties.  No agent or representative of either party has authority to make, and 
the parties shall not be bound by or be liable for, any statement, representation, promise or 
agreement not set forth herein.  No changes, amendments, or modifications of the terms hereof 
shall be valid unless reduced to writing and signed by the parties as an amendment to this 
AGREEMENT. 

XI. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

The General Requirements for Consulting Contract, on file in the City Clerk's Office at Oak 
Harbor City Hall, a copy of which is attached hereto, shall apply to this AGREEMENT except as 
modified in this Section XI (General Requirements).  The CONSULTANT has assured that the 
attached copy of the General Requirements conforms to the set filed in the City Clerk's Office. 

General provisions are modified to provide that "CONSULTANT shall provide period reports as 
required and not necessarily on a monthly basis." 

XII. EXECUTION AND ACCEPTANCE

This AGREEMENT may be simultaneously executed in several counterparts, each of which 
shall be deemed to be an original having identical legal effect.  The CONSULTANT does hereby 
ratify and adopt all statements, representations, warranties, covenants, and agreements contained 
in the proposal, and the supporting materials submitted by the CONSULTANT, and does hereby 
accept the AGREEMENT and agrees to all of the terms and conditions thereof. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this AGREEMENT as of the day 
and year first above written. 

By       By      
Consultant:            Agency:        
         Principal 

Materials Testing & Consulting, Inc.
Raymond McNamara



Consultant Contract - 4 
(Hourly Rate(s) Plus Costs) 
6/17/2008 11:42 AM 

I,      , Consultant, certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Washington 
that this copy of the General Requirements for Consultant Contract conform to the set filed in the 
Clerk's Office. 

Dated:    
       By     

*

* Materials Testing & Consulting, Inc.

Raymond McNamara
Director of Operations

April 3, 2013



Consultant Contract - 1 
General Requirements 
6/17/2008 11:42 AM 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

1. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

All aspects of coordination of the work of this AGREEMENT, with outside agencies, groups or 
individuals shall receive advance approval by the CITY.  Necessary contacts and meetings with 
agencies, groups or individuals shall be coordinated through the CITY. 

The CONSULTANT shall attend coordination, progress and presentation meetings with the 
CITY or such officials, groups or individuals as may be requested by the CITY.  The CITY will 
provide the CONSULTANT sufficient notice prior to meetings requiring CONSULTANT's 
participation.  The minimum number of hours or days notice required shall be agreed to between 
the CITY and the CONSULTANT and shown in Exhibit "B" attached hereto and made part of 
this AGREEMENT.  The CONSULTANT shall prepare a monthly progress report as needed by 
the CITY (but in no case shall it be more than once a month), in a form approved by the CITY, 
that will outline in written and graphical form the various phases and the order of performance of 
the work in sufficient detail so that the progress of the work can easily be evaluated. 

All reports and other data, furnished to the CONSULTANT by the CITY shall be returned.  All 
designs, drawings, specifications, documents, and other work products prepared by the 
CONSULTANT prior to completion or termination of this AGREEMENT are instruments of 
service for this PROJECT and are property of the CITY.  Reuse by the CITY or by others acting 
through or on behalf of the CITY of any such instruments of service, not occurring as part of this 
PROJECT, shall be without liability or legal exposure to the CONSULTANT. 

2. TIME FOR BEGINNING AND COMPLETION 

The CONSULTANT shall not begin any work under the terms of this AGREEMENT until 
authorized in writing by the CITY.  All work under this AGREEMENT shall be completed by 
the date shown in Section III of this AGREEMENT under "Project Completion Date". 

The established completion time shall not be extended because of any delays attributable to the 
CONSULTANT, but may be extended by the CITY, in the event of a delay attributable to the 
CITY, or because of unavoidable delays caused by an act of God, governmental actions or other 
conditions beyond the control of the CONSULTANT.  A prior supplemental agreement issued 
by the CITY is required to extend the established completion date. 

3. SUBCONTRACTING

The CITY permits subcontracts for only those items of work designated for subcontracts in 
Exhibit "G-1" or "G-2" to this AGREEMENT. 

The work of the subconsultant shall not exceed its maximum amount payable unless prior written 
approval has been issued by the CITY. 



Consultant Contract - 2 
General Requirements 
6/17/2008 11:42 AM 

All reimbursable direct labor, overhead, direct non-salary costs and fixed fee costs for the 
subconsultant shall be substantiated in the same manner as outlined in Section VIII.  All 
subcontracts exceeding Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) in cost shall contain all applicable 
provisions of this AGREEMENT. 

The CONSULTANT shall not subcontract for the performance of any work under this 
AGREEMENT without prior written permission of the CITY.  No permission for subcontracting 
shall create, between the CITY and subcontractor, any contract or any other relationship. 

4. EMPLOYMENT

The CONSULTANT warrants that he/she has not employed or retained any company or person, 
other than a bona fide employee working solely for the CONSULTANT, to solicit or secure this 
contract, and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide 
employee working solely for the CONSULTANT, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage 
fee, gift, or any other consideration, contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of 
this contract.  For breach or violation of this warrant, the CITY shall have the right to annul this 
AGREEMENT without liability, or in its discretion, to deduct from the AGREEMENT price or 
consideration or otherwise recover the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage, 
brokerage fee, gift, or contingent fee. 

Any and all employees of the CONSULTANT or other persons while engaged in the 
performance of any work or services required of the CONSULTANT under this AGREEMENT, 
shall be considered employees of the CONSULTANT only and not of the CITY, and any and all 
claims that may or might arise under any Workers' Compensation Act on behalf of said 
employees or other persons while so engaged, and any and all claims made by a third party as a 
consequence of any act or omission on the part of the CONSULTANT's employees or other 
persons while so engaged on any of the work or services provided to be rendered herein, shall be 
the sole obligation and responsibility of the CONSULTANT. 

The CONSULTANT shall not engage, on a full or part time basis, or other basis, during the 
period of the contract, any professional or technical personnel who are, or have been, at any time 
during the period of the contract, in the employ of the CITY, except regularly retired employees, 
without written consent of the public employer of such person. 

5. NONDISCRIMINATION

The CONSULTANT agrees not to discriminate against any client, employee or applicant for 
employment or for services because of race, creed, color, national origin, marital status, sexual 
orientation, sex, age, honorably discharged veteran or military status, or the presence of any 
sensory, mental or physical disability or the use of a trained dog guide or service animal by a 
person with a disability; unless based upon a bona fide occupational qualification; with regard to, 
but not limited to, the following:  employment upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment or 
any recruitment advertising, a layoff or termination, rate of pay or other forms of compensation, 
selection for training, or rendition of services.  The CONSULTANT understands and agrees that 
if it violates this provision, this AGREEMENT may be terminated by the CITY and further that 



Consultant Contract - 3 
General Requirements 
6/17/2008 11:42 AM 

the CONSULTANT shall be barred from performing any services for the CITY now or in the 
future unless a showing is made satisfactory to the CITY that discriminatory practices have 
terminated and that recurrence of such action is unlikely. 

During the performance of this AGREEMENT, CONSULTANT, for itself, its assignees and 
successors in interest agrees as follows: 

A. COMPLIANCE WITH REGULATIONS:  The CONSULTANT shall comply with the 
applicable federal law relative to nondiscrimination, Title 49, Code of Federal 
Regulations, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this 
AGREEMENT.  The CONSULTANT shall comply with the Americans with Disabilities 
Act of 1992, as amended. 

B. INFORMATION AND REPORTS:  The CONSULTANT shall provide all information 
and reports required by the CITY and shall permit access to its books, records, accounts, 
other sources of information, and its facilities as may be determined by the CITY to be 
pertinent to ascertain compliance with such state or federal law.  Where any information 
required of the CONSULTANT is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or 
refuses to furnish this information, the CONSULTANT shall so certify to the CITY, and 
shall set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information. 

C. SANCTIONS FOR NONCOMPLIANCE:  In the event of the CONSULTANT's 
noncompliance with the nondiscrimination provisions of this AGREEMENT, the CITY 
shall impose such sanctions as it may determine to be appropriate, including, but not 
limited to: 

(1) Withholding of payments to the CONSULTANT under the AGREEMENT until 
the CONSULTANT complies, and/or 

(2) Cancellation, termination or suspension of the AGREEMENT, in whole or in part. 

D. INCORPORATION OF PROVISIONS:  The CONSULTANT shall include the 
provisions of paragraphs (A) through (E) in every subcontract, including procurement of 
materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the Regulations or directives issued 
pursuant thereto.  The CONSULTANT shall take such action with respect to any 
subconsultant or procurement as the CITY may direct as a means of enforcing such 
provisions including sanctions for noncompliance; provided, however, that, in the event a 
CONSULTANT becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a 
subconsultant or supplier as a result of such direction, the CONSULTANT may request 
the CITY to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the CITY. 

E. UNFAIR EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES:  The CONSULTANT shall comply with 
RCW 49.60.180 and Executive Order number E.O. 77-13 of the Governor of the State of 
Washington which prohibits unfair employment practices. 



Consultant Contract - 4 
General Requirements 
6/17/2008 11:42 AM 

6. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT

The right is reserved by the CITY to terminate this AGREEMENT at any time upon ten (10) 
days' written notice to the CONSULTANT. 

In the event this AGREEMENT is terminated by the CITY other than for default on the part of 
the CONSULTANT, a final payment shall be made to the CONSULTANT as shown in Exhibit 
"F". 

No payment shall be made for any work completed after ten (10) days following receipt by the 
CONSULTANT of the Notice to Terminate.  If the accumulated payment made to the 
CONSULTANT prior to Notice to Terminate exceeds the total amount that would be due, 
computed as set forth herein above, then no final payment shall be due and the CONSULTANT 
shall immediately reimburse the CITY for any excess paid. 

If the services of the CONSULTANT are terminated by the CITY for default on the part of the 
CONSULTANT, the above formula for payment shall not apply.  In such an event, the amount to 
be paid shall be determined by the CITY with consideration given to the actual costs incurred by 
the CONSULTANT in performing the work to the date of termination, the amount of work 
originally required which was satisfactorily completed to date of termination, whether that work 
is in a form or a type which is usable to the CITY at the time of termination; the cost to the CITY 
of employing another firm to complete the work required and the time which may be required to 
do so, and other factors which affect the value to the CITY of the work performed at the time of 
termination.  Under no circumstances shall payment made under this subsection exceed the 
amount which would have been made using the formula set forth in the previous paragraph. 

If it is determined for any reasons that the CONSULTANT was not in default or that the 
CONSULTANT's failure to perform is without it or its employee's fault or negligence, the 
termination shall be deemed to be a termination for the convenience of the CITY in accordance 
with the provision of this AGREEMENT. 

In the event of death of any member, partner or officer of the CONSULTANT or any of its 
supervisory personnel assigned to the project, or, dissolution of the partnership, termination of 
the corporation, or disaffiliation of the principally involved employee, the surviving members of 
the CONSULTANT hereby agree to complete the work under the terms of this AGREEMENT, 
if requested to do so by the CITY.  This subsection shall not be a bar to renegotiation of the 
AGREEMENT between the surviving members of the CONSULTANT and the CITY, if the 
CITY so chooses. 

In the event of the death of any of the parties listed in the previous paragraph, should the 
surviving members of the CONSULTANT, with the CITY's concurrence, desire to terminate this 
AGREEMENT, payment shall be made as set forth in the second paragraph of this section. 

Payment for any part of the work by the CITY shall not constitute a waiver by the CITY of any 
remedies of any type it may have against the CONSULTANT, or for failure of the 



Consultant Contract - 5 
General Requirements 
6/17/2008 11:42 AM 

CONSULTANT to perform work required of it by the CITY.  Forbearance of any rights under 
the AGREEMENT will not constitute waiver of entitlement to exercise those rights with respect 
to any future act or omission by the CONSULTANT. 

7. CHANGES OF WORK

The CONSULTANT shall make changes and revisions in the complete work of this 
AGREEMENT as necessary to correct errors appearing therein, when required to do so by the 
CITY, without additional compensation thereof.  Should the CITY find it desirable for its own 
purposes to have previously satisfactorily completed work or parts thereof changed or revised, 
the CONSULTANT shall make such revisions as directed by the CITY.  This work shall be 
considered as Extra Work and will be paid for as herein provided under General Requirements, 
Section 13. 

8. DISPUTES

Any dispute concerning questions of fact in connection with the work not disposed of by 
AGREEMENT between the CONSULTANT and the CITY shall be referred for determination to 
the City Administrator or his/her designee, whose decision in the matter shall be final and 
binding on the parties of this AGREEMENT, provided, however, that if an action is brought 
challenging the Public Works Superintendent or City Engineer's decision, that decision shall be 
subject to de novo judicial review. 

9. VENUE, APPLICABLE LAW AND PERSONAL JURISDICTION

In the event that either party deems it necessary to institute legal action or proceedings to enforce 
any right or obligation under this AGREEMENT, the parties hereto agree that any such action 
shall be initiated in the Superior Court of the State of Washington, situated in Island County.  
The parties hereto agree that all questions shall be resolved by application of Washington law 
and that the parties to such action shall have the right of appeal from such decisions of the 
Superior Court in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington.  The CONSULTANT 
hereby consents to the personal jurisdiction of the Superior Court of the State of Washington, 
situated in Island County. 

10. LEGAL RELATIONS AND INSURANCE

A. The CONSULTANT shall comply with all Federal, State, and local laws and ordinances 
applicable to the work to be done under this AGREEMENT.  This AGREEMENT shall 
be interpreted and construed in accordance with the laws of Washington. 

B. The CONSULTANT's relation to the CITY shall be at all times as an independent 
contractor and not as an employee. 

C. Unless otherwise specified in the AGREEMENT, the CITY shall be responsible for 
administration of construction contracts, if any, on the project.  Subject to the processing 
of an acceptable, supplemental agreement, the CONSULTANT shall provide on-call 



Consultant Contract - 6 
General Requirements 
6/17/2008 11:42 AM 

assistance to the CITY during contract administration.  By providing such assistance, the 
CONSULTANT shall assume no responsibility for:  proper construction techniques, job 
site safety, or any construction contractor's failure to perform its work in accordance with 
the contract documents. 

D. The CITY will pay no payments under Section VIII "Payments" until the 
CONSULTANT has fully complied with this section.  This remedy is not exclusive; and 
the CITY may take such other action as is available to them under other provisions of this 
AGREEMENT, or otherwise in law. 

11. INDEMNIFICATION REQUIREMENTS 

Indemnification/Hold Harmless.  CONSULTANT shall defend, indemnify and hold the CITY, 
its officers, officials, employees and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, 
damages, losses or suits including attorney fees, arising out of or resulting from the acts, errors 
or omissions of the CONSULTANT in performance of this AGREEMENT, except for injuries 
and damages caused by the sole negligence of the CITY. 

Notwithstanding the provisions of the preceding paragraph, it is understood and mutually agreed 
by the CONSULTANT and the CITY that neither party will attempt to enforce strict liability for 
any act, error or omission against either party and that the work covered under this 
AGREEMENT will be completed by the CONSULTANT with the standard of care of the        
profession in the State of Washington. 

Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this AGREEMENT is subject to RCW 
4.24.115, then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to persons or 
damages to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of the 
CONSULTANT and the CITY, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers, the 
CONSULTANT's liability hereunder shall be only to the extent of the CONSULTANT's 
negligence.  It is further specifically and expressly understood that the indemnification provided 
herein constitutes the CONSULTANT's waiver of immunity under Industrial Insurance, Title 51 
RCW, solely for the purposes of this indemnification.  This waiver has been mutually negotiated 
by the parties.  The provisions of this section shall survive the expiration or termination of this 
AGREEMENT. 

12. INSURANCE.

The CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain for the duration of this AGREEMENT, 
insurance claims for injuries to persons or damage to property which may arise from or in 
connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the CONSULTANT, its agents, 
representatives or employees. 

A. No Limitation.  CONSULTANT's maintenance of insurance as required by the 
AGREEMENT shall not be construed to limit the liability of the CONSULTANT to the 
coverage provided by such insurance, or otherwise limit the CITY's recourse to any 
remedy available at law or in equity. 



Consultant Contract - 7 
General Requirements 
6/17/2008 11:42 AM 

B. Minimum Scope of Insurance.  CONSULTANT shall obtain insurance of the types 
described below: 

1. Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired and leased 
vehicles.  Coverage shall be written on Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CA 
00 01 or a substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage.  If necessary, 
the policy shall be endorsed to provide contractual liability coverage. 

2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written on ISO occurrence form 
CG 00 01 and shall cover liability arising from premises, operations, independent 
contractors and personal injury and advertising injury.  The CITY shall be named 
as an insured under the CONSULTANT's Commercial General Liability 
insurance policy with respect to the work performed for the CITY. 

3. Workers' Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance laws of 
the State of Washington. 

4. Professional Liability insurance appropriate to the CONSULTANT's profession. 

C. Minimum Amounts of Insurance.  CONSULTANT shall maintain the following 
insurance limits: 

1. Automobile Liability insurance with a minimum combined single limit for bodily 
injury and property damage of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident. 

2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written with limits no less than 
One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) each occurrence, Two Million Dollars 
($2,000,000.00) general aggregate. 

3. Professional Liability insurance shall be written with limits not less than One 
Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per claim and One Million Dollars 
($1,000,000.00) policy aggregate limit. 

D. Other Insurance Provisions.  The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to 
contain, the following provisions for Automobile Liability, Professional Liability and 
Commercial General Liability insurance: 

1. The CONSULTANT's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance with respect 
to the CITY.  Any insurance, self-insurance, or insurance pool coverage 
maintained by the CITY shall be in excess of the CONSULTANT's insurance and 
shall not contribute with it. 

2. The CONSULTANT's insurance shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not 
be cancelled by either party, except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by 
certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given to the CITY. 



Consultant Contract - 8 
General Requirements 
6/17/2008 11:42 AM 

E. Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. 
Best rating of not less than A:VII. 

F. Verification of Coverage.  CONSULTANT shall furnish the CITY with original 
certificates and a copy of the amendatory endorsements including, but not necessarily 
limited to, the additional insured endorsement evidencing the insurance requirements of 
the CONSULTANT before commencement of the work. 

13. EXTRA WORK

A. The CITY may at any time, by written order, make changes within the general scope of 
the AGREEMENT in the services to be performed. 

B. If any such change causes an increase or decrease in the estimated cost of, or the time 
required for, performance of any part of the work under this AGREEMENT, whether or 
not changed by the order, or otherwise affects any other terms and conditions of the 
AGREEMENT, the CITY shall make an equitable adjustment in the (1) maximum 
amount payable; (2) delivery or completion schedule, or both; and (3) other affected 
terms and shall modify the AGREEMENT accordingly.  If the change causes an increase 
in the maximum amount payable, it shall not become a part of this AGREEMENT unless 
and until a written amendment to the AGREEMENT is executed by both the CITY and 
the CONSULTANT. 

C. The CONSULTANT must submit its "request for equitable adjustment" (hereafter 
referred to as "claim") under this clause within thirty (30) days from the date of receipt of 
the written order.  However, if the CITY decides that the facts justify it, the CITY may 
receive and act upon a claim submitted before final payment of the AGREEMENT. 

D. Failure to agree to any adjustment shall be a dispute under the Disputes clause.  However, 
nothing in this clause shall excuse the CONSULTANT from proceeding with the 
AGREEMENT as changed. 

E. Notwithstanding the terms and conditions of paragraphs (A) and (B) above, the 
maximum amount payable for this AGREEMENT shall not be increased or considered to 
be increased except by specific written supplement to this AGREEMENT. 

14. ENDORSEMENT OF PLANS

The CONSULTANT shall place his endorsement on all plans, estimates or any other engineering 
data furnished by him. 



Consultant Contract - 9 
General Requirements 
6/17/2008 11:42 AM 

15. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

A. Compliance with 41 CFR 60-1.4 -- Equal Opportunity Clause.  The CITY incorporates 
41 CFR 60-1.4 -- Equal Opportunity Clause by reference. 

B. Compliance with 41 CFR 60-250.5 -- Equal Opportunity Clause (Special Disabled 
Veterans).

1. The CONSULTANT will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment because he or she is a special disabled veteran, veteran of the 
Vietnam era, recently separated veteran, or other protected veteran in regard to 
any position for which the employee or applicant for employment is qualified.  
The CONSULTANT agrees to take affirmative action to employ, advance in 
employment and otherwise treat qualified individuals without discrimination 
based on their status as a special disabled veteran, veteran of the Vietnam era, 
recently separated veteran, or other protected veteran in all employment practices, 
including the following: 

i. Recruitment, advertising, and job application procedures; 

ii. Hiring, upgrading, promotion, award of tenure, demotion, transfer, layoff, 
termination, right of return from layoff and rehiring;  

iii. Rates of pay or any other form of compensation and changes in 
compensation; 

iv. Job assignments, job classifications, organizational structures, position 
descriptions, lines of progression, and seniority lists; 

v. Leaves of absence, sick leave, or any other leave; 

vi. Fringe benefits available by virtue of employment, whether or not 
administered by the CONSULTANT; 

vii. Selection and financial support for training, including apprenticeship, and 
on-the-job training under 38 U.S.C. 3687, professional meetings, 
conferences, and other related activities, and selection for leaves of 
absence to pursue training; 

viii. Activities sponsored by the CONSULTANT including social or 
recreational programs; and 

ix. Any other term, condition, or privilege of employment. 



Consultant Contract - 10 
General Requirements 
6/17/2008 11:42 AM 

2. The CONSULTANT agrees to immediately list all employment openings which 
exist at the time of the execution of this AGREEMENT and those which occur 
during the performance of this AGREEMENT, including those not generated by 
this AGREEMENT and including those occurring at an establishment of the 
CONSULTANT other than the one wherein the AGREEMENT is being 
performed, but excluding those of independently operated corporate affiliates, at 
an appropriate local employment service office of the state employment security 
agency wherein the opening occurs.  Listing employment openings with the U.S. 
Department of Labor's America's Job Bank shall satisfy the requirement to list 
jobs with the local employment service office. 

3. Listing of employment openings with the local employment service office 
pursuant to this clause shall be made at least concurrently with the use of any 
other recruitment source or effort and shall involve the normal obligations which 
attach to the placing of a bona fide job order, including the acceptance of referrals 
of veterans and nonveterans.  The listing of employment openings does not 
require the hiring of any particular job applicants or from any particular group of 
job applicants, and nothing herein is intended to relieve the CONSULTANT from 
any requirements in Executive orders or regulations regarding nondiscrimination 
in employment. 

4. Whenever the CONSULTANT becomes contractually bound to the listing 
provisions in paragraphs 2 and 3 of this clause, it shall advise the state 
employment security agency in each state where it has establishments of the name 
and location of each hiring location in the state:  Provided, That this requirement 
shall not apply to state and local governmental CONSULTANTS.  As long as the 
CONSULTANT is contractually bound to these provisions and has so advised the 
state agency, there is no need to advise the state agency of subsequent 
AGREEMENTS.  The CONSULTANT may advise the state agency when it is no 
longer bound by this AGREEMENT clause. 

5. The provisions of paragraphs 2 and 3 of this clause do not apply to the listing of 
employment openings which occur and are filled outside of the 50 states, the 
District of Columbia, the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, Guam, and the Virgin 
Islands.

6. As used in this clause: 

i. All employment openings include all positions except executive and top 
management, those positions that will be filled from within the 
CONSULTANT's organization, and positions lasting three (3) days or 
less.  This term includes full-time employment, temporary employment of 
more than (3) three days' duration, and part-time employment. 



Consultant Contract - 11 
General Requirements 
6/17/2008 11:42 AM 

ii. Executive and top management means any employee: 

(a) whose primary duty consists of the management of the enterprise 
in which he or she is employed or of a customarily recognized 
department or subdivision thereof; and 

(b) who customarily and regularly directs the work of two (2) or more 
other employees therein; and  

(c) who has the authority to hire or fire other employees or whose 
suggestions and recommendations as to the hiring or firing and as 
to the advancement and promotion or any other change of status of 
other employees will be given particular weight; and 

(d) who customarily and regularly exercises discretionary powers; and 

(e) who does not devote more than twenty percent (20%), or, in the 
case of an employee of a retail or service establishment who does 
not devote as much as forty percent (40%), of his or her hours of 
work in the work week to activities which are not directly and 
closely related to the performance of the work described in (a) 
through (d) of this paragraph 6.ii.; Provided, that (e) of this 
paragraph 6.ii. shall not apply in the case of an employee who is in 
sole charge of an independent establishment or a physically 
separated branch establishment, or who owns at least a twenty 
percent (20%) interest in the enterprise in which he or she is 
employed. 

iii. Positions that will be filled from within the CONSULTANT's organization 
means employment openings for which no consideration will be given to 
persons outside the CONSULTANT's organization (including any 
affiliates, subsidiaries, and parent companies) and includes any openings 
which the contractor proposes to fill from regularly established "recall" 
lists.  The exception does not apply to a particular opening once an 
employer decides to consider applicants outside of his or her own 
organization.

7. The CONSULTANT agrees to comply with the rules, regulations, and relevant 
orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to the Act. 

8. In the event of the CONSULTANT's noncompliance with the requirements of this 
clause, actions for noncompliance may be taken in accordance with the rules, 
regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to the 
Act.



Consultant Contract - 12 
General Requirements 
6/17/2008 11:42 AM 

9. The CONSULTANT agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees 
and applicants for employment, notices in a form to be prescribed by the Deputy 
Assistant Secretary for Federal Contract Compliance, provided by or through the 
contracting officer.  Such notices shall state the rights of applicants and 
employees as well as the CONSULTANT's obligation under the law to take 
affirmative action to employ and advance in employment qualified employees and 
applicants who are special disabled veterans, veterans of the Vietnam era, recently 
separated veterans, or other protected veterans.  The CONSULTANT must ensure 
that applicants or employees who are special disabled veterans are informed of the 
contents of the notice (e.g., the CONSULTANT may have the notice read to a 
visually disabled individual, or may lower the posted notice so that it might be 
read by a person in a wheelchair). 

10. The CONSULTANT will notify each labor organization or representative of 
workers with which it has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract 
understanding, that the CONSULTANT is bound by the terms of the Vietnam Era 
Veterans' Readjustment Assistance Act of 1974, as amended, and is committed to 
take affirmative action to employ and advance in employment qualified special 
disabled veterans, veterans of the Vietnam era, recently separated veterans, and 
other protected veterans. 

11. The CONSULTANT will include the provisions of this clause in every 
subcontract or purchase order of Twenty-five Thousand Dollars ($25,000.00) or 
more, unless exempted by the rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary issued 
pursuant to the Vietnam Era Veterans' Readjustment Assistance Act of 1974, as 
amended, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or 
vendor.  The CONSULTANT will take such action with respect to any 
subcontract or purchase order as the Deputy Assistant Secretary for Federal 
Contract Compliance may direct to enforce such provisions, including action for 
noncompliance. 

C. Compliance with 41 CFR 60-741.5 -- Equal Opportunity Clause (Workers with 
Disabilities).

1. The CONSULTANT will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment because of physical or mental disability in regard to any position for 
which the employee or applicant for employment is qualified.  The 
CONSULTANT agrees to take affirmative action to employ, advance in 
employment and otherwise treat qualified individuals with disabilities without 
discrimination based on their physical or mental disability in all employment 
practices, including the following: 

i. Recruitment, advertising, and job application procedures; 



Consultant Contract - 13 
General Requirements 
6/17/2008 11:42 AM 

ii. Hiring, upgrading, promotion, award of tenure, demotion, transfer, layoff, 
termination, right of return from layoff and rehiring; 

iii. Rates of pay or any other form of compensation and changes in 
compensation; 

iv. Job assignments, job classifications, organizational structures, position 
descriptions, lines of progression, and seniority lists; 

v. Leaves of absence, sick leave, or any other leave; 

vi. Fringe benefits available by virtue of employment, whether or not 
administered by the CONSULTANT; 

vii. Selection and financial support for training, including apprenticeship, 
professional meetings, conferences, and other related activities, and 
selection for leaves of absence to pursue training; 

viii. Activities sponsored by the CONSULTANT including social or 
recreational programs; and 

ix. Any other term, condition, or privilege of employment. 

2. The CONSULTANT agrees to comply with the rules, regulations, and relevant 
orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to the act. 

3. In the event of the CONSULTANT's noncompliance with the requirements of this 
clause, actions for noncompliance may be taken in accordance with the rules, 
regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to the 
act. 

4. The CONSULTANT agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees 
and applicants for employment, notices in a form to be prescribed by the Deputy 
Assistant Secretary for Federal Contract Compliance Programs, provided by or 
through the contracting officer.  Such notices shall state the rights of applicants 
and employees as well as the CONSULTANT's obligation under the law to take 
affirmative action to employ and advance in employment qualified employees and 
applicants with disabilities.  The CONSULTANT must ensure that applicants and 
employees with disabilities are informed of the contents of the notice (e.g., the 
contractor may have the notice read to a visually disabled individual, or may 
lower the posted notice so that it might be read by a person in a wheelchair). 

5. The CONSULTNAT will notify each labor organization or representative of 
workers with which it has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract 
understanding, that the contractor is bound by the terms of section 503 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, and is committed to take affirmative 



Consultant Contract - 14 
General Requirements 
6/17/2008 11:42 AM 

action to employ and advance in employment individuals with physical or mental 
disabilities. 

6. The CONSULTANT will include the provisions of this clause in every 
subcontract or purchase order in excess of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00), 
unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary issued pursuant 
to section 503 of the act, as amended, so that such provisions will be binding upon 
each subcontractor or vendor.  The CONSULTANT will take such action with 
respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the Deputy Assistant Secretary for 
Federal Contract Compliance Programs may direct to enforce such provisions, 
including action for noncompliance. 



Exhibits - 1 
6/17/2008 11:42 AM 

EXHIBIT A-1 
CERTIFICATION OF CONSULTANT

Project No.       

I hereby certify that I am        a duly authorized representative of the firm of       whose 
address is       and that neither I nor the above firm I here represent has: 

(a) employed or retained for a commission, percentage, brokerage, contingent fee or other 
consideration, any firm or person (other than a bona fide employee working solely for me 
or the above CONSULTANT) to solicit or secure this contract. 

(b) agreed, as an express or implied condition for obtaining this contract, to employ or retain 
the services of any firm or person in connection with carrying out the contract. 

(c) paid, or agreed to pay, to any firm, organization or person (other than a bona fide 
employee working solely for me or the above CONSULTANT) any fee, contribution, 
donation or consideration of any kind for, or in connection with procuring or carrying out 
the contract; except as here expressly stated (if any). 

I further certify that the firm I here represent is authorized to do business in the State of 
Washington and that the firm is in full compliance with the requirements of the Board of 
Professional Registration. 

I acknowledge that this certificate is subject to applicable State and Federal laws, both criminal 
and civil. 

Date       Signature 

CERTIFICATION OF CITY OFFICIAL

I hereby certify that I am the responsible City official for the City of Oak Harbor, Washington, 
for this AGREEMENT and that the above consulting firm or its representative has not been 
required directly or indirectly as an express or implied condition in connection with obtaining or 
carrying out this contract to: 

(a) employ or retain, or agree to employ or retain, any firm or person; or 

(b) pay or agree to pay to any firm, person or organization, any fee, contribution, donation or 
consideration of any kind, except as here expressly stated (if any). 

Raymond McNamara
^ ^

Materials Testing & Consulting, Inc.

*
*777 Chrysler Drive, Burlington, WA 98233

April 3, 2013



Exhibits - 2 
6/17/2008 11:42 AM 

I acknowledge that this certificate is subject to applicable State and Federal laws, both criminal 
and civil. 

Date       Signature 



Exhibits - 3 
6/17/2008 11:42 AM 

EXHIBIT A-2 
CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, 

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS- 
PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

1. The CONSULTANT, through the prospective primary participant, certifies to the best of 
its knowledge and belief, that it and its principals: 

a. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any State or 
Federal department or city; 

b. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or 
had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission or fraud or a criminal 
offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public 
(federal, state or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation 
of federal or state antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, 
forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, 
or receiving stolen property; 

c. are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a 
governmental entity (federal, state or local) with commission of any of the 
offenses enumerated in paragraph 1.b. of this certification; and 

d. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or 
more public transactions (federal, state or local) terminated for cause or default. 

2. Where the CONSULTANT, through the prospective primary participant, is unable to 
certify to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective participant shall 
attach an explanation to this proposal. 

Consultant (Firm):       

Date       President or Authorized Official or 
       Consultant Signature 

April 3, 2013



Exhibits - 4 
6/17/2008 11:42 AM 

EXHIBIT B 
SCOPE OF WORK (ADD ON) 

Project No.      

See attached documents furnished by the Consultant



Materials Testing & Consulting, Inc.

Inspection & Laboratory Testing Services Visits Units Quantity Rate Cost
Utility Trench Compaction - Assumes 4 Trips 4 Hours 16  $       48.00  $              768.00 
Reservoir Area Subgrade Compaction & Backfill - Assumes 2 Trips 4 Hours 16  $       48.00  $              768.00 
Roadway Subgrade - Verify Subgrade, Storage Bed, Choker Courses, 6 
Trips 6 Hours 24  $       48.00  $           1,152.00 
Reservoir Area Asphalt Paving 1 Hours 8  $       48.00  $              384.00 
Roadway & Reservoir Area Perviour Asphalt Paving 2 Hours 16  $       48.00  $              768.00 
Proctor with Sieve Analysis - CSBC, Gravel for Trench Backfill, Foundation 
Gravel - Each 3  $     225.00  $              675.00 
Combined Gradation - Bedding For Electrical, Gravel Backfill for Dry 
Wells, Pipe Bedding, Choker Course and Storage Bed Products - Each 8  $       95.00  $              760.00 
Sand Equivalent - Incl. Extracted Asphalt Fine Aggregate - Each 5  $       80.00  $              400.00 
Fracture Percentage - Each 2  $       50.00  $              100.00 
Asphalt Extraction / Gradation - Paving Under Reservior - Each 1  $     225.00  $              225.00 
Asphalt Maximum Theoretical Specific Gravity (Rice Density) - Each 1  $       75.00  $                75.00 

 $           6,075.00 

Inspection & Laboratory Testing Services Visits Units Quantity Rate Cost
Reservoir Ringwall & Column Pad Foundations - Assumes 2 Pours 2 Hours 10  $       48.00  $              480.00 
Column Plinths 1 Hours 5  $       48.00  $              240.00 
E Access Well Slab 1 Hours 5  $       48.00  $              240.00 
E Access Well Walls 1 Hours 5  $       48.00  $              240.00 
E Access Walls Upper Slab 1 Hours 5  $       48.00  $              240.00 
Center Drain Slab 1 Hours 5  $       48.00  $              240.00 
Center Drain Walls 1 Hours 5  $       48.00  $              240.00 
Concrete Test Cylinders - Set of 4, Per 50 CY - Each 40  $       18.00  $              720.00 

 $           2,640.00 

Inspection Service Visits Units Quantity Rate  Cost 
Fabrication Shop - AISC Approval Assumed - AWS Certified Welding 
Inspector (CWI) Audit Only 1 Hours 4  $       75.00  $              300.00 
AWS Certified Welding Inspector - Procedural qualifications testing (Visual 
inspection of welding with equal and smaller rod diameter per AWWA 
D100 Section 11.4.5.1) - Assumes 4 welders 3 Hours 18  $       75.00  $           1,350.00 
Site Erection & Visual Welding 12 Hours 72  $       56.00  $           4,032.00 
Non-Destructive Testing:  Ultrasonic Testing: 3 Hours 15  $       65.00  $              975.00 

Subconsultant: Mistras Group, Inc : Non-Destructive Testing: Radiographic 
Testing - 1 test per qualification procedure per welder, 1 test per 100 LF of 
butt splice weld per AWWA D100 Section 11.5.1 10 Hours 80  $     115.00  $           9,200.00 
Subconsultant: Mistras Group, Inc : Non-Destructive Testing: Radiographic 
Testing - 17" Film [Per Sheet] - Per sheet 50  $        5.52  $              276.00 
Subconsultant: Mistras Group, Inc : Non-Destructive Testing: Radiographic 
Testing - Darkroom Truck / Source [Per Day] - Per day 10  $       51.75  $              517.50 
Subconsultant: Mistras Group, Inc : Travel Mileage - 100 miles RT [Federal 
Mileage Rate] - per mile 1000  $        0.55  $              550.00 

 $         17,200.50 

Inspection Services Visits Units Quantity Rate Cost
Coatings Inspections - Full time during installation, 50 day duration assumed 
for estimate, assumed 9 hrs per day for inspection 50 Hours 450  $       99.00  $         44,550.00 
Proprietary Anchors - Epoxy - If Required - Hours 0  $       48.00  - 

 $         44,550.00 

Prepared: January 28, 2013. Based on drawings dated January 2013 provided by Gray and Osbourne

Subtotal - Structural Steel Welding & Bolting:
��Special Cases - including Epoxy & Proprietary Anchorage inspections, Floor Flatness Testing, Suspended Ceilings, Spray Applied Fire Resistive Materials and 
other specialty testing and inspection items such as coating inspection or roofing evaluation

Subtotal - Special Cases:

��Structural Steel Welding, High-Strength Bolting, Metal Decking & Seismic Force Resisting Systems - including verification 
and documentation of AWS & WABO certifications; as well as verification and documentation of materials and procedural compliance with AWS D1.1 and AWS D1.3

Subtotal - Reinforced Concrete:

��Reinforced Concrete - including inspection of all mild reinforcement, concrete placement observation, sampling and sample pick-up.

Geotechnical Engineering & Consulting � Materials Testing � Special Inspection � Environmental Consulting

��Earthwork & Soils - including visual inspections, nuclear density testing and related work; all associated laboratory testing below is based on WSDOT testing 
protocols, unless otherwise specified in project documents

Subtotal - Earthwork & Soils:

Project Name - North Reservoir - ENG#06-43

Estimate for Services
Project Location - Vicinity of Gun Club Rd and Rifle Rd, Oak Harbor, Washington

EXHIBIT B



Service Visits Units Quantity Rate Cost
Project Management - Hours 40  $       75.00  $           3,000.00 
Digital Report Production & Distribution - Hours 0  No Charge  - 
Trip Charge (Based on Round Trip Mileage, Portal to Portal) - Trips 0  No Charge  - 

 $           3,000.00 
 $       73,465.50 Budget Estimate for Services - Total: 

��Support Services

Subtotal - Support Services:

JBLM
1705 North “I” Street
Fort Lewis, WA 98433
P: (253) 302-4433
F: (253) 302-4433

NW Region
2126 E Bakerview Rd #101
Bellingham WA 98226
P: (360) 647-9295
F: (360) 647-8111

Kitsap Region
5451 NW Newberry Hill Road
Silverdale, WA 98383
P: (360) 698-6787
F: (360) 698-6787

Corporate Office
777 Chrysler Dr.
Burlington, WA 98233
P: (360) 755-1990
F: (360) 755-1980

SW Region
2118 Black Lake Blvd SW
Olympia, WA 98512
P: (360) 534-9777
F: (360) 534-9779

EXHIBIT B, CONT''D



Exhibits - 5 
6/17/2008 11:42 AM 

EXHIBIT C 
PAYMENT (NEGOTIATED HOURLY RATE PLUS COSTS)

The CONSULTANT shall be paid by the CITY for completed work and services rendered under 
this AGREEMENT as provided hereinafter.  Such payment shall be full compensation for work 
performed or services rendered and for all labor, materials, supplies, equipment, and incidentals 
necessary to complete the work.  If a federal highway project, the CONSULTANT shall conform 
with all applicable portions of 48 CFR 31. 

1. Hourly Rates

 The CONSULTANT shall be paid by the CITY for work done, based upon the negotiated 
hourly rates shown in Exhibits "D-1" and "D-2" attached hereto and by this reference 
made part of this AGREEMENT.  The rates listed shall be applicable for the first twelve 
(12) month period and shall be subject to negotiation for the following twelve (12) month 
period upon request of the CONSULTANT or the CITY.  If negotiations are not 
conducted for the second or subsequent twelve (12) month periods within ninety (90) 
days after completion of the previous period, the rates listed in this AGREEMENT or 
subsequent written authorization(s) from the CITY shall be utilized for the life of the 
AGREEMENT.  The rates are inclusive of direct salaries, payroll additives, overhead and 
fees.

 In the event renegotiation of the hourly rates is conducted, the CITY reserves the right to 
audit for any change in the overhead rate currently in use by the CONSULTANT and 
modify the hourly rates to be paid to the CONSULTANT subsequent to the renegotiation 
accordingly.  Any changes in CONSULTANT's fixed hourly rates may include salary or 
overhead adjustments. 

2. Direct Non-salary Costs

 Direct non-salary costs will be reimbursed at the actual cost to the CONSULTANT.  
These charges may include, but are not limited to, the following items:  travel, printing, 
long distance telephone, supplies, computer charges, and fees of subconsultants.  Air or 
train travel will only be reimbursed to economy class levels unless otherwise approved by 
the CITY.  Automobile mileage for travel will be reimbursed as the current rate approved 
for CITY employees and shall be supported by the date and time of each trip with origin 
and designation of such trips.  Subsistence and lodging expenses will be reimbursed at 
the same rate as for CITY employees.  The billing for non-salary cost, directly 
identifiable with the PROJECT, shall be an itemized listing of the charges supported by 
the original bills, invoices, expense accounts, and miscellaneous supporting data retained 
by the CONSULTANT.  Copies of the original supporting documents shall be supplied to 
the CITY upon request.  All above charges must be necessary for the services provided 
under this AGREEMENT. 



Exhibits - 6 
6/17/2008 11:42 AM 

3. Management Reserve Fund

 The CITY may desire to establish a Management Reserve Fund to provide the Agreement 
Administrator the flexibility of authorizing additional funds to the AGREEMENT for 
allowable unforeseen costs, or reimbursing the CONSULTANT for additional work 
beyond that already defined in this AGREEMENT.  Such authorization(s) shall be in 
writing and shall not exceed the lesser of Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00) or ten 
percent (10%) of the Total Amount Authorized as shown in the heading of this 
AGREEMENT.  The amount included for the Management Reserve Fund is shown in the 
heading of this AGREEMENT.  This fund may be replenished in a subsequent 
supplement agreement.  Any changes requiring additional costs in excess of the 
"Management Reserve Fund" shall be made in accordance with Section 11, "Extra 
Work". 

4. Maximum Amount Payable

 The maximum amount payable for completion of work under this AGREEMENT shall 
not exceed the amount shown in the heading of this AGREEMENT.  The maximum 
amount payable includes the Management Reserve Fund, but does not include payment 
for extra work as stipulated in Section 11, "Extra Work" of the General Requirements.  
No minimum amount payable is guaranteed under this AGREEMENT. 

5. Monthly Progress Payments

 Progress payments may be claimed on a monthly basis for all costs authorized in (1) and 
(2) above.  The monthly invoices shall be supported by detailed statements for hours 
expended at the rates established in Exhibits "D-1" and "D-2", including names and 
classifications of all employees, and invoices for all direct non-salary expenses.  To 
provide a means of verifying the invoiced salary costs for the CONSULTANT's 
employees, the CITY may conduct employee interviews.  These interviews may consist 
of recording the names, titles, salary rates, and present duties of those employees 
performing work on the project at the time of the interview. 

6. Inspection of Cost Records

 The CONSULTANT and his/her subconsultants shall keep available for inspection by 
representatives of the CITY, State, and the United States, for a period of three (3) years 
after final payment, the cost records and accounts pertaining to this AGREEMENT and 
all items related to or bearing upon these records with the following exception:  if any 
litigation, claim, or audit is started before the three (3) year period, the records shall be 
retained until all litigation, claims, or audit filings involving the records have been 
resolved.  The three (3) year retention period begins when the CONSULTANT receives 
final payment. 



Exhibits - 7 
6/17/2008 11:42 AM 

7. Final Payment

 Final payment of any balance due the CONSULTANT of the gross amount earned will be 
made promptly upon its verification by the CITY after the completion of the work under 
this AGREEMENT, contingent upon receipt of all PS&E, plans, maps, notes, reports, and 
other related documents which are required to be furnished under this AGREEMENT.
Acceptance of such final payment by the CONSULTANT shall constitute a release of all 
claims for payment which the CONSULTANT may have against the CITY unless such 
claims are specifically reserved in writing and transmitted to the CITY by the 
CONSULTANT prior to its acceptance.  Said final payment shall not, however, be a bar 
to any claims that the CITY may have against the CONSULTANT or to any remedies the 
CITY may pursue with respect to such claims. 

 The payment of any billing will not constitute agreement as to the appropriateness of any 
item and at the time of final audit, all required adjustments will be made and reflected in 
a final payment.  In the event that such final audit reveals an overpayment to the 
CONSULTANT, the CONSULTANT will refund such overpayment to the CITY within 
ninety (90) days of notice of the overpayment.  Such refund shall not constitute a waiver 
by the CONSULTANT of any claims relating to the validity of a finding by the CITY of 
overpayment. 



Exhibits - 8 
6/17/2008 11:42 AM 

EXHIBIT D-1 
CONSULTANT FEE DETERMINATION - SUMMARY SHEET

Project:       

Direct Salary Cost (DSC): 

Classification Man Hours x Rate  =  Cost

   $   
   $   
   $   
   $   
   $   
   $   
   $   
   $   
   $   
   $   
   $   
   $   

Total DSC =    $   

Overhead (OH Cost -- including Salary Additives): 
  OH Rate x DSC of    % x $    $   

Fixed Fee (FF): 
  FF Rate x DSC of    % x $    $   

Reimbursables:
  Itemized       $   

Subconsultant Costs (See Exhibit "G"):     $   

Grand Total         $   

Prepared by       Date     



Exhibits - 9 
6/17/2008 11:42 AM 

EXHIBIT D-2 
CONSULTANT FEE DETERMINATION - SUMMARY SHEET 

(Specific Rates of Pay) 

Fee Schedule 

Discipline or Job Title  Hourly Overhead Profit  Rate 
     Rate  @ % @ % Per Hour 



Exhibits - 10 
6/17/2008 11:42 AM 

EXHIBIT F 
PAYMENT UPON TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT BY CITY 

OTHER THAN FOR FAULT OF THE CONSULTANT 
(Refer to General Requirements, Section 3)

Specific Rates of Pay Contracts
A final payment shall be made to the CONSULTANT for actual hours charged at the time of 
termination of this AGREEMENT plus any direct non-salary costs incurred at the time of 
termination of this AGREEMENT. 



Exhibits - 11 
6/17/2008 11:42 AM 

EXHIBIT G-1 
SUBCONSULTANT FEE DETERMINATION -- SUMMARY SHEET

Project:       

Direct Salary Cost (DSC): 

Classification Man Hours x Rate  =  Cost

   $   
   $   
   $   
   $   
   $   
   $   
   $   
   $   
   $   
   $   
   $   
   $   

Total DSC =    $   

Overhead (OH Cost -- including Salary Additives): 
  OH Rate x DSC of    % x $    $   

Fixed Fee (FF): 
  FF Rate x DSC of    % x $    $   

Reimbursables:
  Itemized       $   

Grand Total         $   

Prepared by       Date     

North Reservoir- ENG#06-43

 Special Ins. II 40.00 22.50 900.00

Eng. Tech I 80.00 18.00 1,440.00
Special Ins. III 72.00 23.50 1,692.00

NDT Tech I 15.00 30.88 463.20

Project Manager 40.00 39.66 1,589.40

6,763.96

20

20

6,763.96 1,352.80

2,955.00 591.00

63,801.26

Raymond McNamara
April 3, 2013

CWI 22.00 30.88 679.36

 55,093.50



Description Statement MTC Adj T Adj. Ref. Amount %

Direct Labor 1,272,030$      $1,272,030 100.00%

Fringe Benefits:
Vac,Sick,Hol and Bonus 202,058 -2200  -excess comp $199,858 15.71%
Payroll Taxes Direct & NonDir 254,105 -15533  238,572 18.76%
Insur-Medical & Dental 153,492 -9716 143,776 11.30%
Simple Pension Plan 21,517 21,517 1.69%
Fringe Benefit Adjustment $0 O 0 0.00%

Total Fringe Benefits $631,172 ($27,449) $0 $603,723 47.46%

General Overhead:
Office & Mngmt & NonBill-W 729,300 729,300 57.33%
Sales/Mrktng Wages 142,681 (135,074) I,N 7,607 0.60%
Proposals & Bids Wages 109,324 0 109,324 8.59%
Accntants/Audits 2,402 0 2,402 0.19%
Advertising 5,536 (5,236) N 300 0.02%
Bad Debt Exp 0 0 B 0 0.00%
Bank Service Chrg 602 602 0.05%
Books & Periodicals 1,848 1,848 0.15%
Bus Cards/forms/Uforms 6,367 6,367 0.50%
Charity & Donations 3,548 (3,548) M 0 0.00%
Cleaning Services 10,681 10,681 0.84%
Meetings Client & EE's 9,248 9,248 0.73%
Client Marketing 7,430 (7,430) I,N 0 0.00%
Computer Hardware 7,091 7,091 0.56%
Computer Software 6,206 6,206 0.49%
Comp Internet 12,386 12,386 0.97%

Consult/ Programing 7,216 7,216 0.57%
Dept Licenses & Certifictns 23,424 0 23,424 1.84%
Dues & Subscr 6,023 (400) H 5,623 0.44%
Drug Testing 892 892 0.07%
Education & Seminars 14,901 14,901 1.17%
Gasoline 41,872 0 41,872 3.29%
Gifts 969 (969) I 0 0.00%
Ins-Comm &Auto Liab 30,640 30,640 2.41%
Insurance-E&O 27,652 27,652 2.17%
Leases 156,008 -fed inc tx 156,008 12.26%
Legal 9,073 (8,000) K 1,073 0.08%
Lodging & Meals 5,363 5,363 0.42%
Maint Offc & Bldg 2,989 2,989 0.23%
Miscellaneous 1,131 (500) O -key life 631 0.05%
Mobile Phone/Accessories 47,077 47,077 3.70%

Postage/Shipping 3,917 -common contr 3,917 0.31%
Office Expenses 24,043  24,043 1.89%
Taxes- B & O 70,152  70,152 5.51%
Misc Taxes & Licenses 2,279  2,279 0.18%
Telephone 5,540 5,540 0.44%
Temporary Service 405 405 0.03%
Trash/Dump Fees 3,315 3,315 0.26%
Utility-Electricity 16,775 16,775 1.32%
Utility- Gas 2,826 2,826 0.22%
Utility- Water & Swg 4,662 4,662 0.37%
Vehicle Maint 29,200 29,200 2.30%
Vehicle Regis 903 903 0.07%
Depreciation 60,903 0 G 60,903 4.79%

0.00%
 -all goodwill 0 0.00%

Total General Overhead $1,654,800 ($161,157) $0 $1,493,643 117.42%

Total Overhead Costs $2,285,972 ($188,606) $0 $2,097,366 164.88%

Overhead Rate (Less FCC) 179.71% 164.88% 164.88%

Facilities Cost of Capital $0 $0 0.00%
$2,097,366

Overhead Rate (Includes FCC) 164.88%

Materials Testing & Consulting, Inc. 

Breakdown of Subconsultants Overhead Cost
EXHIBIT G-2

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012



DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

CONTACTPRODUCER NAME:
FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:
PRODUCER
CUSTOMER ID #:

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
INSURED INSURER A :

INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

ADDL SUBRINSR POLICY EFF POLICY EXPTYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITSPOLICY NUMBERLTR (MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)INSR WVD
GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE $

DAMAGE TO RENTED
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY $PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GENERAL AGGREGATE $

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $
PRO- $POLICY LOCJECT

COMBINED SINGLE LIMITAUTOMOBILE LIABILITY $(Ea accident)
ANY AUTO

BODILY INJURY (Per person) $
ALL OWNED AUTOS

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $
SCHEDULED AUTOS PROPERTY DAMAGE $(Per accident)HIRED AUTOS

$NON-OWNED AUTOS

$

UMBRELLA LIAB EACH OCCURRENCE $OCCUR
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

$DEDUCTIBLE

$RETENTION $
WC STATU- OTH-WORKERS COMPENSATION

TORY LIMITS ERAND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Y / N
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $

N / AOFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

© 1988-2009 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORDACORD 25 (2009/09)

OP ID: MF

04/03/2013

Phone: 360-647-9000
The Unity Group - Bellingham
110 Unity Street, P.O. Box X
Bellingham, WA 98227
Greg K. Poehlman, CIC

Fax: 360-734-8496

MATER-1

Materials Testing and
Consulting Inc
777 Chrysler Dr
Burlington, WA 98233-4100

American Fire & Casualty Co 24066
Endurance American Specialty

1,000,000
A X X X BKA54530460 07/01/2012 07/01/2013 100,000

X 15,000
1,000,000
2,000,000
2,000,000

X
X X 1,000,000

A X BAA54530460 07/01/2012 07/01/2013

X
A BKA54530460 07/01/2012 07/01/2013 1,000,000N WA STATE STOP GAP 1,000,000

1,000,000
B Professional Liab PPL10002153802 07/01/2012 07/01/2013 Occurrenc 1,000,000

DED:  $10,000 CLAIMS MADE Aggregate 2,000,000

Professional Liability: Deductible $10,000.  Occurrence Limit Retro Date    
01-21-2000. Aggregate Limit Retro Date 11-22-2011                           

                       ***SEE HOLDER NOTES***                               

OAK

City of Oak Harbor
865 SE Barrington Drive
Oak Harbor, WA 98277



PAGEHOLDER CODE   NOTEPAD: INSURED'S NAME DATE

OAK MATER-1 2
Materials Testing and OP ID: MF 04/03/13

Certificate holder is additional insured on General Liability as per      
CG8810 10/09 endorsement-includes Primary/Non-Contributory & Waiver of    
Subrogation. Per Project Aggregate applies as per CG8870 12/08. Also      
additional insured on Auto as per CA8810 01/10-includes Primary/Non-      
Contributory & Waiver of Subrogation.                                     

Additional Insured's cannot be added to Professional Liability policy.    

Cancellation provisions apply as per CL0103 10/02 endorsement on G/L,     
IL0146 09/07 on auto and 14-02-4231 07/2001 on Professional Liability.    

RE: North Reservoir Project





May 7, 2013 – North Reservoir – Professional Service Agreement with Frazier Surveying  
Page 2 of 2 

 
Selection Process: 
Frazier Surveying, LLC, has been selected based on their qualifications posted on the MRSC 
consultant roster and prior successful work on City projects. 
 
STANDING COMMITTEE REPORT 
This item has not been discussed at the Standing Committee meetings. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
Authorize the Mayor to sign a Professional Services Agreement with Frazier Surveying, LLC for 
providing construction staking services for the North Reservoir with a not to exceed limit of 
$10,658 and a management reserve of $1,000. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

 Professional Services Agreement 
 Exhibit A – Scope of Services 



















 

 

Exhibit A 
April 24, 2013 
 
Arnie Peterschmidt, P.E. 
City of Oak Harbor 
865 SE Barrington Drive 
Oak Harbor, WA 98277 
 
Dear Arnie, 
 
Thank you for contacting Frazier Surveying, LLC for surveying services. This letter 
outlines my proposed scope of services and compensation related to the North Reservoir 
Construction Staking and Gun Club Road Record of Survey Map. 
 
SCOPE OF SERVICES: 
 

 Reviewing project plans and setting up construction staking for field crew. 
 
 Establishing survey control. 
 
 Staking clearing limits. 

 
 Staking access easement. 

 
 Staking for site grading. 

 
 Staking reservoir. 

 
 Staking waterline.  

 
 Staking storm drain. 

 
 Staking road alignment. 

 
 Staking security fence. 

 
 Meetings and coordination with client and contractor. 

 
 Preparing cut sheets for contractor. 

 
 Preparing and recording a Record of Survey Map of the existing right-of-way of 

Gun Club Road lying west of Rifle Road. 
 
COMPENSATION:  
My fee will be billed on a time and expense basis. My estimated fee to complete this 
project is $10,658. 





May 7, 2013 – North Reservoir – Consultant Agreement with Gray & Osborne 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 
Authorize the Mayor to sign a Consultant Agreement with Gray & Osborne, Inc. for construction 
support services in constructing the North Reservoir in an amount not to exceed $24,950 and a 
management reserve of $1,300. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

 Consultant Agreement 
 





















































































May 7, 2013 – Lease Agreement with Option to Purchase (Freedom Kennels) 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 
The 7.2-acre parcel on which the kennel is located is mostly wooded save for the kennel area and a 
double wide modular rental that is currently rented on a month to month basis. It has approximately 300 
feet of frontage on Goldie Street and is currently in unincorporated Island County although inside the 
City’s urban growth area. As the property abuts the current City limits, it is eligible for annexation. The 
building is connected to City water, but not to City sewer which is available in Goldie Street. 
 
The building itself has been in use as a kennel since 1976 and has been reasonably well maintained 
given the building’s age. There are 40 heated spaces to house dogs with access to short runs outdoors 
but under cover. Cats are not currently served at the facility although a room that is currently in use as a 
dog bathing area could be converted to house cats. The building has been examined by the City’s 
Building Official and Facilities Manager and both believe that the spaces could, with several 
modifications, be adapted for the City’s intended use.  As our likely contractor to operate the facility, 
officials from WAIF have also assessed the property and have identified several further modifications 
that would be necessary to open it as a public animal shelter. The staff is preparing a cost estimate for 
these modifications and will have that information available at the May 7, 2013 Council meeting. 
 
LEASE DESCRIPTION: 
 
The proposed lease would be for a period of three years at $2,500 per month, plus one-half of the annual 
property taxes ($1,234 approx) and all utilities that serve the building. At a cost of $10,000, the 
proposed lease includes the purchase of an option to buy the property at any point in within the three 
year lease period.  If the City exercised this option, the agreed upon price would be $267,000 which is 
the assessed value of the property. Prior to a decision to purchase the property, the City would perform 
all due diligence associated with a property purchase. 
 
In conclusion, staff recommends that the City move ahead with the Lease Agreement with Option to 
Purchase. At a minimum, in the short term, the facility can be converted for use as an animal shelter in 
time to allow a smooth transition from the current shelter by September 30, 2013. Longer term, the 3-
year term of the Lease Agreement will allow the City time to assess its animal shelter facility needs and 
make a determination as to whether this particular site could serve those needs.   
 
The Interim City Attorney has reviewed and approved the Agreement for form.  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Motion to authorize the Mayor to sign the Lease Agreement with Option to Purchase with Freedom 
Properties, LLC. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

 Draft Lease Agreement with Option to Purchase 
 Property Information from the Island County Assessor’s Office 

 
 



 
 

LEASE AGREEMENT WITH OPTION TO PURCHASE - 1 

 

LEASE AGREEMENT 

WITH OPTION TO PURCHASE 

 

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT is made and entered into this 7th day of May, 2013, 

by and between FREEDOM PROPERTIES, LLC, hereinafter referred to as "Lessor", 

and CITY OF OAK HARBOR, WASHINGTON, a Washington municipal corporation herein-

after referred to as "Lessee".  This lease or a Memorandum of Lease may be 

RECORDED by either party. 

1.  Description of Premises:  The Lessor hereby leases to the Lessee, 

and the Lessee  hereby leases from the Lessor, that real property commonly 

known as 2725 NE Goldie Road, Oak Harbor, Washington, and more particularly 

described as follows: 

 

Tax ID # R13326-340-2000 

 

Legal:   PTN N1/2 SE 1/4 NW1/4 SEC 26, TWN 33 N, Rg 1 E. W. M.  

 

Site map attached as “A”. 
 

2.  Term:  The term of this lease shall be for a period of three (3)  

years commencing the ______ day of June, 2013 and terminating midnight the 

_____ day of May 2016.  With three (3) months written notice to Lessor, Lessee 

shall have the option to extend the lease and purchase option for three (3) 

additional years. Upon exercise of the option to purchase  Lessee shall pay to 

Lessor Ten Thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($10,000.00) which shall be applied to 

the purchase.  Notice to exercise the  option to purchase shall be as provided 

in paragraph 21 J. 



 
 

LEASE AGREEMENT WITH OPTION TO PURCHASE - 2 

 

3.  Rental:  Lessee  agrees to pay to the Lessor the sum of Two Thousand 

Five Hundred and 00/100 Dollars ($2,500.00)  per month as and for rent for the 

described premises, with such payments to be made on or before the 1st day of 

each month.  The payments shall be made directly to the Lessor at such place 

referenced in 21 J.  The Lessee agrees to pay 50% of the annual property tax 

for land and improvement of the leased property.  The payment shall be made ½ 

on April 10th and ½ on October 10th.   The payments shall be made directly to 

the Lessor at such place as referenced in 21 J.   

4.  Use of Premises:  It is understood that the leased premises shall be 

used as an animal shelter and related functions by the City of Oak Harbor, a 

municipality, and shall not be used for any illegal purposes whatsoever.   

5.  Laws and Regulations:  Lessee agrees to conform to and abide by all 

lawful regulations, rules, codes, and laws of the United States, the State of 

Washington, and the County of Island, applicable to the Lessee’s use and oper-

ation of said premises, including the construction of any improvements there-

on, and not to permit said premises to be used in violation of any said rules, 

codes, laws, or regulations. 

6.  Commit No Waste:  Lessee agrees not to commit or permit waste upon 

said premises and to keep the premises in a neat, clean, and orderly condition 

and to be responsible for all damages caused to the leased premises by Lessee, 

Lessee’s agents, or any third party on the premises. 

7.  Duties of Lessees:  Lessee agrees to keep said premises in a clean 

and sanitary condition, to maintain the lawn and yard, to properly dispose of 

rubbish, garbage and waste in a clean and sanitary manner at reasonable and 

regular intervals and to assume all costs of extermination and fumigation of 



 
 

LEASE AGREEMENT WITH OPTION TO PURCHASE - 3 

 

insect infestation caused by Lessee.  Lessee further agrees to use and operate 

all electrical, gas, heating, plumbing facilities, fixtures and appliances, to 

not intentionally or negligently destroy, deface, damage, impair or remove any 

part of the premises that are appurtenances, facilities, equipment, furniture, 

furnishings, and appliances, nor to permit any  invitee, licensee, or other 

person action under their control to do so. 

8. Inspection of Premises:  Lessee agrees that they have made inspection 

of the premises and accept the condition of the premises in its present state, 

and that there are no repairs, changes or modifications to said premises to be 

made by the Lessor. 

9.  Alterations:  Lessee agrees not to make any alterations to the said 

premises, either the structure or the yard, without the prior consent of Les-

sor. Such consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. In the event such con-

sent is given all such alterations, additions or improvements shall be made at 

the sole expense of Lessee and shall become the property of Lessor, and shall 

remain in and be surrendered with the premises as a part thereof at the termi-

nation of this lease.  Repairs ordered by an inspection for sale shall be ne-

gotiated separate from this agreement. 

10.  Utilities:  All utilities shall be the sole responsibility of and 

shall be paid by the Lessee.  Lessor shall pay all utilities prior to the 1st 

day of this lease. 

11.  Hold Harmless Agreement:  Lessee agrees to hold harmless Lessor and 

his agents from all damages of any and every kind whatsoever that may be 

claimed or may arise by reason of Lessee’s use or occupation of the leased 

premises, or caused by the acts or negligence of the Lessee or any agent of 



 
 

LEASE AGREEMENT WITH OPTION TO PURCHASE - 4 

 

the Lessee.  Lessee agrees to defend, hold and save the Lessor, and Lessor's 

agents, harmless from any and all liability or expense, including expense of 

litigation, in connection with Lessee’s use of the premises. 

12.  Sublet and Assignment:  Lessee shall not without the consent of the 

Lessor let or sublet the full or any part of said premises, or assign this 

lease or any part thereof without the prior written consent of the Lessor or 

Lessor's agents.    This lease shall not be assignable by operation of law. 

13.  Surrender: Unless Lessee exercises the option to purchase, Lessee 

agrees to quit and surrender said premises at the expiration of this lease at 

midnight on May 30, 2016, without notice, and in good order, condition and 

repair, damage by the elements or fire excepted. 

14.  Insurance and Liability:  Lessor or Lessor's agent shall not be li-

able for any damage to property or personal injuries caused by any defects now 

in said premises or hereafter occurring on or about said premises.  Lessee 

further agrees to provide adequate insurance coverage or comparable insurance 

through membership in a municipal insurance pool with coverage for fire and 

other casualty for the full extent of the value of the above-described proper-

ty, which insurance coverage shall be subject to the approval of the Lessor.  

The Lessee agrees to provide adequate liability insurance for the use made by 

the Lessee.  The Lessee agrees to provide to the Lessor proof of insurance 

within 15 days of demand for proof of insurance coverage by the Lessor.                               

15.  Property Damage:  The Lessor shall not be liable for any damage to 

the property of the Lessee or for the loss of or damage to any property of 

Lessee by theft or otherwise.  Lessor shall not be liable for any injury or 

damage to persons or property resulting from fire, explosion, falling plaster, 



 

 

 
 

LEASE AGREEMENT WITH OPTION TO PURCHASE - 5 

 

steam, gas, electricity, water, rain or snow or leaks from any part of said 

building or from the pipes, appliances or plumbing works, or from the roof, 

street or subsurface or from any other place or by dampness or by any other 

cause of whatsoever nature, unless caused by or due to the negligence of the 

Lessor or Lessor's employees. 

16.  Maintenance of Premises:  Lessee agrees to keep all drainage pipes 

free and open, and to protect, water, heating and all other pipes so they will 

not freeze or become clogged, and to immediately repair the same as well as 

all damage that may be caused by leakage or otherwise, and to mow and water 

the grass, flowers and other shrubbery on said grounds and keep then in good 

order and condition.  The tenant shall maintain the roof, septic and walks.  

At commencement of the lease the septic system and the tanks were fully 

operational. Lessee agrees that unless the option to purchase is exercised, at 

the end of the lease term or an extension thereof, to return of the property 

with the septic system fully operational and the tanks pumped.  

Lease includes Lessor’s dog kennel, supplies and equipment.  The current 

supply of bowls, buckets and cleaning supplies are included with the lease.  

The dog wash bathing stations and the washer/dryer at the conclusion of the 

lease shall be returned to Lessor in fully operational condition. In the event 

the Lessee exercises the purchase option, ownership of the dog wash bathing 

stations shall be to the Lessee at no cost to the Lessee. 



 

 

 
 

LEASE AGREEMENT WITH OPTION TO PURCHASE - 6 

 

17.  Liens and Insolvency:  Lessee shall keep the leased premises free 

from liens arising out of any work performed, materials furnished, or obliga-

tions incurred by Lessees. 

18.  Default and Reentry:  Time is of the essence of this agreement.  If 

any rents above-reserved, or any part thereof, shall be and remain unpaid when 

the same shall become due, or if Lessee shall violate or default in any of the 

covenants and agreement herein contained, the Lessor may terminate this lease 

upon giving the notice required by law and reenter said premises but notwith-

standing such reentry by the Lessor, the liability of the Lessee for the rent 

provided herein shall not be extinguished for the balance of the term of this 

lease. 

19.  Right of Quiet Enjoyment:  Lessor acknowledges that he has owner-

ship of the property heretofore described and that he has the legal authority 

to lease said property unto Lessee.  Lessor covenants that Lessee’s right of 

occupancy shall not be disturbed during the term of this lease so long as the 

terms are complied with by Lessee, and subject to that clause in this lease 

dealing with the right of Lessor to enter upon the leased premises. 

20.  Waivers:  It is agreed that no waiver by Lessor of a breach by the 

Lessee of any covenant, agreement or terms of this lease shall be construed to 

be a waiver of any succeeding breach of the same covenant, agreement or term; 

also that all covenants, agreements and terms therein contained shall extent 

to and be binding on the heirs, executors, administrators, successors and as-

signs of the respective parties hereto. 



 

 

 
 

LEASE AGREEMENT WITH OPTION TO PURCHASE - 7 

 

21.  Option to Purchase:  In consideration of the payment from Lessee to 

Lessor of the sum of Ten Thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($10,000.00) cash which 

is held by Lessor hereby grant to the Lessee  the right and option to purchase 

the said described real estate by giving  written notice to the Lessor  at any 

time prior to the expiration of this lease, or prior to the expiration of any  

extension  of this lease.  Should Lessee not exercise the option before the 

end of the lease term or extension thereof, it will immediately vacate the 

property and forfeit the option money. 

In the event that the Lessee elects to exercise the option to purchase, 

the purchase price shall be $267,000.00  in cash at closing.  

Upon the exercise of the option to purchase by the Lessee, the parties 

hereto shall be bound by the additional following terms and conditions:  

A.  Encumbrances:   Lessee shall take title to the property subject to:  

(1) real estate taxes not yet due, and (2) covenants, conditions, re-

strictions, reservations, rights, rights of way and easements of record, if 

any, which do not materially affect the value or intended use of the property. 

B.  Examination of Title:   Ten (10) days from date of exercise of the 

option the Lessee will be allowed to examine the title to the property and to 

report in writing any valid objections thereto.  Any exceptions to the title 

which would be disclosed by examination of the records shall be deemed to have 

been accepted unless reported in writing within said ten (10) days.  If Lessee 

objects to any exceptions to the title, Lessor shall use all due diligence to 

remove such exceptions at its own expense within sixty (60) days thereafter.  



 

 

 
 

LEASE AGREEMENT WITH OPTION TO PURCHASE - 8 

 

But if such exceptions cannot be removed within the sixty (60) days allowed, 

all rights and obligations hereunder may, at the election of the Lessee, ter-

minate and end, and the option payment shall be returned to Lessee, unless 

they elect to purchase the property subject to such exceptions. 

C.  Title:  Evidence of title shall be in the form of a policy of title 

insurance to be issued by Land Title Company at Lessor's expense. 

A preliminary commitment for title insurance shall be ordered by Lessor 

within three (3) days of exercise of the option to purchase by Lessee.

D.  Close of Escrow:  Within forty-five (45) days from exercise of the 

option, or upon removal of any exceptions to the title by the Lessor, as pro-

vided above, whichever is later, both parties shall deposit with the closing 

agent all funds and instruments necessary to complete the sale in accordance 

with the terms and conditions thereof.  Escrow shall be Land Title Company, 

Anacortes Office. 

E.  Possession:  Legal possession shall be delivered to Lessee upon re-

cordation of a statutory warranty deed, unless delivered prior pursuant to the 

terms of the foregoing lease agreement. 

F.  Closing Costs and Proration:  The cost of escrow shall be paid by 

Lessee.  The Lessor shall pay for the real estate excise taxes.  Taxes for the 

current year, rents, Homeowners’ Association dues if any, premiums on insur-

ance acceptable to Lessee and other expenses of the property shall be prorated 

as of the date of closing. 



 

 

 
 

LEASE AGREEMENT WITH OPTION TO PURCHASE - 9 

 

G.  Notices: By acceptance hereof, Lessor warrants that it has  no no-

tice of violations relating to the property from city, county or state agen-

cies. 

H.  Time:  Time is of the essence of this agreement. 

I.  Expiration of Option:  If not exercised or extended, this option 

shall expire upon termination of this lease and Lessor shall be released from 

all obligations hereunder and all of Lessee’s rights hereunder, legal or equi-

table, shall cease.  

J.  Exercise of Option:  The option shall be exercised by mailing or de-

livering written notice to the Lessor prior to the expiration of this option. 

Notice, if mailed, shall be by hand delivery or certified mail, postage 

prepaid, to the Lessor at 8033 Summit Park Road, Anacortes, WA 98221 and shall 

be deemed to have been given upon the day following the day shown on the post-

mark of the envelope in which such notice is mailed. 

22.  Costs and Attorney's Fees:  In the event it is necessary for either 

of the above parties herein to bring an action to enforce the terms, condi-

tions, or covenants of this lease, then the prevailing party shall be entitled 

to an award of reasonable attorney's fees, and expenses. 

23.  Titles of Paragraphs:  Titles of paragraphs in this document are 

for convenience and reference purposes only and shall not in any way construe 

the purposes and intent of the document. 



 

 

 
 

LEASE AGREEMENT WITH OPTION TO PURCHASE - 10 

 

24.  Definitions:  Unless some other meaning and intent is apparent from 

the context, the plurals shall include the singular and vice versa, and mascu-

line, feminine and neuter words shall be used interchangeably. 

25.  Both parties acknowledge that each has had the opportunity for in-

dependent legal counsel with regard to the consequences, ramifications, and 

effect of entering into this Agreement. FREEDOM PROPERTIES, LLC have been ad-

vised by attorney, STEPHEN C. SCHUTT. CITY OF OAK HARBOR, have been advised 

that they have the right to have any attorney review this agreement on their 

behalf. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this lease as of 

the day and year first above written. 

 

LESSOR:                           LESSEE: 

 

FREEDOM PROPERTIES, LLC    CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

 

 

 

 

BY:__________________________   BY:____________________________ 

      CHRIS TERRELL        SCOTT DUDLEY, MAYOR 

      MANAGING PARTNER   

  



 

 

 
 

LEASE AGREEMENT WITH OPTION TO PURCHASE - 11 

 

STATE OF WASHINGTON   ) 

                      )ss 

COUNTY OF ISLAND      ) 

 

On this day personally appeared before me, Chris Terrell and said person 

acknowledged that he was authorized to execute the within instrument and 

acknowledge it as President of Freedom Properties, LLC to be the free and vol-

untary act of such party for the uses and purposes mentioned in the instru-

ment. 

 

Given under my hand and official seal this _____ day of May 2013. 

 

       ___________________________________ 

                                NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the                

State of Washington                      

My commission expires:______________ 

       

 

STATE OF WASHINGTON    )  

                     )ss 

COUNTY OF ISLAND     ) 

 

On this day personally appeared before me, Scott  Dudley and said person 

acknowledged he was authorized to execute the within instrument and 

acknowledge it as Mayor of the City of Oak Harbor, Washington, a municipality, 

to be the free and voluntary act of such party for the uses and purposes men-

tioned in the instrument. 

 

Given under my hand and official seal this 7th day of May 2013. 

 

       ____________________________________ 

                                 NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the                        

State of Washington                         

My commission expires:______________ 













 
May 21, 2013                                   CITY COUNCIL AGENDA                                         6:00 p.m. 
 

To assure disabled persons the opportunity to participate in or benefit from City services, please provide 24-hour advance  
notice to the City Clerk at (360) 279-4539 for additional arrangements to reasonably accommodate special needs. 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Roll Call/Pledge of Allegiance/Invocation 

 
PRESENTATION OF OTHER NON-ACTION COUNCIL ITEMS 

 Proclamation for Relay for Life 
 Employee Recognition – Dennis Wright, 20 Years of Service 
 Briefing: Economic Profile and Needs Assessment 
 Update on Pioneer Way Mural Project 

 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
3. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD 
 
4.    CONSENT AGENDA 

a.   Minutes of the Regular City Council meeting held May 7, 2013 
b.   Approval of Accounts Payable Voucher Nos.  

 
5. HEARINGS AND ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS 

a. Public Hearing:  Motion to authorize staff to apply for a CDBG Planning Grant 
  
  

 6. OTHER BUSINESS 
a. Motion to authorize the Mayor to sign the Contract with Gray Osborne for the Booster Station 

and Water Transmission Line Project 
b.  Ordinance 1658: Refunding 2004 Water/Sewer Bonds (First Reading)  
c.   Council/Mayor Benefits 
d.   Salary Commission 

 
 7. EXECUTIVE SESSION – Potential Litigation and Labor Negotiations 
 
 8. CITY ADMINISTRATOR COMMENTS 
 
 9. COUNCILMEMBER’S COMMENTS 
 
10. MAYOR’S COMMENTS 
 
11. ADJOURNMENT 
 
As a courtesy to Council and the audience, PLEASE TURN YOUR CELL PHONES OFF before the meeting begins. 
During the meeting’s Public Comments section, Council will listen to your input regarding subjects of concern or 
interest that are not on the agenda. 
 
For scheduled public hearings, if you wish to speak, please sign your name to the sign-up sheet, located in the 
Council Chambers. The Council will take all information under advisement. To ensure your comments are recorded 
properly, state your name and address clearly into the microphone.  Please limit your comments to three minutes in 
order that other citizens have sufficient time to speak. 
 



Pending Items 042913 

 

Pending Unscheduled Items 
 Banner Program Guidelines PW/DS 

 Report on Cyber Security Admin 
 Develop a list of acronyms for the City’s website  

 Reconcile Youth Commission Code Reference 2.250 & 2.240  

 Amend code to place fees in Resolution form  - to be scheduled for Workshop Meeting  

 Agreement Renewal - Puget Sound Energy Franchise Agreement PW Admin 
Legal 

 Authorization to Advertise for Bids - Online Payment Services Finance 

 Council Rule Change – Public Forum – Free Speech Legal 

 Channel 10 Rules Admin 
Legal  

 Legal Department Restructure Legal 

 Utilities Office, City Council Chambers, Law Department Remodels Finance, 
DS 

 Council Agenda – to be scheduled for Workshop Meeting  

   

   

   

   

   

   
 


	Agenda for May 7, 2013
	Recognition of Cathy Rosen
	National Nurses Week
	Elks Youth Week
	OHPD 2012 Annual Report
	4.a. Meeting Minutes of April 16, 2013 
	4.b. Accounts Payable 
	Voucher List

	4.c. Community Police Advisory Board Appointment
	Biography Form

	4.d. Excused Absence Request - Munns
	4.e. Park Board Re-appointment
	4.f. Youth Commission Appointment
	Biography Form

	5.a. Invocation Policy
	Resolution 13-06
	Attachments

	5.b. Authorization to Sell Boat
	Resolution 13-10 
	Attachments

	5.c. Public Art - Island Spirit
	Resolution 13-11
	Proposal
	Conceptual Photo

	6.a. WWTP Archaeological Services
	Agreement 
	Scope of Services

	6.b. WWTP Real Estate & Property Services
	Agreement
	Fullerton Proposal

	6.c. North Reservoir Construction Contract
	Bid Tabulation
	Proposal by Veterans Northwest Const. LLC

	6.d. North Reservoir Construction Management
	Agreement

	6.e. North Reservoir Materials Testing
	Agreement

	6.f. North Reservoir Surveying
	Agreement

	6.g. North Reservoir Construction Support
	Agreement

	6.h. AWC Annual Meeting Delegates
	6.i. Freedom Kennels Lease
	Lease Agreement


	Preliminary Agenda for May 21, 2013
	Pending Items



